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INTRODUCTION 
 
We are very pleased to present the Annual Report of the Mid-Western Regional Council to 30 
June 2009. This has been a year of continued achievement, not the least of which is completion of 
the sealing of the Bylong Valley Way. This was a major milestone, shortening travel between 
Melbourne and Brisbane over sealed roads from 1,889km via Sydney to 1,742km via this 
extremely scenic route. It has already resulted in a substantial increase in traffic including tourists 
through the eastern end of this Region. 
 
The sealing of Bylong Valley Way was but one example of the increased emphasis Council placed 
on the Region’s roads. The Road maintenance budget was increased by some $1.4 million over 
and above the previous level of service. The roundabout at Horatio and Church Streets, identified 
as one of the worst in NSW, was completely rebuilt. There were seal extensions on Queens Pinch 
Road, Pyramul Road, Linburn Lane, Ulan-Wollar Road, Ilford Hall Road and Hill End Road; the 
Louisa Creek Bridge in Hargraves was replaced; gravel resheeting of 42km and maintenance 
grading of more than 800km; and many other accomplishments including an upgrade to Ulan 
Road to cater for increased heavy mine traffic. All of this has been carried out as part of Council’s 
five year strategy to get all of our roads to a standard that you as a community and the travelling 
public can be proud of and can use with comfort and ease. 
 
Across the Region we have carried out initiatives to improve the quality of life in our communities 
by constructing 725km of new footpaths; carrying out Stage 2 of a major streetscape upgrade 
program in Angus Avenue, Kandos; allocating $30,000 for improving streetscaping initiatives in 
the smaller rural villages; initiating a program for improving the security of the Rylstone water 
system supply; commencing work on a turkeys nest dam to improve security of the Gulgong water 
supply; and beginning work on the Rylstone Kandos and Villages sewerage augmentation. 
 
Throughout all Council’s activities there was a strong emphasis on long term financial 
sustainability. As a result of conservative fiscal management your Council, unlike many others in 
Australia, felt minimal impact on its investments from the global financial crisis that began to take 
hold in late 2008. 
 
People are this Region’s greatest resource, and Council is proud of its accomplishments both with 
its staff and with our residents. For the staff we developed and implemented a Workplace 
Environment Statement setting our Council’s core values of Respect, Integrity and Recognition 
and providing the definitions behind those values. For our residents we delivered programs and 
services ranging from Youth Week and support of the Kandos Youth Activity Centre to our library’s 
establishment of the GOAL program (Grade Ones at the Library) with more than 100 children now 
enrolled and the upgrading of facilities to serve our communities such as installation of new 
windows at the Ilford Hall and upgrading the kitchen at the Hargraves Hall. 
 
This annual report details what Council accomplished during this financial year to be responsive to 
our community’s needs and expectations and to deliver quality services. Please enjoy the read. 
 

 
 
CR JAMES (PERCY) THOMPSON 

 

MAYOR 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
WARWICK L BENNETT 
GENERAL MANAGER 
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ACHIEVEMENTS 

ROADS AND BRIDGES 
 
• Seal Extensions including Queens Pinch Road, Pyramul Road, Linburn Lane, Ulan-Wollar 

Road, Ilford Hall Road and Hill End Road. 
• Bylong Valley Way – Completed the sealing of Bylong Valley Way. 
• Major rehabilitation works on Lue Road, Cudgegong Road, Old Mill Road, Glen Alice Road, 

Corricudgy Road, Crudine Road and Henry Lawson Drive. 
• Completed the replacement of the Louisa Creek Bridge,  
• Major upgrading of Ulan Road to manage the heavy traffic generated from the coal mines.  

This is part of the ongoing annual program and will continue for as long as the coal mines are 
in operation as part of ongoing funding agreements with the mines. 

• Horatio and Church Street roundabout upgraded. 
• Roundabout construction on Perry Street 
• Hot Mix seals on Church Street, Short Street and Perry Street 
• Gravel re-sheeting of 42 km. 
• Maintenance grading of over 800 km. 
 
 
CARPARKING, CYCLEWAYS, STREETSCAPING 
 
• Constructed a new car parks at Byron Place, The Stables and Gulgong. 
• Cycleway extended down Putta Bucca Road 
• 725m of new footpath constructed 
• Stage 2 of the streetscaping of Angus Avenue, Kandos upgraded to ensure that the 

streetscape there is of a much better quality. 
• Streetscaping Initiatives – Region wide – Council has made an allocation of $30,000 for 

improving streetscaping initiatives in the smaller rural villages.   
• Shelter over seating area in the park at Hargraves 
• Sealing in front of Bylong Sports Ground 
• Fencing at sports Ground at Goolma 

• Street Lighting extended along Ulan Road to Lawson Creek 
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ACHIEVEMENTS 

WATER SUPPLY 
 
• Rylstone Water Supply Security of Supply Investigation - flow metering at the Rylstone dam to 

assist in managing the water resource installed. 
• Hydraulic models of the Mudgee, Gulgong and Rylstone/Kandos water supplies were 

developed. Aerial laser surveys carried out to calibrate the models. Rylstone has been 
modelled for growth scenarios for strategic planning.  

• Powdered Activated Carbon Installed at the Mudgee Water Treatment Plant (WTP). 
• Polymer dosing was installed at the Mudgee WTP. 
• High volume metered water standpipes were installed at Mudgee, Gulgong and Rylstone. 
• A Licensed Wide Area Network link was installed at the Mudgee WTP to improve telemetry 

communications. 
• The Gulgong Turkeys Nest Dam was designed and work commenced 
• The Rylstone Kandos and Villages sewerage augmentation commenced - effluent irrigation 

feasibility study completed. 
• Developments servicing plans for water supply and sewerage completed and adopted by 

Council. 
• Strategic Business plan for water supply adopted by Council. 
• Water mains replacements. 
 
SEWERAGE 
 
• Hydraulic models of the Rylstone, Kandos and Gulgong sewerage systems were developed. 

Rylstone and Kandos have been modelled for growth scenarios to provide input into the 
sewerage augmentation project and strategic plan. 

• Strategic Business plan for Sewerage adopted by Council. 
• Sewerage mains replacements. 
 
WASTE MANAGEMENT 
• Landscaping Mudgee waster transfer station – landscaping works were undertaken at the 

entrance of the transfer station including; cleaning, edging, irrigation and planting 
• Interim Waste Strategic Plan adopted 
 
STORMWATER 
 
• Stormwater Quality Improvement Device installed at the parklands on Louee Road in Rylstone 

and one installed north edge of township in Gulgong. 
• Causeway improvements were completed on Spring Creek Road, Seans Crossing and Black 

Soil Road. 
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ACHIEVEMENTS 

AIRPORT 
• Extended the safety and security fencing by 1300 metres 
• Runway and taxi ways rehabilitated as needed and total area resealed 
 
 
CEMETERIES 
• Rural Cemeteries – Additional maintenance undertaken at all rural cemeteries  
• Rylstone Cemetery – Toilet block upgraded 
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ACHIEVEMENTS 

CORPORATE BUILDING AND MAINTENANCE 
 
Corporate and Community Buildings 
• Buildings Strategic Plan finalised 
• Depots – replacement of security gate to a electronic gate 
• Rylstone Hall Upgrade – External painting 
• Ilford Hall Upgrade – New windows installed. 
• Goolma Community facilities – toilet upgrade 
• Cooyal Hall – Security fencing and electrical upgrades 
• Hargraves Hall – kitchen upgrade 
• Gulgong Administration Building -  construction of a disabled ramp and a security exit door. 
• Mudgee Library – external painting 
• Rural Halls – A number of community hall progress associations received a portion of the $30,000 

allocated. Works predominately were focused on safety issues such as electrical upgrades, kitchen 
upgrades and access improvements. 

 
 
Mudgee Showground 
 
• Showground Master Plan developed and adopted 
 
 
 
SWIMMING POOLS 
 
• Gulgong Pool – A shade area constructed to provide additional shade whilst swimmers were awaiting 

races on carnival days 
• Mudgee Pool – pool blankets were purchased to improve heating efficiency with a shelter constructed 

over the storage of the mats for additional protection. 
• Mudgee Pool – upgrades undertaken on the tiling of the main pool and a solar heating system installed 

in the babies pool 
• Pool leak investigation undertaken 
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ACHIEVEMENTS 

PARKS AND RESERVES 
 
Public Toilets 
• Public Toilet Upgrades – Council completed the new toilets at Goolma, Bylong and Lawson Park  
• Rylstone Disabled Toilet – Council completed construction of a new disabled toilet at the Rylstone Showground  
• Angus Avenue Toilet Block – Installed security gates and replaced the tiling 
• Rotary Park, Kandos – Repainted and connected to electricity  
• Clandulla – Lighting was installed  
 
Playgrounds 
• Rylstone Showground – A new playground was installed 
• Bellevue Estate – A new playground was installed 
 
Passive Reserves 
• Flirtation Hill, Gulgong – Council worked with the 2852 Committee to continue landscaping of Flirtation Hill. 
• Coomber Park, Kandos – This park is located on the entrance of Angus Avenue, Kandos.  It is was upgraded to 

include landscaping, pathways and seating 
• BBQ Upgrades across the parks – BBQs were upgraded at Robertson and Lawson Parks, Mudgee, Anzac Park 

Gulgong and at the back of the Administration Office at Mudgee 
• Seating – Council installed a number of seats adjacent to pathways and in reserves. 

• Lions Park, Mudgee 
• Memorial Park, Mudgee 
• Carpark opposite Councils Administration Building, Gulgong 
• Coomber Park, Kandos 
• Showground, Rylstone  

 
Active Parks / Sports Grounds 
• Sporting Field Master Plan finalised 
• Billy Dunn Oval, Gulgong – Council installed irrigation on no. 4 field 
• Billy Dunn Oval, Gulgong – New lighting was installed at Billy Dunn, this will allow for all sports to utilise this ground 

and have the opportunity for night games. 
• West End Irrigation – the existing irrigation was upgraded with new lines and sprinklers 
• West End Netball Courts, Mudgee – Courts were fixed to ensure the playing surface was safe for the upcoming 

season; courts will be built at the new Glen Willow complex. 
• Walkers Oval, Mudgee – new storage shed was constructed to give Little Athletics a upgraded storage area. 
 
STRATEGIC PLANNING 
 
Comprehensive Land Use Strategy  
Formulation of the Draft Comprehensive Land Use Strategy for submission to the Department of Planning seeking 
approval to proceed to formal exhibition of the Draft Strategy.  During the year the Draft Strategy has been exhibited 
informally and submission received to date have been considered by Council to assist in the formulation of the Draft 
Strategy.  Council has also commence the drafting of the Draft Principle Local Environmental Plan with an aim of 
exhibiting the Draft Plan at the same time as the Draft Strategy. 
 
Development Control Plans and Policies  
The following policies / DCP have been formulated/reviewed and adopted: 

• Residential Development Control Plan 
• Local Approval Policy 
• Review of Alcohol Free Zones 
• On Site Sewerage Management Plan 
• Part 5 Assessments 
• Compliance Policy 
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DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 
The average Development Application (DA) processing times have been consistently within the statutory period over the 
year, 369 determinations have been issued.  86% of Development Applications (excluding Integrated Development) 
were processed within the statutory period.  The average processing time for Development Applications (excluding 
Integrated Development) over the financial year was 26 days with a median of 22 days.  On an annual basis 96% of 
applications are determined under delegations which are consistent with the state average.  
 
A comparison with the Department of Planning Performance Monitoring indicates a reduction in gross processing time in 
2007/08 from 2006/07.  The report confirms that Mid-Western continues to have a very high number of DAs processed 
per development assessment staff when compared to similar sized Councils and the state average. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL  
 
Three significant environmental projects have been successfully undertaken.  Council has received grant funding to a 
total amount of $152,000 .  Successful projects include the South Bank Regeneration Project, Putta Bucca regeneration 
Project and the Bylong Valley Way remediation and education work. 
 
Council is involved in the preparation of a comprehensive State of the Environment Report on a regional basis in 
partnership with the Central West Catchment Authority and 14 other Local Councils.  This is Council’s second year of 
involvement in the regionally base report with Council’s Environment Officer being a represent on the steering 
committee for the preparation of the Report.  Working together as a region enables the sharing of data, ideas and 
knowledge on environmental practices, sustainability reporting and innovation, the success of collaborative programs 
and the strengthening of regional links.   
 
HEALTH 
 
Council has been appointed as a Category B Enforcement Agency.  A total of 43 inspection of food premises were 
undertaken, with 6 re-inspections.  A total number of 6 complaints were received and investigated by Council. Council 
will continue to under inspection and act on complaints in accordance its statutory obligations.  
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ACHIEVEMENTS 

LIBRARY 
 
• Upgrade of the library management system allowing for greater customer functionality and 

increased online presence 
• Expansion of online database subscriptions to provide greater reference access to customers 

at home and through the library 
• The library hosted a wide range of educational events and workshops including Cartooning 

and Parks & Wildlife 
• The library continues to increase the services provided to children, particularly in the area of 

early literacy development. This has included the development of the “Born to Read” lapsit 
program for children 6 months to 2 years of age. 

• There has been further development of the planning and delivery of programs such as Grade 
Ones at the Library (GOAL) and resources for HSC and High School students (Headspace) 

• Council has continued to extend services for senior citizens including the support of book 
groups, the Friends of the Library and U3A 

• Planning for a new regional library building has continued with significant community 
consultation 

• Continued expansion of the Navigator hand-held talking book device, specifically designed for 
the vision impaired 

 
 
REGULATORY CONTROL 
 
• Council continued with its programme of parking control activities within Mudgee. 
• A new impounding facility was constructed at the Kandos Tip to facilitate short term 

impounding in the Rysltone/Kandos area. carried out. 
• After a prolonged recruitment process Council was finally able to fill its approved weeds 

inspectorial positions in line with budgetary approval. 
• Council has allocated an additional $60,000 for management of weeds on Council’s road 

reserves, however, due to unfilled vacancies, this program was not fully expended. 
 
 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
• The Home Modification and Maintenance Service has expanded to include the 

Rylstone/Kandos area 
• Council hosted a successful Wheelchair Roll in conjunction with Sir Roden Cutler Charities 

highlighting accessibility issues in the community 
• Council assisted in the coordination of NAIDOC Week celebrations 
• Supported a scholarship for a local student to attend Charles Sturt University 
• Worked in partnership with the University of Wollongong’s Graduate School of Management 

on a program to bring trainee doctors to the region 
• The Mid-Western Regional Youth Council has continued to provide advice on a range of youth 

issues and has been involved in the coordination of a range of events and activities for youth, 
including a successful Youth Week program 

• Council is working with the community on a number of Social and Cultural Plan initiatives – 
this includes cultural, community and youth programs and events. 

• The Cultural Development Committee has continued to develop Reading the Rivers – a 
cultural project that examines our relationship with water. This project will look to examine the 
region’s relationship with water and seeks to work with the children of our community to 
explore these shared experiences. 

• Began work on a strategic plan for with the Kandos Bicentennial Museum  
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ACHIEVEMENTS 

ADMINISTRATION AND MANAGEMENT SERVICES 
 
• Substantial progress achieved in the upgrade of Council’s Property & Rating system, with a 

Go Live date scheduled for September 2009 
• Council developed a new Knowledge Management System and web site 
 
 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
 
• $320,000 of funding granted to Mudgee Regional Tourism Inc for provision of tourism services 

throughout the Mid-Western Regional Council area. 
• Servicing of the Lions Drive / Depot Road residential / industrial subdivision commenced 

during the latter part of the year. 
• Several surplus parcels of land were sold 
 
 
GOVERNANCE 
 
• Council election held on 13 September 2008 
• Community News continued to be published 23 times a year 
• Local Government Best Practice Review conducted in February 2009  
• All statutory reports were completed by the due dates 
•    Ten Council Meetings held 
• Council’s Standing Committees (Planning & Development, Strategic, Community Services and 

Corporate Services met nine times  
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State of the Environment Report 2008/00  
 
Council is involved in the preparation of a comprehensive State of the Environment Report on a 
regional basis in partnership with the Central West Catchment Authority and 14 other Local 
Councils.  This is Council’s second year of involvement in the regionally based report with 
Council’s Environment Officer being a represent on the steering committee for the preparation of 
the Report.  Working together as a region enables the sharing of data, ideas and knowledge on 
environmental practices, sustainability reporting and innovation, the success of collaborative 
programs and the strengthening of regional links.  The Regional State of the Environment Report 
will be completed at the end of October 2009 
 
Legal Proceedings  
 
Council expended $109,883.87 on legal costs during the period. 
 
Of that amount, $82,412.87 related to the cost of obtaining legal advice/opinion in relation to 
various matters and not in relation to legal proceedings taken by or against the Council. 
 
In addition, Council expended $137,674.96 during the period in recovering outstanding rates and 
charges. These costs are debited as a charge against individual rate assessments. Council 
recovered $127,297.51 of such costs during the period. 
 
Summarised below are details of legal proceedings in which the Council was involved, together 
with the results of those proceedings and the nature and amount of legal costs incurred: 
 
 

MATTER NATURE OF 
EXPENSE 

EXPENSE 
AMOUNT 

OUTCOME 

Prosecution for Breach of 
Order  

Court Action  $9,424 Court found in favour of 
Council.  Owner to cover 
cost of court proceedings.  

Appeal against Council 
refusal of subdivisions 
application 

Court Action  $10,875 Court found in favour of 
applicant – development 
application approved. 

Advice regarding 
interpretation of definition 
of home industry 

Legal Advice $660 Development Application not 
supported. 

Investigation of illegal 
dumping of waste 

Legal Advice  $1,001 Legal action being 
undertaken by Department 
of Environment and Climate 
Change 

Investigation of fuel tanks 
on road reserve 

Legal Advice $1,890 Site remediated  

Investigation of Contract 
of Sale.  

Legal Advice $3,621 Advice contributed to 
ongoing negotiations 
regarding use and 
ownership.  

 
 
Mayoral and Councillor Fees 
  
The Mayoral Fee for the period was set at $19,790 while the Councillor Fee was set at $9,060. A 
total amount of $79,274.88 was paid in Councillor Fees while an amount of $19,790.00 was paid 
in Mayoral Fees. 
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Councillor Expenses and Facilities  
 
The Council has an adopted policy on the provision of facilities and the payment of Councillors 
expenses and a copy of this policy is appended. 
 
An amount of $113,009.55 was expended on supporting the elected Council through the provision 
of these facilities and the payment of these expenses. This figure includes: 
 
Council meeting expenses     $33,451.65 
Councillor Representational/lobbying expenses  $3,042.89 
Mayoral vehicle running expenses    $4,709.72 
Material & consumables, printing and stationary, 
delivery of business papers     $17,150.45 
Lease payments (mayoral vehicle & office equipment) $4,294.25 
Provision of Office Equipment    $16,403.68   
Telephone Calls made by Councillors     $3,905.55 
Conferences and Seminars     $18,938.24 
Training and Skill Development    $11,113.12 
Interstate Visits      Nil 
Overseas Visits      Nil 
Spouse, partner or accompanying person    Nil 
Child Care       Nil 
 
Overseas Visits  
 
During the year there were no overseas visits undertaken. 
 
 
Senior Staff  
 
Council effectively had one senior staff position during the year, that being the General Manager.  
 
The total amount paid in respect of the employment of senior staff during the year (including 
salary, performance bonus payments, fringe benefits tax, housing assistance, private use of a 
Council motor vehicle and employer's superannuation contributions) was $234,118.41. 
 
The total remuneration comprised in the remuneration package of the General Manager was 
$235,313.60. 
 
Contracts Awarded During the Year  
 
The following contracts were awarded by Council during the year: 
 

Contractor Goods/Services Provider Amount  
(Inc. GST) 

Westrac Pty Ltd Supply of two road graders 781,000 
Westrac Pty Ltd Supply of one waste loader 386,870 
Sydney Truck Sales Supply of front loading garbage compactor 362,803 
MacDonald Johnson Supply of side loading garbage compactor 309,685 
Volvo Truck and Bus Supply of two road water trucks 567,718 
Volvo Truck and Bus Supply of three tipping trucks 732,943 
BPW Transpec Supply of truck fitted with hook lift 344,129 
Donnelly Mining & Civil Redbank Dam Safety Works 319,260 
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Bush Fire Hazard Reduction  
 
There has been a large increase in Hazard Reduction both by council and land managers on the 
Bushfire Management Committee. This has seen large scale Hazard Reduction throughout the 
district including burns in National Parks, State Forests and on crown land, along with a number of 
village hazard reductions, as per the program between Council and the Rural Fire Service. A 
number of Community Education events targeting high risk rural residential areas have also been 
undertaken to better prepare residents for the onset of fire.  
   
It is expected that there will be further increases in Hazard Reduction works of all types over the 
next 12 months by Council, NSW Rural Fire Service, National Parks and Wildlife Service and 
Forests NSW. 
  
 
Private Works   
 
There were no resolutions passed during the year in accordance with the provisions of Section 
67(2)(b) of the Local Government Act 1993 relating to Council subsidising the cost of any works 
carried out on private lands. 
 
Council completed 48 private works projects ranging from grading of gravel drive ways to 
maintenance grading of the Ulan/Wollar Road for Wilpinjong Coal and sealing of roadway in front 
of private residence on Ullamalla Road. 
 
Grants  
 
During this period, Council made contributions/donations amounting to $234,203.57 
 
Human Resources Activities  
 
During 2008/2009, Human Resources facilitated the development of the Workplace Environment 
Statement or “WES”. This was achieved through a series of focus groups consisting of 
approximately 80 employees from across Council. The WES sets out Council’s core values of 
Respect, Integrity and Recognition and provides the definitions behind those values. The WES is 
the blueprint for Mid-Western Regional Council’s desired culture for the future. 
 
A Human Resources strategy and plan were developed and adopted by Council. The “People 
Plan” details the human resources-related activities required over the next 18 months to enable 
delivery of the Management Plan in accordance with Council’s desired culture as outlined in the 
WES. As a part of the People Plan, the People Toolkit was produced and distributed providing all 
employees with one-stop-shop access to Council’s people-related policies and procedures. 
 
In an effort to increase effective and meaningful communication to all employees, quarterly 
employee briefings were held across the region. The briefings provided an opportunity for 
employees to find out what is going on in Council and were a forum for employees to ask 
questions of the General Manager, the HR Manager and Group Managers. These briefings will 
continue in 2009/10. 
 
Council’s learning and development plan again focused on ensuring employees possessed the 
appropriate tickets, licences and qualifications to meet statutory requirements. In addition, Council 
increased the number of employees who were First Aid trained. Council views First Aid training as 
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a positive contribution by employees to the wider community and to the families and friends of the 
employees.  
 
Council was also involved in the MaxPotential leadership development program with three 
employees participating as coaches. MaxPotential connects senior school and TAFE students with 
members of the community with the aim of developing future leaders. Each student was assigned 
a coach whose role was to work with the student over 26 weeks to develop specific areas where 
the student felt they needed guidance and assistance to grow and improve. This student was also 
required to complete a community project sponsored and guided by their coach. Projects included 
highlighting the work of Community Health, holding a basketball tournament at PCYC, sun-
protection awareness, showcasing the history of the region through the eyes of long-term 
residents, breastcancer awareness, etc. 
 

Council is an Equal Employment Opportunity Employer committed to providing a work 
environment free from discrimination, harassment, victimisation or vilification, where each 
employee has the opportunity to progress to the extent of their abilities. Council’s EEO objectives 
are to provide: 

Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) Policy 

• Fair practices in the workplace; 
• Management decisions without bias; 
• Recognition of and respect for the social and cultural backgrounds of all employees, 

Councillors and customers; 
• Employment practices which create employee satisfaction and commitment. 

 
To achieve these objectives, Council has worked to: 

• Incorporate the EEO principle into all relevant policies and procedures; 
• Base all selection decisions on merit and the individual’s ability to meet the requirements of 

the position; 
• Provide learning and development that is linked to the employee, Council and customer 

needs; 
• Provide an efficient workplace free from bullying, harassment and discrimination; 
• Promote EEO throughout Council to ensure that every employee is aware of and 

understands Council’s policies on EEO related matters. 
 
A set of Core Values were also developed as part of the Workplace Environment Statement, 
details of which are included above. 
 
Services That Promoted Access for People with Diverse Cultural and Linguistic 
Backgrounds   
 
Demographic statistics from the 2006 Census indicate that approximately 2.7% of the population 
speak a language other than English at home and 2.7% of the population state that they are from 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander backgrounds. 
 
Programs undertaken or supported by Council include: 
 

• All Council’s Home and Community Care Services funded through the Department of 
Ageing, Disability and Home Care have special policy statements on services for people 
with diverse cultural and linguistic backgrounds. 

• Council’s Community Services Centre offers, on an annual basis, meeting room facilities 
for people from diverse backgrounds to meet with representatives from the Department of 
Immigration. 
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• Mid-Western Regional Council Library provides access to the collections of the State 
Library of New South Wales and enables members of the community to loan boxes of non-
English language books. 

• Council’s Social Plan includes sections on Culturally and Linguistically Diverse members of 
the community and Aboriginal members of the community. 

• Mid-Western Regional Family Day Care Service has an Indigenous carer and another 
carer who is working with the Barnardos Better Futures Program that caters for Aboriginal 
children. 

• Mudgee Child Care Centre promotes inclusive practice and currently has children from 
culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds and Aboriginal backgrounds enrolled at 
the Centre. 

 
 
Services to Cater for the Needs of Children and Young People  
 
The following services were provided by Council for children and young people in the local 
government area in 2008/09: 
 
• Youth Week program delivered with activities in Mudgee, Gulgong and Rylstone/Kandos 
• Support for the continuation of the Kandos Youth Activity Centre 
• Support for the continuation of the Mid-Western Regional Youth Council 
• Mudgee Child Centre offers quality, programmed care and activities for children 0-5 years 
• Family Day Care services offering quality child care for children aged 6 weeks to 12 years of 

age, in the private homes of registered Family Day Carers. 
• A full range of library services through branch libraries in Gulgong, Kandos and Mudgee 
• Mobile library service to all village schools in the region, including Bylong Upper, Goolma, 

Hargraves, Ilford, Lue, Ulan, Windeyer and Wollar 
• Bookworms story-telling and craft activities programs for pre-schoolers delivered through the 

Gulgong, Kandos and Mudgee branches 
• A range of storytelling and craft activities for children during school holidays 
• Born to Read lap-sit program for babies and toddlers 
• Establishment of the GOAL program (Grade Ones at the Library) – Over 100 children are now 

enrolled in this program 
• Summer Reading Program delivered throughout the Region with 630 participants 
• Visits to local schools to provide briefings on services and programs 
 
Access and Equity  
 
The following provides a list of the activities that Council completed in 2008/09 that promoted 
services and access to services for people with diverse cultural and linguistic backgrounds, and to 
those with other access needs: 
• Remote access to reference services has been expanded through the provision of additional 

databases 
• Remote access to skill based tutorials has been provided online (YourTutor and Computer 

School) 
• The library has expanded its collection of Navigators (hand-held devices that store talking 

books for the sight-impaired) 
• Mobile Library Service assists housebound library patrons to access materials as well as 

providing a library service to village communities 
• The Mid-Western Regional Council Library provides access to large print books and talking 

books that can be of assistance to the visually impaired 
• The library now has enhanced online facilities including the library catalogue to provide access 

for the community to library services from their own home 
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• In partnership with U3A the library has been successful in obtaining a grant to facilitate the 
provision of Internet training for seniors 

• Mid-Western Regional Council has two established Access Committees (one covering the 
Mudgee and Gulgong areas; the other covering the Rylstone and Kandos areas) that provide 
advice to Council no access issues 

• Council’s Community Services facilitates space for the transcribing of the Mudgee Guardian on 
to tapes for the vision impaired 

• Council auspices a range of HACC funded services such as Host Family Respite Care, Meals 
on Wheels and Home Modification & Maintenance  

• Community Transport enables the elderly or those with a disability to have comfortable access 
to medical or social appointments 

• Council supports a range of special events and community services such as NAIDOC Week 
• The Social Plan, adopted in November 2006, contains a range of recommendations that 

specifically focus on different demographic groups in our community and the best way for 
Council to assist them 

• A range of working parties and groups exist in our community with support and advocacy from 
Council, including Interagency, Youth Network, Aged Services, Disability Services, Children 
and Family and People Against Violence 

 
Equity in Council’s Services   
 
Evidence of Council’s commitment to equitably providing services to all residents is provided in the 
following programs delivered in 2008/09: 
• Mid-Western Regional Council Library offers free library membership to all people living in the 

local government area through its branches at Gulgong, Kandos and Mudgee 
• A Mobile Library Service travels to a number of villages in the region. 
• The Mobile Library also offers a housebound service to the frail-aged who are unable to visit 

the library branches 
• The library now has an online catalogue and a number of online database services available for 

searching over the Internet 
• The library offers free Internet access to the Internet at its three branches at Gulgong, Kandos 

and Mudgee as well as the Council office in Rylstone 
• Youth Week events were arranged in various locations throughout the region and transport was 

also available to travel to events 
• Seniors Week events were celebrated throughout the Region 
• Community email bulleting is distributed to recipients throughout the Council area 
 
Delegated Functions  
 
There were no functions delegated by Council to external bodies during the period. 
 
Commercial Interests and Competitive Neutrality   
 
Council did not hold the controlling interest in any one enterprise, nor was it party to any 
partnerships, co-operatives or other joint ventures during the year. 
 
Council was involved in the following organisations:   
 

Organisation/Contractor Purpose Amount 
Statecover Mutual 
Limited 

Council holds a partly paid share in Statecover Mutual Ltd, a 
company providing workers compensation cover for Council. 
Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in 
the event of either the erosion of the capital base of the 
company or increases in the prudential requirements of APRA.  

N/A 
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Council operates the following businesses: 
 
Category 1
• Water Supply 

: 

• Sewer Service 
 

• Private Works 
Category 2: 

• Livestock Selling Centre (Saleyards) 
• Mudgee Child Care Centre 
 
Council has complied with the principles of competitive neutrality in relation to pricing structures, 
taxation equivalents, Council rates and charges, loan debt guarantees fees and corporate taxation 
equivalents.  Council had not received any competitive neutrality complaints.  Council has adopted 
a complaints handling policy that incorporates a mechanism for dealing with competitive neutrality 
complaints. 
 
For financial information regarding Council’s business activities please refer to the Special 
Purpose Financial Reports attached. 
 
Freedom of Information (FOI) and Privacy  
 
Council is committed to the principles of open government and makes every effort to provide 
access by members of the public to the Council’s decision making process by way of Section 12 of 
the Local Government Act, 1993. Wherever possible, documents are provided to applicants 
without charge. 
 
As a result of this approach, three (3) FOI applications were received during the period. This 
compares favourably to the 1998/99 period, during which Council only received one formal FOI 
application, the 1999/00 and 2000/01 periods, during which no applications were received, the 
2001/02 period where only one application was received, the 2002/03 period were no applications 
were received, the 2003/04 period where one application was received, the 2004/05 period where 
three applications were received and the 2005/06 period were no applications were received, the 
2006/07 period where one application was received and the 2007/08 period where two 
applications were received.  
 
Council has adopted a Privacy Management Plan and complies with the Privacy Code of Practice 
for Local Government and any Directions issued by the Privacy Commissioner. 
 
Companion Animals Act  
 
Council employs one officer full time to enforce the provisions of the Companion Animal 
legislation. This officer also attends to after-hours stock impounding. 
 
During the year, Pound Data Collection Returns and Data relating to Dog Attacks were lodged 
with the Department of Local Government. 
 
During the year, Council held Discount Dog Days as a means of encouraging persons to have 
their dogs and cats microchipped. In addition, staff are working with the local branch of the 
RSPCA regarding foster care and advertising of impounded animals. 
 
Council has three (3) off-leash areas, located at Pitts Lane, Mudgee, Peoples Park, Gulgong and 
the Rylstone Show Ground. 
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The Department of Local Government provided $7,824 for Animal Management Services to 
Council. Additionally, $2,630 was received from stock impounding fees, animal release fees, fines, 
animal sales and other revenue associated with the management of companion animals. These 
funds contributed to the management and control of companion animals in the area as follows: 

 
Expenditure  
  
Salaries, overtime, allowances, etc  $43,302 
Materials and consumables    24,512 
Plant operating costs    26,252 
Telephones, Electricity & Energy, Contractors, 
Printing & Stationary, Waste tipping expenses, 
Water usage 

    10,235 

Employee and Creditors overheads    15,034 
Total $119,335 

 
 
 
Planning Agreements  
 
Mid-Western Regional Council had 3 Voluntary Planning Agreements in force during the 2008/09 
financial year. A summary of the agreements follows: 
 
Company Effective Purpose Amount Due Date Paid
Wilpinjong Coal Pty Ltd March 2006 Lump Sum - Coal Shipment 450,000$      Payable prior to the first shipment of 

coal from the land
Yes

Annual Contribution - Community Infrastructure  $     800,000 $40,000 per annum for 20 years, with 
the first instalment due on the 
anniversary of the first loading and 
dispatch of coal.

2 of 20

Annual Contribution - Road Maintenance  $30,000 per 
annum 

$30,000 per annum for the life of the 
mining operation, with the first 
instalment due on the anniversary of 
the first loading and dispatch of coal.

2 of

Annual Contribution - Bus Routes  $       60,000 $20,000 per annum for three years 2 of 3

Moolarben Coal Pty Ltd February 2008 Lump Sum - Open Cut Coal 1,000,000$   Payable in three equal annual 
instalments, with the first payment 
due within 7 days of first loading and 
dispatch of coal produced from the 
open cut operation.

No

Lump Sum - Underground Coal 300,000$      Payable within 7 days of first loading 
and dispatch of coal produced from 
the underground operation.

No

Lump Sum - Road Maintenance 1,000,000$   Payable in three equal annual 
instalments, with the first payment 
due within 7 days of the 
commencement of construction.

1 of 3

Annual Contribution - Road Maintenance 1,250,000$   $62,500 per annum for 20 years, with 
the first instalment due on the 
anniversary of the first loading and 
dispatch of coal.

No

Annual Contribution - Community Infrastructure 1,000,000$   $100,000 per annum for 10 years, 
with the first instalment due on the 
anniversary of the first loading and 
dispatch of coal.

No

Stocklands February 2007 Lump Sum - Contribution  $     250,000 Due within 10 days of issue of 
Construction Certificate in respect of 
proposed development.

No

Lump Sum - Roundabout Contribution  $     250,000 Due within 10 days of receipt by the 
Developer of written confirmation 
from Council that the roundabout has 
been completed.

No
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Stormwater Management Services  
 
Council has not levied an annual charge for stormwater management services during the year. 
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POLICY 
 
 
 
 
REF: insert reference 
REV: insert revision 
number 
 

FILE No A0110001 

Payment of Expenses and Provision 
of Facilities to Councillors 

 
 
 
 
PART 1: 
 

INTRODUCTION 

PURPOSE 
 
The purpose of this policy is to ensure that there is accountability and transparency in the 
reimbursement of expenses incurred or to be incurred by Councillors and that the facilities provided 
to assist Councillors to carry out their civic duties are reasonable. 

OBJECTIVES AND COVERAGE 
 
The objective of this policy is to provide a guide to Councillor's expenses and facilities, and the 
process for paying expenses in a way that can be properly recorded, reported and audited. 
 
The policy applies to all Councillors. The Mayor is entitled to specific additional facilities. 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 
This policy will be included in the Council’s Annual Report. In addition, the total amount of money 
spent during the relevant financial year through the application of this policy will be reported to the 
Council quarterly and in the Annual Report. 
 
LEGISLATIVE PROVISIONS 
 

 
Local Government Act 1993 

The relevant provisions of the Local Government Act 1993 are set out below: 
 
 
Section 252 Payment of expenses and provision of facilities  
 
(1) Within 5 months after the end of each year, a council must adopt a policy concerning the 

payment of expenses incurred or to be incurred by, and the provision of facilities to, the 
mayor, the deputy mayor (if there is one) and the other councillors in relation to 
discharging the functions of civic office. 

 
(2) The policy may provide for fees payable under this Division to be reduced by an amount 

representing the private benefit to the mayor or a councillor of a facility provided by the 
council to the mayor or councillor. 

 
(3) A council must not pay any expenses incurred or to be incurred by, or provide any facilities 

to, the mayor, the deputy mayor (if there is one) or a councillor otherwise than in 
accordance with a policy under this section. 

 

ADOPTED 
C/M 17/6/09 
Minute No.  115/09 
 

 



MID-WESTERN REGIONAL COUNCIL 
ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 
 

 

24 

(4) A council may from time to time amend a policy under this section. 
 
(5) A policy under this section must comply with the provisions of this Act, the regulations and 

any relevant guidelines issued under section 23A.  
 
Section 253 Requirements before policy concerning expenses and facilities can be 

adopted or amended  
 
(1) A council must give public notice of its intention to adopt or amend a policy for the payment 

of expenses or provision of facilities allowing at least 28 days for the making of public 
submissions. 

  
(2) Before adopting or amending the policy, the council must consider any submissions made 

within the time allowed for submissions and make any appropriate changes to the draft 
policy or amendment.  

 
(3) Despite subsections (1) and (2), a council need not give public notice of a proposed 

amendment to its policy for the payment of expenses or provision of facilities if the council 
is of the opinion that the proposed amendment is not substantial. 

 
(4) Within 28 days after adopting a policy or making an amendment to a policy for which public 

notice is required to be given under this section, a council is to forward to the Director-
General:  
(a) a copy of the policy or amendment together with details of all submissions received 

in accordance with subsection (1), and  
(b) a statement setting out, for each submission, the council’s response to the 

submission and the reasons for the council’s response, and  
(c) a copy of the notice given under subsection (1). 

 
(5) A council must comply with this section when proposing to adopt a policy each year in 

accordance with section 252 (1) even if the council proposes to adopt a policy that is the 
same as its existing policy. 

 
 
Section 254 Decision to be made in open meeting  
 
The council or a council committee all the members of which are councillors must not close to the 
public that part of its meeting at which a policy for the payment of expenses or provision of 
facilities is adopted or amended, or at which any proposal concerning those matters is discussed 
or considered.  
 
Section 12 (What information is publicly available) provides that the public is able to inspect 
during office hours at the council, and at no charge, the current version and the immediately 
preceding version of the council's expenses and facilities policy. The public are also entitled to 
a copy of the policy either free of charge or on payment of a reasonable copying charge. 
 
Section 23A (Director General’s guidelines) makes provision for the Director-General of the 
Department of Local Government to prepare, adopt or vary guidelines that relate to the 
exercise by a council of any of its functions. It also requires that a council must take the relevant 
guidelines into consideration before exercising any of its functions. 
 
 
 
Section 428(2)(f) (Annual Reports) requires a council to include in its annual report: 
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The total amount of money expended during the year on mayoral fees and councillor fees, the 
council's policy on the provision of facilities for use by councillors and the payment of councillors' 
expenses, together with a statement of the total amount of money expended during the year on 
the provision of such facilities and the payment of such expenses. 
 
In addition Section 428(r) requires that councils must report on any other information required 
by the regulations. 
 

 
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 

The relevant provisions of the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 are set out below: 
 
Clause 217 (Additional information for inclusion in annual reports) states in part: 
(1) For the purposes of section 428(2)(r) of the Act, an annual report of a council is to include 

the following information: 
(a) details (including the purpose) of overseas visits undertaken during the year by 

councillors, council staff or other persons representing the council (including visits 
sponsored by other organisations). 

(a1)  details of the total cost during the year of the payment of the expenses of, and the 
provision of facilities to, councillors in relation to their civic functions (as paid by the 
council, reimbursed to the councillor or reconciled with the councillor), including 
separate details on the total cost of each of the following:  
(i) the provision during the year of dedicated office equipment allocated to 
councillors on a personal basis, such as laptop computers, mobile telephones and 
landline telephones and facsimile machines installed in councillors’ homes 
(including equipment and line rental costs and internet access costs but not 
including call costs),  
(ii) telephone calls made by councillors, including calls made from mobile 
telephones provided by the council and from landline telephones and facsimile 
services installed in councillors’ homes,  
(iii) the attendance of councillors at conferences and seminars,  
(iv) the training of councillors and the provision of skill development for councillors,  
(v) interstate visits undertaken during the year by councillors while representing the 
council, including the cost of transport, the cost of accommodation and other out-of-
pocket travelling expenses,  
(vi) overseas visits undertaken during the year by councillors while representing the 
council, including the cost of transport, the cost of accommodation and other out-of-
pocket travelling expenses,  
(vii) the expenses of any spouse, partner (whether of the same or the opposite sex) 
or other person who accompanied a councillor in the performance of his or her civic 
functions, being expenses payable in accordance with the Guidelines for the 
payment of expenses and the provision of facilities for Mayors and Councillors for 
Local Councils in NSW prepared by the Director-General from time to time,  
(viii) expenses involved in the provision of care for a child of, or an immediate 
family member of, a councillor, to allow the councillor to undertake his or her civic 
functions,  
 

Clause 403 (Payment of expenses and provision of facilities) states: 
A policy under section 252 of the Local Government Act 1993 must not include any provision 
enabling a council: 
(a) to pay any councillor an allowance in the nature of a general expense allowance, or 
(b) to make a motor vehicle owned or leased by the council available for the exclusive or 

primary use or disposition of a particular councillor other than a mayor. 
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OTHER GOVERNMENT POLICY PROVISIONS 
 
DLG guidelines for payment of expenses and provision of facilities 
 
This policy takes into account the following Circulars: 
• Circular 05108 - Legal assistance for councillors and council employees. 
• Circular 02134 - Unauthorised use of council resources. 
These guidelines replace Circular 04160 Policy on payment of facilities to the mayor, deputy mayor 
and other councillors. 

Model Code of Conduct 
 
This is consistent with the Model Code of Conduct for Local Councils in NSW, Department of Local 
Government, and Council's Code of Conduct which implements the Model Code. 
 
The part of the Model Code headed `Use of Council resources' is particularly relevant to s252 policies, 
and is implemented by the Council’s Code of Conduct. 

ICAC publications 
 
Councillors should also be aware of and take account of the Independent Commission Against 
Corruption (ICAC) publication No Excuse for Misuse, preventing the misuse of council resources 
(Guidelines 2), November 2002. 
 
This publication is available on the ICAC website at www.icac.nsw.gov.au. 
 
APPROVAL ARRANGEMENTS 
 
Approval for attendance at conferences, seminars and the like under this policy will, subject to 
other decisions of Council, where possible, be approved by Council. On those occasions where 
this is not possible the approval will be given jointly by the Mayor and General Manager (in cases 
where this relates to the Mayor, the approval will be given jointly by the Deputy Mayor and 
General Manager) – following which a report will be presented to the next Council Meeting to 
confirm the action taken. 
 
PART 2: 
 

PAYMENT OF EXPENSES 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
Payment of expenses generally 
 

 
Allowances and expenses 

Council does not provide general allowances to councillors.  
 
Councillors are entitled to the expenses set out in this policy provided that they satisfy the stated 
requirements. 
 

 
Reimbursement and reconciliation of expenses 

Before Council will pay for an expense under this policy, Councillors must seek reimbursement in a 
formal written claim lodged not later than six (6) months after the expense was incurred. 
 
Each claim must include original receipts, or tax invoices (where GST applies), to be considered for 
reimbursement. 
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Claims will generally be paid within 14 days of receipt. 
 

 
Payment in advance 

Council will not generally make advance payments to Councillors. 
 
Spouse and partner expenses 
 
Payment of expenses incurred by a Councillor’s spouse or partner who may be accompanying the 
Councillor is dealt with in the respective sections of the policy. 
 
SPECIFIC EXPENSES FOR MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS 
 
Civic Business within the LGA 
 
a) Scope 
 
Expenses will be paid for Councillors to attend: 
• Meetings of the Council and Committees; 
• Meetings of other committees, bodies, organisations or groups to which those Councillors are 

Council delegates or representatives; 
• Other meetings or inspections which are authorised by the Council, the Mayor or the General 

Manager; and 
• Training courses, seminars or conferences authorised by the Council (except in those 

circumstances where there is insufficient time for a Council decision and it those cases the 
Mayor has the authority to approve the attendance and report back at the next Council meeting 
for endorsement of that decision); 

 
provided that the claim is made not later than six (6) months after the expenses were incurred. 
 
Note: Any claims submitted later than six (6) months after the expenses were incurred will 

not be eligible for reimbursement. 
 
b) Categories of Payment / Reimbursement 
 

 
Council and Committee Meetings 

(i) 
 

Travel 

Councillors are entitled to be reimbursed for the use of their private vehicle for 
travel to and from meetings. 
 
Payment will be based on the relevant kilometre rate in the staff award. 
 
The allowable distance claimed will be for travel, by the most practicable route from 
the Councillor’s usual place of residence or other place where the Councillor might 
be (whichever is the lesser), immediately prior to the meeting.  
 
 
 

(ii) 
 

Meals 
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Arrangements will be made for a meal to be provided at the conclusion of the 
meeting at a venue, in proximity to where the meeting is held, of which Councillors 
and staff in attendance may partake. 

 
 (iii) 
 

Accommodation 

 In those circumstances where, in the opinion of the Mayor or General Manager, 
because of the timing of the meeting, it would be impractical or introduce undue risk 
for the Councillor to travel home after the meeting, Council will meet reasonable 
accommodation costs (including sustenance and telephone calls) on the evening of 
the meeting for the Councillor. Accommodation will generally be booked by Council 
staff. 

 
 (iv) 
 

Spouses/Partners 

In those cases where the function is of such a nature that the Councillor’s 
spouse/partner would normally be expected to accompany the Councillor, any 
costs associated with the attendance of the spouse/partner will be met by Council. 

 

 

Meetings of other committees, bodies, organisations or groups to which those Councillors 
are Council delegates or representatives or other authorised meetings or inspections 

 (i) 
 

Travel 

Where Council vehicles are unavailable, Councillors may use their private motor 
vehicle. Councillors should check with the Executive Secretary to ascertain whether 
a Council vehicle is available and should make arrangements to collect the vehicle   
(vehicles will not generally be delivered to Councillors).  

 
Where a private motor vehicle is used, Councillors are entitled to be reimbursed for 
this use. 
 
Payment will be based on the relevant kilometre rate in the staff award. 
 
The allowable distance claimed will be for travel, by the most practicable route from 
the Councillor’s usual place of residence or other place where the Councillor might 
be (whichever is the lesser), immediately prior to the meeting or inspection. 
 

(ii) 
 

Out-of Pocket Expenses 

Reasonable out-of-pocket expenses will be reimbursed for costs associated with 
attendance, including entertainment, but excluding expenses of a normal personal 
nature. 
 

(iii) 
 

Accommodation 

 In those circumstances where, in the opinion of the Mayor or General Manager, 
because of the timing of the meeting, it would be impractical or introduce undue risk 
for the Councillor to travel home after the meeting, Council will meet reasonable 
accommodation costs (including sustenance and telephone calls) on the evening of 
the meeting for the Councillor. Accommodation will generally be booked by Council 
staff. 
 

(iv) Spouses/Partners 
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In those cases where the function is of such a nature that the Councillor’s 
spouse/partner would normally be expected to accompany the Councillor, any 
costs associated with the attendance of the spouse/partner will be met by Council. 

  

 
Training Courses, Seminars or Conferences 

(i) 
 

Registration 

Includes registration fees for attendance at conferences, seminars etc as well as 
associated official luncheons, dinners and tours. 

 
(ii) 

 
Travel 

Where Council vehicles are unavailable Councillors may use their private motor 
vehicle. Councillors should check with the Executive Secretary in the first instance 
to ascertain whether a Council vehicle is available and should make arrangements 
to collect the vehicle (vehicles will not generally be delivered to Councillors).  
 
Where a private motor vehicle is used, Councillors are entitled to be reimbursed for 
this use. 
 
Payment will be based on the relevant kilometre rate in the staff award. 
 
The allowable distance claimed will be for travel, by the most practicable route from 
the Councillor’s usual place of residence or other place where the Councillor might 
be (whichever is the lesser), immediately prior to the meeting or inspection. 

 
(iii) 

 
Out-of-Pocket Expenses 

Reasonable out-of-pocket expenses will be reimbursed for costs associated with 
attendance, including entertainment, but excluding expenses of a normal private 
nature. 

 
 (iv) 
 

Accommodation 

 In those circumstances where, in the opinion of the Mayor or General Manager, 
because of the timing of the training course, seminar or conference, it would be 
impractical or introduce undue risk for the Councillor to travel home after the 
training course, seminar or conference, Council will meet reasonable 
accommodation costs (including sustenance and telephone calls) on the evening of 
the training course, seminar or conference, for the Councillor. Accommodation will 
generally be booked by Council staff. 

 
 (v) 

 
Spouses/Partners 

In those cases where the function is of such a nature that the Councillor’s 
spouse/partner would normally be expected to accompany the Councillor, any 
costs associated with the attendance of the spouse/partner will be met by Council. 

 
 
 
Civic Business outside the LGA 
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a) Scope 
 
Expenses will be paid for Councillors to attend: 
• Conferences, seminars and training courses at which attendance has been authorised by the 

Council (except in those circumstances where there is insufficient time for a Council decision 
and it those cases the Mayor has the authority to approve the attendance and report back at 
the next Council meeting for endorsement of that decision); 

• Meetings of other Councils while representing and as authorised by Council or the Mayor; 
• Meetings of other committees, bodies, organisations or groups to which those Councillors are 

Council delegates or representatives; and 
• Other meetings or inspections which are authorised by the Council, the Mayor or the General 

Manager. 
provided that the claim is made not later than six (6) months after the expenses were incurred. 
 
Note: Any claims submitted later than six (6) months after the expenses were incurred will 

not be eligible for reimbursement. 
 
b) Categories of Payment/Reimbursement 
 

(i) 
 

Registration 

Includes registration fees for attendance at conferences, seminars etc as well as 
associated official luncheons, dinners and tours. 

 
(ii) 
 

Travel 

Council will either pay or reimburse Councillors for travel by air, private motor 
vehicle, rail or taxi/hire car, as appropriate and as set out below: (With all travel 
arrangements, due consideration is to be given to the physical capacity of the 
Councillor and any variation to the arrangements below will be with the approval of 
the Mayor). 

 
(A) 
 

Air 

Where travel is undertaken by air, this will be by economy class subject to 
any flight longer than three (3) hours being by business class. All bookings 
for travel will generally be made by Council staff. 

 
(B) 
 

Private Motor Vehicle 

Where Council vehicles are unavailable Councillors may use their private 
motor vehicle. Councillors should check with the Executive Secretary in the 
first instance to ascertain whether a Council vehicle is available and make 
arrangements to collect the vehicle (vehicles will not generally be delivered 
to Councillors). 

 
Where a private motor vehicle is used, Councillors are entitled to be 
reimbursed for this use. 
 
Payment will be based on the relevant kilometre rate in the staff award. 
 
 
The allowable distance claimed will be for travel, by the most practicable 
route from the Councillor’s usual place of residence or other place where 
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the Councillor might be (whichever is the lesser), immediately prior to the 
meeting, function, training course, seminar or conference. 

 
This claim will be subject to the cost not exceeding the economy class airfare as 
applicable. 
 

Note: Sharing of travel arrangements for Councillors of any gender doing business 
outside the LGA be at the mutual agreement of the Councillors involved. 

 
(C) 
 

Rail 

Where travel is undertaken by train, Council will meet the cost of first class 
ticket, or equivalent, including sleeping berths where necessary. 

 
(D) 
 

Taxi/Hire Car 

Where travel is undertaken by taxi/hire car, Council will reimburse fares paid 
upon presentation of relevant receipts.  

 
(iii) 

 
Accommodation 

 Council will meet reasonable costs (including sustenance and telephone charges) 
including the night before and after the meeting, training course, seminar or 
conference where necessary. Accommodation will generally be booked by Council 
staff. 

 
Note: Sharing of accommodation for Councillors of any gender doing business outside 

the LGA be at the mutual agreement of the Councillors involved. 
 
(iv) 
 

Out-of-Pocket Expenses 

Reasonable out-of-pocket expenses will be reimbursed for costs associated with 
attendance, including entertainment, but excluding expenses of a normal private 
nature. 

 
(v) 
 

Spouses/Partners 

Where a Councillor is accompanied by his/her spouse/partner, accommodation 
(shared basis) will be met by Council. All other costs will be the responsibility of the 
spouse/partner. 
 
In exceptional circumstances Council may, by resolution, pay expenses incurred by 
the spouse/partner of the Councillor incurred whilst they are travelling on Council 
business. 

 
Care and other related expenses 
 
Councillors can claim up to $100 per month for reimbursement of carer expenses that were 
incurred while attending Council business. This may include childcare expenses and the care of 
immediate family members of Councillors who are elderly, have a disability and/or are sick. 
Reimbursement of childcare expenses will be made for children under 16 years of age only.  
Expenses will be paid on production of receipts. 
 
Communications expenses 
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Telephone 

Subject to the wishes of individual Councillors: 
 
• Council will install a dedicated duet/additional line at a location designated by the Councillor 

and will meet the installation costs of a combined Telephone/Facsimile/Answering Machine. 
Council will maintain the machine  and will meet the cost of line rental and network charges as 
well as providing consumables for official purposes; or 

• Alternatively, a Councillor may use his/or her own equipment (including mobile). In this 
instance Council will meet the line rental costs and network charges and will provide 
consumables for official purposes. 

 

 
Internet 

Subject to the wishes of individual Councillors: 
 
• Council will provide Broadband internet access (with unlimited download limit) in accordance 

with Council’s current internet plan; or 
• Alternatively, a Councillor may use his/her own internet facilities and Council will reimburse an 

amount equivalent to Council’s current internet plan.  
 

 
Ongoing costs 

Council will meet the cost of official calls and usage. 
 

 
Provision for payment and monetary limits 

Council will only pay claims for reimbursement of communications expenses upon production of 
original receipts or tax invoices and completion of Council’s claim form which is to be lodged not 
later than six (6) months after the expense was incurred. 
 
In respect of official calls and usage, subject to the provision of the relevant receipts or invoices, 
Council will reimburse Councillors up to a maximum of $100 per month or $200 per month in the 
case of the Mayor. 
 
Councillors will be responsible for all expenses above this amount.  
 

 
Exceptional circumstances 

Should a situation arise where the strict application of this section of the policy would adversely 
affect and/or cause undue hardship to a Councillor, the Council may, by resolution, increase the 
maximum quantum available to that Councillor. 
 
Insurance Expenses and obligations 
 
Councillors will receive the benefit of insurance cover for: 
 
• Personal injury while on Council business. The cover does not include medical expenses 

for illness in Australia.  
• Professional indemnity for matters arising out of Councillors' performance of civic duties or 

exercise of their functions as Councillors provided the performance or exercise of the 
relevant civic duty is, in the opinion of Council, in good faith or proper. This is subject to 



MID-WESTERN REGIONAL COUNCIL 
ANNUAL REPORT 2008/09 
 

 

33 

any limitations or conditions set out in the policy of insurance that is taken out from time to 
time.  

• Public liability for matters arising out of Councillors’ performance of civic duties or exercise 
of their functions under the Local Government Act. This is subject to any limitations or 
conditions set out in the policy of insurance that is taken out from time to time. 

• Councillors and Officers liability. This policy provides protection in respect of actions 
against the individual Councillors in addition to legal costs incurred by them in defending 
an allegation of a wrongful act made in the course of their duties as Councillors. This is 
subject to any limitations or conditions set out in the policy of insurance that is taken out 
from time to time.  

 
Legal expenses and obligations 
 
Council may by resolution indemnify or reimburse the reasonable legal expenses of: 
 
• A Councillor defending an action arising from the performance in good faith of a function under 

the Local Government Act 1993; or 
• A Councillor defending an action in defamation provided the statements complained of were 

made in good faith while exercising a function under the Local Government Act 1993; or 
• A Councillor for proceedings before the Local Government Pecuniary Interest and Disciplinary 

Tribunal, or an investigative body, provided the subject of the proceedings arises from the 
performance in good faith or a function under the Local Government Act 1993 and the Tribunal 
or investigative body makes no adverse finding against the Councillor. 

 
Council will not: 
 
• Meet expenses incurred in relation to proceedings arising merely from something that a 

Councillor has done during his or her term of office; or 
• Meet the costs of an action in defamation taken by a Councillor as plaintiff in any 

circumstances; or 
• Meet the costs of a Councillor seeking advice in respect of possible defamation, or in seeking 

a non-litigious remedy for possible defamation. 
 
 
PART 3: 
 

PROVISION OF FACILITIES 

Councillors 
 
The Councillors are to receive the benefit of the following Council facilities:- 
 
a) Meeting Meals and Refreshments - provision of meals and refreshments associated with 

Council, Committee and Working Parties/Special Committee meetings. 
 
b) Transportation - provision of Council motor vehicle transportation (when available) for 

travel to conferences, seminars, etc when on official Council business. 
 

Where a Council vehicle is provided to a Councillor for use on official business, the vehicle 
may: 
• With the consent of the Councillor, be driven by the Councillor’s spouse or partner as 

long as that person is legally licensed to drive the Council vehicle; or 
• Provided the Councillor is in the vehicle at the time, be driven by any other fully 

licensed driver. 
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c) Meeting Rooms - Provision of meeting facilities in the Mudgee Administration Building for 
the purpose of Council, Committee and Working Parties/Special Committee meetings, and 
for meeting with constituents. 

 
d) Photocopiers - provision of photocopying facilities generally for official purposes. 
 
e) Combined Telephone/Facsimile/Answering Machine – for official purposes. 

 
f) At the discretion of the individual Councillor, Personal desktop or laptop computer with 

access to the internet and appropriate Council software to a maximum value of $5,000 – 
for official purposes. Council will provide associated training and software support.   

  
g) Where practicable, provision of a Councillors room, incorporating meeting facilities, 

computer workstation, telephone, etc. 
 
h) Provision of an Email address for Councillors, as requested, to facilitate access to 

Council’s electronic mail. 
 
i) Business Cards for his/her role as an elected representative. 
 
j) A suitable name badge. 
 
k) Protective apparel, including (where appropriate), hard hat, safety vest, safety footwear 

and sunscreen for on-site inspections. 
 
Mayor 
 
In addition to those facilities provided to the Councillors, the Mayor is to receive the benefit of: 
 
a) Council Vehicle - (Ford Fairlane Ghia or equivalent) for official purposes.  The vehicle to be 

used at the discretion of the Mayor for Mayoral, Councillor or Council purposes. A fuel card 
will be provided for use only with the Mayoral vehicle. 

 
 
When the Mayor or another Councillor is using the Mayoral vehicle on official business, the 
vehicle may: 
• With the consent of the Mayor or Councillor, be driven by the spouse or partner of the 

Mayor or Councillor as long as that person is legally licensed to drive the Council 
vehicle; or 

• Provided the Mayor or Councillor is in the vehicle at the time, be driven by any other 
fully licensed driver. 

 
b) Mobile Telephone with a car kit - for official Council purposes. 
 
 Council will meet the costs of service charges and official usage costs, with the Mayor to 

reimburse Council in respect of any private expenses incurred. 
 
c) Corporate Credit Card, to facilitate payment of official Council business expenses. 
 
d) Official stationary incorporating Mayoral letterhead for official Council correspondence 

issued under the hand of the Mayor. 
 
e) Business Cards for his/her role as Mayor. 
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f) Secretarial Services - word-processing and administrative support provided by the 
Executive Secretary. 

 
g) Administrative Support - assistance with functions, organisations, meetings, and the like. 
 
h) Office Refreshments - as provided in the Mayoral Office for entertainment purposes. 
 
i) Where practicable, provision of an appropriate office, suitable for interviews and small civic 

receptions. 
 
j) Use of ceremonial clothing including Mayoral Robes and chains of office. 
 
k) A suitable name badge. 
 
Deputy Mayor 
 
In addition to those facilities provided to the Councillors, the Deputy Mayor is to receive the 
benefits of the Mayor when acting in the Office of Mayor. 
 
 
COUNCILLORS WITH DISABILITIES 
 
In addition to other clauses on this policy regarding the provision of facilities to Councillors, in the 
event of a Councillor having a disability that would prevent them from performing their civic duties 
without the provision of additional facilities, where necessary, and with the agreement of the 
Mayor and General Manager, additional appropriate facilities will be made available to that 
Councillor. 
 
 
PART 4: 
 

OTHER MATTERS 

ACQUISITION AND RETURNING OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT BY COUNCILLORS 
 
All equipment issued to Councillors remains the property of Council and shall be returned on a 
Councillor ceasing to hold office. 
 
However, on ceasing to be a Councillor or in the event of Council deciding to dispose of the 
equipment, a Councillor may request the purchase of such equipment. The General Manager shall 
consider each request and, where appropriate any leasing arrangements of such equipment. If the 
equipment is available to be sold, the General Manager will determine an “appropriate purchase 
price” based on fair market value and as suggested by the leasing company or the general market 
 
CLAIMS FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES 
 
Expenses claim forms to facilitate claims for reimbursement of travel, meals, registration, 
accommodation and out-of-pocket expenses and the communications reimbursement claims will 
be provided to Councillors at each Council meeting. 
 
Completed and signed claim forms will be processed by staff in accordance with this policy and 

 
will be submitted monthly to the General Manager for approval. 
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Overview

(i) This Financial Report covers the consolidated operations for Mid-Western Regional Council.

(ii) Mid-Western Regional Council is a body corporate of NSW, Australia - being constituted as a Local Government
area by proclamation and is duly empowered by the Local Government Act (LGA) 1993 of NSW.

Council's Statutory Charter is specified in Section 8 of the LGA and includes;

carrying out activities and providing goods, services & facilities appropriate to the current & future
needs of the Local community and of the wider public

responsibility for administering regulatory requirements under the LGA and other applicable legislation, &

a role in the management, improvement and development of the resources of the local government area.

A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).

(iii) All figures presented in this Financial Report represent Australian Currency.

(iv) This Financial Report was authorised for issue by the Council on 25/09/09.
Council has the power to amend and reissue the financial report.
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Income Statement
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$ '000

Income from Continuing Operations
Revenue:
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest & Investment Revenue
Other Revenues
Grants & Contributions provided for Operating Purposes
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes
Other Income:
Net gains from the disposal of assets
Net Share of interests in Joint Ventures & Associated
Entities using the Equity Method

Total Income from Continuing Operations

Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Borrowing Costs
Materials & Contracts
Depreciation & Amortisation
Impairment
Other Expenses
Interest & Investment Losses
Net Losses from the Disposal of Assets

Total Expenses from Continuing Operations

Operating Result from Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations

Net Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Net Operating Result for the Year

Net Operating Result attributable to Council
Net Operating Result attributable to Minority Interests

Net Operating Result for the year before Grants and
Contributions provided for Capital Purposes

Original Budget as approved by Council - refer Note 16

584            

33              

4,155         3,809         

13,989       11,602       
530            

1,353         

-                   

4b

3e,f

3a
3b
3c
3d

12,138       
2,055         

4d

10,357       

2,218            

-                 

2,620            

-                   

10,084       

-                 

(1)

5,650      

-                 

-                 

42,791       

242            

-                 

-                 
3,769         4e

-                 
3c
5

17,044       

10,255          

-                 

12,080       
610            

10,255    

42,049       

10,255       

8,546         

2009 2008

42,838       

5,650         

-                 
8,545         

18,717       

3e,f

5 -                 

4a 16,801       

19

9,670         

24

-                   

1,365         

-                 

10,084          

10,033       
3,961         

15,669       

-                 

-                 

48,488       

1,985         

Budget(1)

2009   

10,160       
1,221         

18,748       

Notes
ActualActual

19,018       

2,056         

-                 

2,431         

52,875       52,304       

-                 

10,053       
7,635         

12,515       
7,866         

4c
4d

1,689            

10,084    

5,650            

This report should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes. page 3
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Balance Sheet
 as at 30 June 2009

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as "held for sale"
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Investments accounted for using the equity method
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Other
Total Non-Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Net Assets

EQUITY
Retained Earnings
Revaluation Reserves
Council Equity Interest
Minority Equity Interest

Total Equity 365,525    

10

20

1,180            

20

8,187            

7,143            

-                    

-                    

509               

383,079      

-                    

-                    
136               

-                    

-                    

17,554        

90,662          
274,863        

3,473            

2,133            

8,012            

9,542            

369,118      

4,033            

343,014        

7,250            

Actual

8,192            

2009 2008

4,318            

-                    

681               
4,715            

-                    
221               

88,120          

365,525    

264,619        

331,521        

50                 

-                    
329,128        

2                   

-                    
2,195            

37,597          

1,821            

-                    

338,777        

65                 

124               

6a

615               

22

2,950            

8
8

9

525               

7

2,823            3,189            

8

6b

6b

Notes

7

33,259          

40,065          

26,934          

Actual

16,379        

19

10

8
25
14

10

352,739        
-                    

352,739    

1,049            

-                    
6,832            

365,525        

352,739    

10

10

10

This report should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes. page 4
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Statement of Changes in Equity
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$ '000

Opening Balance (as per Last Year's Audited Accounts)

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors
b. Changes in Accounting Policies (prior year effects)
Revised Opening Balance (as at 1/7/08)

c. Current Year Income & Expenses Recognised
    direct to Equity

- Transfers to/(from) Asset Revaluation Reserve
- Transfers to/(from) Other Reserves
- Other Income/Expenses recognised
- Other Adjustments

Net Income Recognised Directly in Equity

d. Net Operating Result for the Year
Total Recognised Income & Expenses (c&d)

e. Distributions to/(Contributions from) Minority Interests

f. Transfers between Equity

Equity - Balance at end of the reporting period

$ '000

Opening Balance (as per Last Year's Audited Accounts)

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors
b. Changes in Accounting Policies (prior year effects)

Revised Opening Balance (as at 1/7/07)

c. Current Year Income & Expenses Recognised
    direct to Equity

- Transfers to/(from) Asset Revaluation Reserve
- Transfers to/(from) Other Reserves
- Other Income/Expenses recognised
- Other Adjustments

Net Income Recognised Directly in Equity

d. Net Operating Result for the Year
Total Recognised Income & Expenses (c&d)

e. Distributions to/(Contributions from) Minority Interests

f. Transfers between Equity

Equity - Balance at end of the reporting period

Interest

20b (ii)

-                

-                

352,739     

20b (ii) -                

12,786        

Equity

62              

352,739     

10,084       

2,702         

2,640         

352,739     

-                

Reserves

62              

274,863     

-                

-                
352,739     

-                -                
264,619     

2,640         

-                
88,120       

20b (ii)

67,008        

67,008       

20 (d)

20 (c)

Retained

-                
20b (ii)

20b (ii)

-                

-                

-                
5,650          

-                

-                -                

-                -                

-                
-                -                

-                -                

264,619     88,120       

-                -                

352,739     

-                

2,702         

-                

(312)          

21,112       

Equity

62              

72,658        

-                

280,081     

280,081     

Minority

-                

Equity

-                

365,525     

-                

-                

-                

Total

-                

-                
-                

-                
-                

Minority

-                

-                

Interest

Council

Council

10,084       

-                

280,081     

72,658        

-                
-                

67,008       

-                  
5,650         

-                

-                

67,320       

280,081     

-                

-                

-                

-                
-                

-                

21,112       

(312)          
-                

-                67,320       

-                

-                
-                

20b (ii)

258,969     

20b (ii)

258,969     

-                
-                

5,650         

20b (ii)

EarningsNotes

20 (d)

20 (c)

2009

2008

(Refer 20b)

-                2,640         

10,084       -                

-                

-                

-                

-                

-                

90,662       

2,702         

-                

-                

10,084        12,786        2,702          -                  

Earnings (Refer 20b)

Retained Reserves

Interest

(160)          

-                352,739     

365,525     

-                

-                

Total

-                

-                
-                

Interest Equity

-                

Notes

88,120       

160            

-                

-                -                

264,619     

-                
-                

5,650         

67,320       

(312)          

67,008       

-                

This report should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes. page 5
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Cash Flow Statement
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$ '000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts:
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest & Investment Revenue Received
Grants & Contributions
Other
Payments:
Employee Benefits & On-Costs
Materials & Contracts
Borrowing Costs
Other

Net Cash provided (or used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Receipts:
Sale of Investment Securities
Sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Payments:
Purchase of Investment Securities
Purchase of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Purchase of Real Estate Assets

Net Cash provided (or used in) Investing Activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Receipts:
Proceeds from Borrowings & Advances
Payments:
Repayment of Borrowings & Advances
Repayment of Finance Lease Liabilities

Net Cash Flow provided (used in) Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents - beginning of year

Cash & Cash Equivalents - end of the year

Please refer to Note 11 for information on the following:
- Non Cash Financing & Investing Activities.
- Financing Arrangements.
- Net cash flow disclosures relating to any Discontinued Operations

2,907            

Notes

(17,328)         

1,221            
9,660            

18,168          

1,556            
17,688          

2009
Budget

2,981            

(12,878)         

(3,769)           
(566)              

13,752        11b

(512)              

15,716        

-                    7,250            

21,425        

(5,961)           

-                    (2,950)           

(21,739)       

(19,857)         (29,946)         
-                    (117)              

34,058          11a 26,934          

(26,965)       

(12,196)       

-                    

6,325          

-                    -                    

(6,492)         

(104)              

(469)            

33,259     26,934     21,862      11a

33,426          

(483)              
(115)              

1,017          (483)            

1,500            

(14,617)       

-                    
(15,076)         

1,057            1,137            

(7,800)           

(365)              

12,892          

(383)              
(4,638)           

(12,866)         

2,900            

(368)              

12,080          

2009

18,740          

2008
Actual

(16,334)         

2,116            
21,126          

(15,838)         
(15,250)         

14,372          
2,719            

19,071          

Actual

This report should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes. page 6
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements

Details

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Council Functions / Activities - Financial Information
Council Functions / Activities - Component Descriptions
Income from Continuing Operations
Expenses from Continuing Operations
Gains or Losses from the Disposal of Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets
Investments
Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments - details
Receivables
Inventories & Other Assets
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Restricted Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment - Current Year Impairments
Payables, Borrowings & Provisions
Description of (& movements in) Provisions
Reconciliation of Cash Flow movements & additional information
Commitments for Expenditure
Statement of Performance Measures - Indicators
Statement of Performance Measures - Graphs
Investment Properties
Financial Risk Management disclosures
Material Budget Variations
Statement of Developer Contributions
Contingencies and Other Liabilities/Assets not recognised
Investments in Subsidiaries, Associated Entities & Joint Ventures
Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves
Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund

Non Current Assets and Disposal Groups classified as "Held for Sale"
Events occurring after Balance Sheet date
Discontinued Operations
Intangible Assets
Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & Restoration Liabilities

Additional Disclosures

Council Information & Contact Details

n/a  -  not applicable

76

63

75

65

72

78

77

45
47
48

49

74

75

58 n/a

69 n/a

53

48 n/a

70

51

67

56

59

50

57

44

39

8
26
27
29
35

40
40
42

7
8

9(a)
9(b)

27

12
13

20

25

23

Note

22

14

10(a)
10(b)

17
18

4

Page

1

19

15
16

11

2(a)

3
2(b)

6(b)
6(a)
5

26

6(c)

9(c)

21

24

13a
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
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The principal accounting policies adopted by Council 
in the preparation of this financial report are set out 
below in order to assist in its general understanding. 
 
Under Australian Equivalents to International 
Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS), accounting 
policies are defined as those specific principles, 
bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by a 
reporting entity (in this case Council) in preparing 
and presenting it’s financial reports. 
 
 
(a) Basis of preparation 
 
(i) Background 
 
This financial report is a general purpose financial 
report which has been prepared in accordance with; 
 
 applicable Australian equivalents to International 

Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRSs), 
 
 other authoritative pronouncements of the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board, 
 
 Urgent Issues Group Interpretations, 

 
 the Local Government Act (1993) and 

Regulations and 
 
 the Local Government Code of Accounting 

Practice and Financial Reporting. 
 
(ii) Compliance with International Financial  
     Reporting Standards (IFRSs) 
 
Australian Accounting Standards (AASB’s) include 
Australian equivalents to International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS’s). 
 
Because AASB’s are sector neutral, some standards 
either (i) have local Australian content and 
prescription that is specific to the Not-For-Profit 
sector (including Local Government) which are not in 
compliance with IFRS’s or (ii) specifically exclude 
application by Not for Profit entities. 
 
Examples include; 
 
 excluding Local Government from applying AASB 

120 (IAS 20) for Grant Accounting and AASB 118 
(IAS 18) for Segment Reporting, and 
 

 different requirements on (a) Impairment of Assets 
relating to Not-For-Profit AASB 136 (IAS 36) and 
(b) AASB 116 (IAS 16) regarding accounting for 
the Revaluation of Assets. 

 
Accordingly in preparing this Financial Report and 
Accompanying Notes, Council has been unable to 
comply fully with International Accounting 
Standards, but it has complied fully with 
Australian Accounting Standards. 

 
Under the Local Government Act, Regulations and 
Local Government Code of Accounting Practice & 
Financial Reporting, it should be noted that Councils 
in NSW only have a requirement to comply with 
Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
(iii) Application of AAS 27 
 
AAS 27 – Financial Reporting by Local Government 
was withdrawn from use from 1 July 2008. 
 
All key elements however of the former Standard 
have been incorporated into other current Standards 
including AASB 1051, 1052 and 1004. 
 
(iv) Basis of Accounting 
 
These financial statements have been prepared on an 
historical cost basis except for (i) financial assets 
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, 
available-for-sale financial assets and investment 
properties which are all valued at fair value, (ii) the 
write down of any Asset on the basis of Impairment (if 
warranted) and (iii) certain classes of Infrastructure, 
property, plant & equipment that are accounted for at 
Fair Valuation. 
 
The accrual basis of accounting has also been 
applied in their preparation. 
 
(v) Changes in Accounting Policies 
 
Council’s accounting policies have been consistently 
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise 
stated. 
 
Unless otherwise stated, there have also been no 
changes in accounting policies when compared with 
previous financial reports. 
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(vi) Critical Accounting Estimates 
 
The preparation of this financial report (and financial 
statements) requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates (in conformity with AIFRS). 
It also requires Council management to exercise 
their judgement in the process of applying Council’s 
accounting policies. 
 
 
(b) Revenue recognition 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. 
 
Revenue is measured on major income categories 
as follows: 
 
Rates, Annual Charges, Grants and 
Contributions 
 
Rates, annual charges, grants and contributions 
(including developer contributions) are recognised 
as revenues when the Council obtains control over 
the assets comprising these receipts. 
 
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual 
charges is obtained at the commencement of the 
rating year as it is an enforceable debt linked to the 
rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of 
the rates. 
 
Control over granted assets is normally obtained 
upon their receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier 
notification that a grant has been secured, and is 
valued at their fair value at the date of transfer. 
 
Income from Contributions is recognised when the 
Council either obtains control of the contribution or 
the right to receive it, and (i) it is probable that the 
economic benefits comprising the contribution will 
flow to the Council and (ii) the amount of the 
contribution can be measured reliably. 
 
Where grants or contributions recognised as 
revenues during the financial year were obtained on 
condition that they be expended in a particular 
manner or used over a particular period and those 
conditions were undischarged at balance date, the 
unused grant or contribution is disclosed in Note 
3(g). 
 

Note 3(g) also discloses the amount of unused grant 
or contribution from prior years that was expended on 
Council’s operations during the current year. 
 
The Council has obligations to provide facilities from 
contribution revenues levied on developers under the 
provisions of S94 of the EPA Act 1979. 
  
Whilst Council generally incorporates these amounts 
as part of a Development Consents Order, such 
developer contributions are only recognised as 
income upon their physical receipt by Council, due to 
the possibility that individual Development Consents 
may not be acted upon by the applicant and 
accordingly would not be payable to Council. 
 
Developer contributions may only be expended for the 
purposes for which the contributions were required 
but the Council may apply contributions according to 
the priorities established in work schedules. 
 
A detailed Note relating to developer contributions can 
be found at Note 17. 
 
User Charges, Fees and Other Income 
 
User charges, fees and other income (including 
parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue 
when the service has been provided, the payment is 
received, or when the penalty has been applied, 
whichever first occurs. 
 
A provision for the impairment of these receivables is 
recognised when collection in full is no longer 
probable. 
 
A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is 
reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite 
service has not been provided as at balance date. 
 
Sale of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and 
Equipment 
 
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined 
when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to 
the buyer. 
 
Interest and Rents 
 
Rents are recognised as revenue on a proportional 
basis when the payment is due, the value of the 
payment is notified, or the payment is received, 
whichever first occurs. 
 



 

   Financial Report 2009 

 
 
Mid-Western Regional Council 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009 
 
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 

 
  page 10 
 

Interest Income from Cash & Investments is 
accounted for using the Effective Interest method in 
accordance with AASB 139. 
 
 
(c) Principles of Consolidation 
 
These financial reports incorporate (i) the assets and 
liabilities of Council and any entities (or operations) 
that it controls (as at 30/6/09) and (ii) all the related 
operating results (for the financial year ended the 
30th June 2009). 
 
The Financial Reports also include Council’s share 
of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of any 
Jointly Controlled Operations under the 
appropriate headings. 
 
In the process of reporting on Council’s activities as 
a single unit, all inter-entity year end balances and 
reporting period transactions have been eliminated 
in full between Council and its controlled entities. 
 
(i) The Consolidated Fund 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) 
of the LGA 1993, all money and property received by 
Council is held in the Council’s Consolidated Fund 
unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust 
Fund. 
 
The Consolidated Fund and other entities through 
which the Council controls resources to carry on its 
functions have been included in the financial 
statements forming part of this report. 
 
The following entities have been included as part of 
the Consolidated Fund: 
 
• General Purpose Operations 
• Water Supply 
• Waste Water Services 
• Activities subject to Special Benefit Rates 
 
• Mudgee Showground Committee (s355) 
• Mudgee Sports Council (s355) 
• Gulgong Sports Council (s355) 
• Red Hill Centre Committee (s355) 
 
(ii) The Trust Fund 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of 
the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended), a 
separate and distinct Trust Fund is maintained to 

account for all money and property received by the 
Council in trust which must be applied only for the 
purposes of or in accordance with the trusts relating to 
those monies. 
 
Trust monies and property subject to Council’s control 
have been included in these reports. 
 
Trust monies and property held by Council but not 
subject to the control of Council, have been excluded 
from these reports. 
 
A separate statement of monies held in the Trust 
Fund is available for inspection at the Council office 
by any person free of charge. 
 
(iii) Joint Venture Entities 
 
Jointly Controlled Assets & Operations 
 
The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities 
and expenses of a Joint Venture Activity have been 
incorporated throughout the financial statements 
under the appropriate headings. 
 
Jointly Controlled Entities 
 
Any interests in Joint Venture Entities & Partnerships 
are accounted for using the equity method and is 
carried at cost. 
 
Under the equity method, the share of the profits or 
losses of the partnership is recognised in the income 
statement, and the share of movements in retained 
earnings & reserves is recognised in the balance 
sheet.  
 
Details relating to such Entities and Partnerships 
(where applicable) are set out in Note 19. 
 
(iv) Associated Entities 
 
Where Council has the power to participate in the 
financial and operating decisions (of another entity), 
ie. where Council is deemed to have “significant 
influence” over the other entities operations but 
neither controls nor jointly controls the entity, then 
Council accounts for such interests using the Equity 
Method of Accounting – in a similar fashion to Joint 
Venture Entities & Partnerships. 
 
Such entities are usually termed “Associates”. 
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(v) County Councils 
 
Council is not a member of any County Councils. 
 
(vi) Additional Information 
 
Note 19 provides more information in relation to 
Joint Venture Entities, Associated Entities and Joint 
Venture Operations where applicable. 
 
 
(d) Leases 
 
All Leases entered into by Council are reviewed and 
classified on inception date as either Finance or 
Operating Leases. 
 
Finance Leases 
 
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the 
Council has substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership are classified as finance leases. 
 
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s 
inception at the lower of the fair value of the leased 
property and the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. 
 
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance 
charges, are included in borrowings. 
 
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability 
outstanding and the recognition of a finance charge. 
 
The interest element of the finance charge is costed 
to the income statement over the lease period so as 
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
remaining balance of the liability for each period. 
 
Property, plant and equipment acquired under 
finance leases is depreciated over the shorter of 
each leased asset’s useful life and the lease term. 
 
Operating Leases 
 
Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are 
classified as operating leases. 
 
Payments made under operating leases (net of any 
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to 
the income statement on a straight-line basis over 
the period of the lease. 

Lease income from operating leases is recognised in 
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
 
(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents includes; 
 
 cash on hand, 

 
 deposits held at call with financial institutions, 

 
 other short-term, highly liquid investments with 

original maturities of three months or less that 
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of 
changes in value, and 

 
 bank overdrafts. 

 
Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in 
current liabilities on the balance sheet but are 
incorporated into Cash & Cash Equivalents for 
presentation of the Cash Flow Statement. 
 
 
(f) Investments and Other Financial Assets 
 
Council (in accordance with AASB 139) classifies 
each of its investments into one of the following 
categories for measurement purposes: 
 
 financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss, 
 
 loans and receivables,  

 
 held-to-maturity investments, and 

 
 available-for-sale financial assets. 

 
Each classification depends on the purpose/intention 
for which the investment was acquired & at the time it 
was acquired. 
 
Management determines each Investment 
classification at the time of initial recognition and re-
evaluates this designation at each reporting date. 
 
(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit  
    or loss 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
include financial assets that are “held for trading”. 
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A financial asset is classified in the “held for trading” 
category if it is acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling in the short term. 
 
Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless 
they are designated as hedges. 
 
Assets in this category are classified as current 
assets as they are primarily held for trading &/or are 
expected to be realised within 12 months of the 
balance sheet date. 
 
(ii) Loans and receivables 
 
Loans and receivables are non derivative financial 
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. 
 
They arise when the Council provides money, goods 
or services directly to a debtor with no intention (or in 
some cases ability) of selling the resulting 
receivable. 
 
They are included in current assets, except for those 
with maturities greater than 12 months after the 
balance sheet date which are classified as non-
current assets. 
 
(iii) Held-to-maturity investments 
 
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities that the Council’s management 
has the positive intention and ability to hold to 
maturity. 
 
In contrast to the “Loans & Receivables” 
classification, these investments are generally 
quoted in an active market. 
 
Held-to-maturity financial assets are included in non-
current assets, except for those with maturities less 
than 12 months from the reporting date, which are 
classified as current assets. 
 
(iv) Available-for-sale financial assets 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this category 
or not classified in any of the other categories. 
 
Investments must be designated as available-for-
sale if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or 

determinable payments and management intends to 
hold them for the medium to long term. 
 
Accordingly, this classification principally comprises 
marketable equity securities, but can include all types 
of financial assets that could otherwise be classified in 
one of the other investment categories. 
 
They are generally included in non-current assets 
unless management intends to dispose of the 
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet 
date or the term to maturity from the reporting date is 
less than 12 months. 
 
Financial Assets – Reclassification 
 
Following on from amendments made to AASB 139 - 
Financial Instruments: Recognition & Measurement in 
October 2008, Council may choose to reclassify a 
non-derivative trading financial asset out of the held-
for-trading category if the financial asset is no longer 
held for the purpose of selling it in the near term. 
 
Financial assets other than loans and receivables are 
permitted to be reclassified out of the held-for-trading 
category only in rare circumstances arising from a 
single event that is unusual and highly unlikely to 
recur in the near term. 
 
Council may also choose to reclassify financial assets 
that would meet the definition of loans and 
receivables out of the held-for-trading or available-for-
sale categories if it has the intention and ability to hold 
these financial assets for the foreseeable future or 
until maturity at the date of reclassification. 
 
Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the 
reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost 
or amortised cost as applicable, and no reversals of 
fair value gains or losses recorded before 
reclassification date are subsequently made. 
 
Effective interest rates for financial assets reclassified 
to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity 
categories are determined at the reclassification date. 
Further increases in estimates of cash flows adjust 
effective interest rates prospectively. 
 
Actual Reclassifications 
 
Council did not take up the option to reclassify some 
financial assets out of the held-for-trading category 
from 1 July 2008, following amendments made to 
AASB 139 in October 2008. 
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General Accounting & Measurement of Financial 
Instruments: 
 
(i) Initial Recognition 
 
Investments are initially recognised (and measured) 
at fair value, plus in the case of investments not at 
“fair value through profit or loss”, directly attributable 
transactions costs 
 
Purchases and sales of investments are recognised 
on trade-date - the date on which the Council 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
 
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to 
receive cash flows from the financial assets have 
expired or have been transferred and the Council 
has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership. 
 
(ii) Subsequent Measurement 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial 
assets at fair value through profit and loss are 
subsequently carried at fair value. 
 
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity 
investments are carried at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 
 
Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising 
from changes in the fair value of the financial assets 
classified as “fair value through profit or loss” 
category are included in the income statement in the 
period in which they arise. 
 
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in 
the fair value of non monetary securities classified 
as available-for-sale are recognised in equity in the 
available-for-sale investments revaluation reserve. 
 
When securities classified as available-for-sale are 
sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value 
adjustments are included in the income statement as 
gains and losses from investment securities. 
 
Impairment 
 
Council assesses at each balance date whether 
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or 
group of financial assets is impaired. 
 
In the case of equity securities classified as 
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline 

in the fair value of a security below its cost is 
considered in determining whether the security is 
impaired. 
 
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale 
financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as 
the difference between the acquisition cost and the 
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that 
financial asset previously recognised in profit and loss 
- is removed from equity and recognised in the 
income statement. 
 
Impairment losses recognised in the income 
statement on equity instruments are not reversed 
through the income statement. 
 
(iii) Types of Investments 
 
Council has an approved Investment Policy in order to 
undertake its investment of money in accordance with 
(and to comply with) Section 625 of the Local 
Government Act and S212 of the LG (General) 
Regulations 2005. 
 
Investments are placed and managed in accordance 
with the Policy and having particular regard to 
authorised investments prescribed under the Local 
Government Investment Order. 
 
Council maintains its Investment Policy in compliance 
with the Act and ensures that it or its representatives 
exercise care, diligence and skill that a prudent 
person would exercise in investing Council funds. 
 
Council is currently reviewing its Investment Policy 
following revisions to the Investment Order arising 
from the Cole Inquiry recommendations. Certain 
investments the Council holds are no longer 
prescribed (eg. managed funds, CDOs, and equity 
linked notes), however they have been retained under 
grandfathering provisions of the Order. The Policy will 
be adopted following the release of the Department of 
Local Government’s Investment Guidelines. 
 
These will be disposed of when most financially 
advantageous to Council. 
 
 
(g) Fair value estimation 
 
The fair value of financial assets and financial 
liabilities must be estimated for recognition and 
measurement or for disclosure purposes. 
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The fair value of financial instruments traded in 
active markets is based on quoted market prices at 
the balance sheet date. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not 
traded in an active market is determined using 
valuation techniques. 
 
Council uses a variety of methods and makes 
assumptions that are based on market conditions 
existing at each balance date. 
 
Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar 
instruments are used for long-term debt instruments 
held. 
 
If the market for a financial asset is not active (and 
for unlisted securities), the Council establishes fair 
value by using valuation techniques. 
 
These include reference to the fair values of recent 
arm’s length transactions, involving the same 
instruments or other instruments that are 
substantially the same, discounted cash flow 
analysis, and option pricing models refined to reflect 
the issuer’s specific circumstances. 
 
The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments 
of trade receivables and payables are assumed to 
approximate their fair values. 
 
The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure 
purposes is estimated by discounting the future 
contractual cash flows at the current market interest 
rate that is available to the Council for similar 
financial instruments. 
 
 
(h) Receivables 
 
Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and 
subsequently measured at amortised cost, less any 
provision for impairment. 
 
Receivables (excluding Rates & Annual Charges) 
are generally due for settlement no more than 30 
days from the date of recognition. 
 
The collectibility of receivables is reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be 
uncollectible are written off in accordance with 
Council’s policy. 
 

A provision for impairment relating to receivables is 
established when there is objective evidence that the 
Council will not be able to collect all amounts due 
according to the original terms of each receivable. 
 
The amount of the provision is the difference between 
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the 
effective interest rate. 
 
Impairment losses are recognised in the Income 
Statement within other expenses. 
 
When a receivable for which an impairment allowance 
had been recognised becomes uncollectible in a 
subsequent period, it is written off against the 
allowance account. 
 
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written 
off are credited against other expenses in the income 
statement. 
 
 
(i) Inventories 
 
Raw Materials and Stores, Work in Progress and 
Finished Goods 
 
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and 
finished goods in respect of business undertakings 
are all stated at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. 
 
Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour and an 
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead 
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of 
normal operating capacity. 
 
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on 
the basis of weighted average costs. 
 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs 
necessary to make the sale. 
 
Inventories held in respect of non-business 
undertakings have been valued at cost subject to 
adjustment for loss of service potential. 
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Land Held for Resale/Capitalisation of Borrowing 
Costs 
 
Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value. 
 
Cost is assigned by specific identification and 
includes the cost of acquisition, and development 
and borrowing costs during development. 
 
When development is completed borrowing costs 
and other holding charges are expensed as incurred. 
 
Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for 
resale are those costs that would have been avoided 
if the expenditure on the acquisition and 
development of the land had not been made. 
 
Borrowing costs incurred while active development 
is interrupted for extended periods are recognised as 
expenses. 
 
 
(j) Infrastructure, Property, Plant and  
      Equipment (I,PP&E) 
 
Acquisition of assets 
 
Council’s non current assets are being progressively 
revalued to fair value in accordance with a staged 
implementation as advised by the Department of 
Local Government. 
 
At balance date, the following classes of I,PP&E 
were stated at their Fair Value; 
 
- Investment Properties – refer Note 1(p), 
 
- Water and Sewerage Networks which are 

carried at Fair Value (generally based upon 
Depreciated Replacement Cost). 

 
- Operational Land (External Valuation) 

 
- Buildings – Specialised/Non Specialised  

(External Valuation) 
 
- Plant and Equipment (as approximated by depreciated 

historical cost) 
 
The remaining asset classes to be revalued in future 
reporting periods include; 
 

- 2009/10: Roads, Bridges, Footpaths and Drainage 
assets 
 

- 2010/11: Community land, Land improvements, 
Other structures and other assets 

 
Until these designated future reporting periods, the 
above remaining asset classes are stated at cost (or 
deemed cost) less accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment losses. 
 
Initial Recognition 
 
On initial recognition, an assets cost is measured at 
its fair value, plus all expenditure that is directly 
attributable to the acquisition. 
 
Where settlement of any part of an asset’s cash 
consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the 
future are discounted to their present value as at the 
date of recognition (ie. date of exchange) of the asset 
to arrive at fair value. 
 
The discount rate used is the Council’s incremental 
borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar 
borrowing could be obtained from an independent 
financier under comparable terms and conditions. 
 
Where infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 
assets are acquired for no cost or for an amount other 
than cost, the assets are recognised in the financial 
report at their fair value at acquisition date - being the 
amount that the asset could have been exchanged 
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction. 
 
Subsequent costs 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to 
Council and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably. 
 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the 
income statement during the financial period in which 
they are incurred. 
 
Asset Revaluations (including Indexation) 
 
In accounting for Asset Revaluations relating to 
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment: 
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 Increases in the carrying amounts arising on 
revaluation are credited to the asset revaluation 
reserve. 

 
 To the extent that the increase reverses a 

decrease previously recognised via the profit or 
loss, then increase is first recognised in profit or 
loss. 

 
 Decreases that reverse previous increases of the 

same asset are first charged against revaluation 
reserves directly in equity to the extent of the 
remaining reserve attributable to the asset, with 
all other decreases charged to the Income 
statement. 

 
Water and sewerage network assets are indexed 
annually between full revaluations in accordance 
with the latest indices provided in the DWE Rates 
Reference Manual. 
 
For all other assets, Council assesses at each 
reporting date whether there is any indication that a 
revalued asset’s carrying amount may differ 
materially from that which would be determined if the 
asset were revalued at the reporting date. 
 
If any such indication exists, Council determines the 
asset’s fair value and revalues the asset to that 
amount. 
 
Full revaluations are undertaken for all assets on a 5 
year cycle. 
 
 
Capitalisation Thresholds 
 
Items of infrastructure, property, plant and 
equipment are not capitalised unless their cost of 
acquisition exceeds the following; 
 
Land 
- council land 100% Capitalised  
- open space 100% Capitalised 
- land under roads Not capitalised as at 30 June 2008 
 
 
Plant & Equipment 
Office Furniture > $2,000 
Office Equipment > $2,000 
Other Plant &Equipment > $2,000 
 
 
 
 

Buildings & Land Improvements 
Park Furniture & Equipment > $2,000 
 
 
Building 
- construction/extensions 100% Capitalised 
- renovations > $5,000 
Other Structures > $2,000 
 
 
Water & Sewer Assets 
Reticulation extensions > $10,000 
Other > $10,000 
 
 
Stormwater Assets 
Drains & Culverts > $2,000 
Other > $2,000 
 
 
Transport Assets 
Road construction & reconstruction > $10,000 
Reseal/Re-sheet & major repairs: > $10,000 
Bridge construction & reconstruction > $10,000 
 
 
 
Depreciation 
 
Depreciation on Councils infrastructure, property, 
plant and equipment assets is calculated using the 
straight line method in order to allocate an assets cost 
(net of residual values) over its estimated useful life. 
 
Land is not depreciated. 
 
Estimated useful lives for Councils assets include: 
 
  Plant & Equipment 
- Office Equipment  5 years 
- Office Furniture   10 years 
- Computer Equipment  5 years 
- Vehicles   5 to 8 years 
- Heavy Plant/Road Making equip. 5 to 8 years 
- Other plant and equipment 5 to 15 years 
  
  Other Equipment 
- Playground equipment  25 years 
- Benches, seats etc  25 years 
 
 
  Buildings 
- Buildings   50 to 100 years 
- Other 20 to 40 years                       
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Stormwater Drainage 
- Drains    50 years 
- Culverts   60 years 
 
 
  Transportation Assets 
- Sealed Roads   100 years 
- Unsealed roads 20 years 
- Bridges 80 years 
- Kerb, Gutter & Paths  30 to 70 years 
 
 
 Water & Sewer Assets 
- Dams and reservoirs 80 to 100 years 
- Reticulation pipes: PVC 80 years 
- Reticulation pipes: Other 45 to 80 years 
- Pumps and telemetry 25 to 70 years 
 
 
  Other Infrastructure Assets 
- Bulk earthworks Infinite 
 
 
 
All asset residual values and useful lives are 
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
balance sheet date. 
 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down 
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 
carrying amount is greater than its estimated 
recoverable amount – refer Note 1(s) on Asset 
Impairment. 
 
 
Disposal and De-recognition 
 
An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognised upon disposal or when no further 
future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. 
 
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the 
asset (calculated as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is included in Council’s Income Statement in 
the year the asset is derecognised. 
 
 
(k) Land 
 
Land in accordance with Part 2 of Chapter 6 of the 
Local Government Act (1993) is classified on 
purchase as either Operational or Community.  
 

This classification of Land is disclosed in Note 9(a). 
 
 
(l) Land under roads 
 
Land under roads is land under roadways and road 
reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips 
and median strips. 
 
Council has elected not to recognise land under roads 
acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 
1051.  
 
Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is 
recognised in accordance with AASB 116 – Property, 
Plant and Equipment.  
 
Council will recognise all land under roads when the 
valuation methodology has been determined by the 
industry and is, in the meantime, collecting the 
necessary physical data to undertake the valuation. 
 
 
(m) Intangible Assets 
 
IT development and software 
 
Costs incurred in developing products or systems and 
costs incurred in acquiring software and licenses that 
will contribute to future period financial benefits 
through revenue generation and/or cost reduction are 
capitalised to software and systems. 
 
Costs capitalised include external direct costs of 
materials and service, direct payroll and payroll 
related costs of employees’ time spent on the project. 
 
Amortisation is calculated on a straight line bases 
over periods generally ranging from 3 to 5 years. 
 
IT development costs include only those costs directly 
attributable to the development phase and are only 
recognised following completion of technical feasibility 
and where Council has an intention and ability to use 
the asset. 
 
 
(n) Crown Reserves 
 
Crown Reserves under Council’s care and control are 
recognised as assets of the Council. 
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While ownership of the reserves remains with the 
Crown, Council retains operational control of the 
reserves and is responsible for their maintenance 
and use in accordance with the specific purposes to 
which the reserves are dedicated. 
 
Improvements on Crown Reserves are also 
recorded as assets, while maintenance costs 
incurred by Council and revenues relating the 
reserves are recognised within Council’s Income 
Statement. 
 
A working party of interested representatives from 
both State and Local Government is being formed to 
consider the accounting issues related to the Crown 
Reserves, with the intention of developing a 
consistent approach to their recognition and future 
accounting treatment across both tiers of 
government. 
 
 
(o) Rural Fire Service assets 
 
Under section 119 of the Rural Fires Act 1997, “all 
fire fighting equipment purchased or constructed 
wholly or from money to the credit of the Fund is to 
be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf 
of which the fire fighting equipment has been 
purchased or constructed”. 
 
At present, the accounting for such fire fighting 
equipment is not treated in a consistent manner 
across all Councils. 
 
Until such time as discussions on this matter have 
concluded and the legislation changed, Council will 
continue to account for these assets as it has been 
doing in previous years, which is to incorporate the 
assets, their values and depreciation charges within 
these Financial Reports. 
 
 
(p) Investment property 
 
Investment property comprises land &/or buildings 
that are principally held for long-term rental yields, 
capital gains or both and is not occupied by Council. 
 
Investment property is carried at fair value, 
representing an open-market value determined 
annually by external valuers. 
 

Annual changes in the fair value of Investment 
Properties are recorded in the Income Statement as 
part of “Other Income”. 
 
Full revaluations are carried out every three years 
with an appropriate index utilised each year in 
between the full revaluations. 
 
 
(q) Provisions for close down, restoration  
      and for environmental clean up costs –  
      including Tips and Quarries 
 
Close down, Restoration and Remediation costs 
include the dismantling and demolition of 
infrastructure, the removal of residual materials and 
the remediation of disturbed areas. 
 
Estimated close down and restoration costs are 
provided for in the accounting period when the 
obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, 
whether this occurs during the development or during 
the operation phase, based on the net present value 
of estimated future costs. 
 
Provisions for close down and restoration costs do not 
include any additional obligations which are expected 
to arise from future disturbance. 
 
Costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. 
 
The cost estimates are calculated annually during the 
life of the operation to reflect known developments, eg 
updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated 
lives of operations, and are subject to formal review at 
regular intervals. 
 
Close Down, Restoration and Remediation costs are 
a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, 
and the majority of close down and restoration 
expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the 
operations. 
 
Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain, 
Council estimates the respective costs based on 
feasibility and engineering studies using current 
restoration standards and techniques. 
 
The amortisation or ‘unwinding’ of the discount 
applied in establishing the net present value of 
provisions is charged to the income statement in each 
accounting period. 
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This amortisation of the discount is shown as a 
borrowing cost. 
 
Other movements in the provisions for Close Down, 
Restoration and Remediation costs including those 
resulting from new disturbance, updated cost 
estimates, changes to the estimated lives of 
operations and revisions to discount rates are 
capitalised within property, plant and equipment.  
 
These costs are then depreciated over the lives of 
the assets to which they relate. 
 
Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically 
over the life of the operation, rather than at the time 
of closure, provision is made for the estimated 
outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each 
balance sheet date and the cost is charged to the 
income statement. 
 
Provision is made for the estimated present value of 
the costs of environmental clean up obligations 
outstanding at the balance sheet date. These costs 
are charged to the income statement. 
 
Movements in the environmental clean up provisions 
are presented as an operating cost, except for the 
unwind of the discount which is shown as a 
borrowing cost. 
 
Remediation procedures generally commence soon 
after the time the damage, remediation process and 
estimated remediation costs become known, but 
may continue for many years depending on the 
nature of the disturbance and the remediation 
techniques. 
 
As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental 
remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary 
in response to many factors including changes to the 
relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new 
restoration techniques or experience at other 
locations. 
 
The expected timing of expenditure can also 
change, for example in response to changes in 
quarry reserves or production rates. 
 
As a result there could be significant adjustments to 
the provision for close down and restoration and 
environmental clean up, which would affect future 
financial results. 
 

Specific information relating to Councils provisions 
relating to Close Down, Restoration and Remediation 
costs can be found at Note 26. 
 
 
(r) Non-Current Assets (or Disposal Groups)  
     “Held for Sale” & Discontinued 
     Operations 
 
Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified 
as held for sale and stated at the lower of either (i) 
their carrying amount and (ii) fair value less costs to 
sell, if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than 
through continuing use. 
 
The exception to this is plant and motor vehicles 
which are turned over on a regular basis. Plant and 
motor vehicles are retained in Non Current Assets 
under the classification of Infrastructure, Property, 
Plant and Equipment - unless the assets are to be 
traded in after 30 June and the replacement assets 
were already purchased and accounted for as at 30 
June. 
 
For any assets or disposal groups classified as Non-
Current Assets “held for sale”, an impairment loss is 
recognised at any time when the assets carrying 
value is greater than its fair value less costs to sell. 
 
Non-current assets “held for sale” are not depreciated 
or amortised while they are classified as “held for 
sale”. 
 
Non-current assets classified as “held for sale” are 
presented separately from the other assets in the 
balance sheet. 
 
A Discontinued Operation is a component of the entity 
that has been disposed of or is classified as “held for 
sale” and that represents a separate major line of 
business or geographical area of operations, is part of 
a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of 
business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary 
acquired exclusively with a view to resale. 
 
The results of discontinued operations are presented 
separately on the face of the income statement. 
 
 
 
 
 



 

   Financial Report 2009 

 
 
Mid-Western Regional Council 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements 
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009 
 
Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
 

 
  page 20 
 

(s) Impairment of assets 
 
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may 
not be recoverable. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its 
recoverable amount. 
 
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 
 
For non-cash generating assets of Council such as 
roads, drains, public buildings, etc - value in use is 
represented by the “deprival value” of the asset 
which is approximated as it’s written down 
replacement cost. 
 
Other assets are tested for impairment whenever 
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying amount may not be recoverable. 
 
Goodwill and other Intangible Assets that have an 
indefinite useful life and are not subject to 
amortisation are tested annually for impairment. 
 
 
(t) Payables 
 
These amounts represent liabilities and include 
goods and services provided to the Council prior to 
the end of financial year which are unpaid. 
 
The amounts for goods and services are unsecured 
and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. 
 
 
(u) Borrowings 
 
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net 
of transaction costs incurred.  
 
Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost. 
Amortisation results in any difference between the 
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount being recognised in the Income 
Statement over the period of the borrowings using 
the effective interest method. 
 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless 
the Council has an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the balance sheet date. 
 
 
(v) Borrowing costs 
 
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any 
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of 
time that is required to complete and prepare the 
asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing 
costs are expensed. 
 
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount 
of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weighted 
average interest rate applicable to the Council’s 
outstanding borrowings during the year. 
 
 
(w) Provisions 
 
Provisions for legal claims and service warranties are 
recognised when: 
 
 Council has a present legal or constructive 

obligation as a result of past events; 
 
 it is more likely than not that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation; 
and 

 
 the amount has been reliably estimated.  

 
Provisions are not recognised for future operating 
losses. 
 
Where there are a number of similar obligations, the 
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement 
is determined by considering the class of obligations 
as a whole. 
 
A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an 
outflow with respect to any one item included in the 
same class of obligations may be small. 
 
Provisions are measured at the present value of 
management’s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. 
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The discount rate used to determine the present 
value reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the 
liability. 
 
The increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognised as interest expense. 
 
 
(x) Employee benefits 
 
(i) Wages & salaries, annual leave and sick leave 
  
Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-
monetary benefits), annual leave and vesting sick 
leave are recognised in the provision for employee 
benefits in respect of employees’ services up to the 
reporting date. 
 
These provisions are measured at the amounts 
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.  
 
Calculations therefore incorporate (where the leave 
is expected to be paid more than 12 months after the 
reporting date) the use of discounted cash flows. 
 
Liabilities for non vesting sick leave are recognised 
at the time when the leave is taken and measured at 
the rates paid or payable, and accordingly no liability 
has been recognised in these reports. 
 
Wages & salaries, annual leave and vesting sick 
leave are all classified as Current Liabilities. 
 
(ii) Long service leave 
 
The liability for long service leave is recognised in 
the provision for employee benefits in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting 
date. 
 
Long Service Leave is measured at the present 
value of the expected future payments to be made 
using the projected unit credit method. 
 
Consideration is given to expected future wage and 
salary levels, experience of employee departures 
and periods of service. 
 
Expected future payments are discounted using 
market yields at the reporting date on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity and 
currency that match as closely as possible, the 
estimated future cash outflows. 

Due to the nature of when and how Long Service 
Leave can be taken, all Long Service Leave for 
employees with 4 or more years of service has been 
classified as Current, as it has been deemed that 
Council does not have the unconditional right to defer 
settlement beyond 12 months – even though it is not 
anticipated that all employees with more than 4 years 
service (as at reporting date) will apply for and take 
their leave entitlements in the next 12 months. 
 
(iii) Retirement benefit obligations 
 
All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits 
on retirement, disability or death.  
 
Council contributes to various defined benefit plans 
and defined contribution plans on behalf of its 
employees. 
 
Defined Benefit Plans 
 
A liability or asset in respect of defined benefit 
superannuation plans would ordinarily be recognised 
in the balance sheet, and measured as the present 
value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting 
date plus unrecognised actuarial gains (less 
unrecognised actuarial losses) less the fair value of 
the superannuation fund’s assets at that date and any 
unrecognised past service cost. 
 
The present value of the defined benefit obligation is 
based on expected future payments which arise from 
membership of the fund to the reporting date, 
calculated annually by independent actuaries using 
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is 
given to expected future wage and salary levels, 
experience of employee departures and periods of 
service. 
 
However, when this information is not reliably 
available, Council can account for its obligations to 
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its 
obligations to defined contribution plans – i.e. as an 
expense when they become payable. 
 
Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan 
under the Local Government Superannuation 
Scheme, named the “Local Government 
Superannuation Scheme – Pool B” 
 
This Scheme has been deemed to be a “multi 
employer fund” for the purposes of AASB 119.  
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Sufficient information is not available to account for 
the Scheme as a defined benefit plan (in accordance 
with AASB 119) because the assets to the scheme 
are pooled together for all Councils. 
 
Accordingly, Council’s contributions to the scheme 
for the current reporting year have been recognised 
as an expense and disclosed as part of 
Superannuation Expenses at Note 4(a). 
 
The Local Government Superannuation Scheme has 
advised member councils that, as a result of the 
global financial crisis, it has a significant deficiency 
of assets over liabilities amounting to around $290 
million at 30 June 2009. 
 
As a result, they have asked for significant increases 
in contributions from 2009/2010 onwards to recover 
that deficiency. 
 
Council’s share of that deficiency cannot be 
accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual 
arrangement where assets and liabilities are pooled 
together for all member councils. 
 
For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has 
been recognised in Council’s accounts. 
 
Council has, however, disclosed a contingent liability 
in note 18 to reflect the possible obligation that may 
arise should the Scheme require immediate payment 
to correct the deficiency.   
 
Defined Contribution Plans 
 
Contributions to Defined Contribution Plans are 
recognised as an expense as they become payable.  
 
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to 
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the 
future payments is available. 
 
(iv) Employee Benefit On-Costs 
 
Council has recognised at year end the aggregate 
on-cost liabilities arising from employee benefits, 
and in particular those on-cost liabilities that will 
arise when payment of current employee benefits is 
made in future periods. 
 
These amounts include Superannuation and 
Workers Compensation expenses which will be 
payable upon the future payment of certain Leave 
Liabilities accrued as at 30/6/09. 

(y) Self insurance 
 
Council does not self-insure. 
 
 
(z) Allocation between current and 
      non-current assets & liabilities 
 
In the determination of whether an asset or liability is 
classified as current or non-current, consideration is 
given to the time when each asset or liability is 
expected to be settled. 
 
The asset or liability is classified as current if it is 
expected to be settled within the next 12 months, 
being the Council’s operational cycle. 
 
Exceptions 
 
In the case of liabilities where Council does not have 
the unconditional right to defer settlement beyond 12 
months (such as vested long service leave), the 
liability is classified as current even if not expected to 
be settled within the next 12 months. 
 
In the case of inventories that are “held for trading”, 
these are also classified as current even if not 
expected to be realised in the next 12 months. 
 
 
(aa) Taxes 
 
The Council is exempt from both Commonwealth 
Income Tax and Capital Gains Tax. 
 
Council does however have to comply with both 
Fringe Benefits Tax and Goods and Services Tax 
(GST). 
 
Goods & Services Tax (GST) 
 
Income, expenses and assets are all recognised net 
of the amount of GST, except where the amount of 
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian 
Tax Office (ATO). 
 
In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part 
of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the 
revenue / expense. 
 
Receivables and payables within the Balance Sheet 
are stated inclusive of any applicable GST. 
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The net amount of GST recoverable from or payable 
to the ATO is included as a current asset or current 
liability in the Balance Sheet. 
 
Operating cash flows within the Cash Flow 
Statement are on a gross basis, ie. they are 
inclusive of GST where applicable. 
 
Investing and Financing cash flows are treated on a 
net basis (where recoverable form the ATO), ie. they 
are exclusive of GST. Instead, the GST component 
of investing and financing activity cash flows which 
are recoverable from or payable to the ATO are 
classified as operating cash flows. 
 
Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net 
of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable 
to, the taxation authority. 
 
 
(ab) New accounting standards and UIG  
        interpretations 
 
Certain new (or amended) accounting standards and 
interpretations have been published that are not 
mandatory for reporting periods ending 30 June 
2009. 
 
Council has not adopted any of these standards 
early. 
 
Council’s assessment of the impact of these new 
standards and interpretations is set out below. 
 
 
Applicable to Local Government with 
implications: 
 
Revised AASB 101 Presentation of Financial 
Statements and AASB 2007-8 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 101 (effective from 1 January 2009) 
 
The September 2007 revised AASB 101 requires the 
presentation of a statement of comprehensive 
income and makes changes to the statement of 
changes in equity, but will not affect any of the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. 
 
If an entity has made a prior period adjustment or 
has reclassified items in the financial statements, it 
will need to disclose a third balance sheet 

(statement of financial position), this one being as at 
the beginning of the comparative period. 
 
Council will apply the revised standard from 1 July 
2009. 
 
 
Applicable to Local Government but no 
implications for Council; 
 
Revised AASB 123 Borrowing Costs and AASB 
2007-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 123 (effective from 1 
January 2009) 
 
The revised AASB 123 has removed the option to 
expense all borrowing costs and - when adopted – will 
require the capitalisation of all borrowing costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of a qualifying asset. There will be no 
impact on the financial reports as Council already 
capitalises borrowing costs relating to qualifying 
assets. 
 
 
AASB 2008-1 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standard – Share-based Payments: 
Vesting Conditions and Cancellations (effective 
from 1 January 2009) 
 
AASB 2008-1 clarifies that vesting conditions are 
service conditions and performance conditions only 
and that other features of a share-based payment are 
not vesting conditions. 
 
It also specifies that all cancellations, whether by the 
entity or by other parties, should receive the same 
accounting treatment. 
 
There will be no impact on the financial reports as 
Council makes no share based payments. 
 
 
AASB Interpretation 15 Agreements for the 
Construction of Real Estate (effective 1 January 
2009) 
 
AASB-I 15 clarifies whether AASB 118 Revenue or 
AASB 111 Construction Contracts should be applied 
to particular transactions. 
 
Council intends to apply the interpretation from 1 July 
2009. It has reviewed its current agreements for the 
sale of real estate in light of the new guidance and 
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concluded that there would be no change to the 
accounting for these agreements if AASB-I 15 was 
adopted in the current financial year. Consequently, 
it does not expect to make any adjustment on the 
initial application of AASB-I 15. 
 
 
Applicable to Local Government but not relevant 
to Council at this stage; 
 
Revised AASB 3 Business Combinations, AASB 
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements and AASB 2008-3 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB 3 and AASB 127 (effective 1 July 2009) 
 
The revised AASB 3 continues to apply the 
acquisition method to business combinations, but 
with some significant changes. 
 
For example, all payments to purchase a business 
are to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition 
date, with contingent payments classified as debt 
subsequently remeasured through the income 
statement. 
 
There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition 
basis to measure the non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling 
interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net 
assets. 
 
All acquisition-related costs must be expensed.  The 
revised AASB 127 requires the effects of all 
transactions with non-controlling interests to be 
recorded in equity if there is no change in control 
and these transactions will no longer result in 
goodwill or gains and losses. 
 
The standard also specifies the accounting when 
control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is 
remeasured to fair value, and a gain or loss is 
recognised in profit or loss. 
 
There will be no impact on the financial reports as 
Council has no exposure to these types of 
transactions. 
 
 
AASB 2008-6 Further Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards arising from the Annual 
Improvements Project (effective 1 July 2009) 
 

The amendments to AASB 5 Discontinued Operations 
and AASB 1 First-Time Adoption of Australian-
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting 
Standards are part of the IASB’s annual 
improvements project published in May 2008. 
 
They clarify that all of a subsidiary’s assets and 
liabilities are classified as held for sale if a partial 
disposal sale plan results in loss of control. 
 
Relevant disclosures should be made for this 
subsidiary if the definition of a discontinued operation 
is met. 
 
There will be no impact on the financial reports as 
Council does not have any subsidiaries it is proposing 
to dispose of. 
 
 
AASB 2008-7 Amendments to Australian 
Accounting Standards - Cost of an Investment in a 
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity or Associate 
(effective 1 July 2009) 
 
In July 2008, the AASB approved amendments to 
AASB 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial 
Reporting Standards and AABS 127 Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements. Council will apply 
the revised rules prospectively from 1 July 2009. 
 
After that date, all dividends received from 
investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities 
or associates will be recognised as revenue, even if 
they are paid out of pre-acquisition profits, but the 
investments may need to be tested for impairment as 
a result of the dividend payment. 
 
 
AASB Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net 
Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective 1 
October 2008)  
 
AASB-I 16 clarifies which foreign currency risks 
qualify as hedged risk in the hedge of a net 
investment in a foreign operation and that hedging 
instruments may be held by any entity or entities 
within the group. 
 
It also provides guidance on how an entity should 
determine the amounts to be reclassified from equity 
to profit or loss for both the hedging instrument and 
the hedged item. 
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There will be no impact on the financial reports as 
Council has no hedges of a net investment in a 
foreign operation. 
 
 
AASB 2008-8 Amendment to IAS 39 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
(effective 1 July 2009) 
 
AASB 2008-8 amends AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and 
must be applied retrospectively in accordance with 
AASB 108 Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors. 
 
The amendment makes two significant changes. It 
prohibits designating inflation as a hedgeable 
component of a fixed rate debt. It also prohibits 
including time value in the one-sided hedged risk 
when designating options as hedges. 
 
Council will apply the amended standard from 1 July 
2009. It is not expected to have any impact on the 
financial reports. 
 
AASB Interpretation 17 Distribution of Non-cash 
Assets to Owners and AASB 2008-13 Amendments 
to Australian Accounting Standards arising from 
AASB Interpretation 17 
 
AASB-I 17 applies to situations where an entity pays 
dividends by distributing non-cash assets to its 
shareholders. 
 
These distributions will need to be measured at fair 
value and the entity will need to recognise the 
difference between the fair value and the carrying 
amount of the distributed assets in the income 
statement on distribution. 
 
There will be no impact on the financial reports as 
Council has no exposure to these types of 
transactions. 
 
 
Not applicable to Local Government per se; 
 
AASB 8 Operating Segments and AASB 2007-3 
Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards arising from AASB 8 (effective from 1 
January 2009) 
 
AASB 8 will result in a significant change in the 
approach to segment reporting, as it requires 

adoption of a 'management approach' to reporting on 
financial performance. The information being reported 
will be based on what the key decision makers use 
internally for evaluating segment performance and 
deciding how to allocate resources to operating 
segments. 
 
 
(ac) Rounding of amounts 
 
Unless otherwise indicated, amounts in the financial 
report have been rounded off to the nearest thousand 
dollars. 
 
 
(ad) Comparative Figures 
 
To ensure comparability with the current reporting 
period’s figures, some comparative period line items 
and amounts may have been reclassified or 
individually reported for the first time within this 
Financial Report and/or the Notes. 
 
 
(ae) Disclaimer 
 
Nothing contained within this report may be taken to 
be an admission of any liability to any person under 
any circumstance. 
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-             666         -             
52,160    (667)        40           -             52,526    681         (739)        

(530)        
Corporate & Community Buildings 42           (21)          14           
Swimming Pools 127         136         

781         774         

21           
(539)        (587)        

1,578      
136         666         

1,603      1,402      (1,135)     
723         

             - 
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7,326      

383,079  

-             

369,118  
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-             

3,268      

Operating Result from 
Continuing Operations

Grants included in 
Income from 
Continuing 
Operations

2009 2008 
Budget Actual Actual Actual 

2008 2009 2008 
Actual 

Original 
Actual Budget 

2009 
Actual 

2009 
Actual Actual 

2009 
Actual 

Original 
Budget 

Original 

2009 
Actual 

$ '000 Income, Expenses and Assets have been directly attributed to the following Functions / Activities.
Details of these Functions/Activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Income from Continuing 
Operations

Expenses from Continuing 
Operations

Total Assets held 
(Current &          

Non-current) Functions/Activities

2009 
(469)        Governance -             49           584         64           

Administrative & Statutory Services 17,406    22,549    
390         469         

19,196    
(535)        (326)        -             

100         
5,103      

(346)        
12,283    11,878    14,125    

640         474         542         
6,913      5,528      

(455)        (184)        
8,424      

196         
903         662         580         Development & Environmental Services

Regulatory Control 185         290         
1,667      1,713      103         57           (761)        (1,051)     1,341      (764)        

709         91           
10           

(280)        -             (278)        -             280         Strategic Planning -             -             2             

Stormwater & Drainage 156         

-             280         
Community Services 2,434      2,325      2,187      2,607      2,516      

230         231         266         
Waste Management 4,364      

171         189         Cemeteries 182         
3,272      3,825      

(252)        
3,800      3,666      3,270      

366         366         341         (210)        
539         

Water Supply
37,804    

(393)        4,323      4,193      4,188      
3,536      2,763      

5,834      
63           Sewer Services 4,350      2,520      2,919      

792         2,222      

2,818      

-             

37           

34                 3,719

108,340  
18,463    

103,881  
19,343    

2008 2008 

721         1,413      2,728      
-             

2009 

48,221    
-             -             

970         

15           

1,594      
-             

19,466    

-             

244         
-             

18,973    

378         

85           

66           

-             385         
7,167      

66,902    
38,519    

385         2,088      

9,431      

337         

3,501      

     9,291 

315         

4,396      

-             -             

173         

84           

-             
3,793      46,919    

894         

85           

69,141    

8,380      

62           

85           

Libraries 101         

15,160    

(659)        897         
168         (76)          

        517         (509)

7,442      

2,514      

115         

49,491    

186         

47,028    

1,100      

2,942      
106         

114         36           

14,738    
1,078      

-             

1,873      

2,813      1,438      

42,838    4,190      

       (498)        (394)

(162)        

8,646      

(49)          

(305)        

(1,706)     (3,045)     (622)        

396         528         

(1,381)     

(795)        

(243)        
(730)        
814         

(796)        902         818         

3,595      3,795      

831         

42,049  52,875  

10,743    12,926    13,032    
2,681      

42,791  

89           

Roads & Bridges 9,881      

187         

11,365    

2,183      

Section 94 & Section 64 - 

          19 

48,488   Continuing Operations 52,304    
 Operating Result from

Parks & Reserves

 Total Functions & Activities 51,437    

735         Economic Development & Tourism 2,973      1,524      

443         

-             
Carparking, Cycleways, Streetscaping 
& Footpaths
Mudgee Airport 110         

2,813      1,438      

(95)          
(173)        (191)        

1,460      

(327)        

(703)        

(41)          

1,511      (598)        
(23)          

9,431    383,07915,160  

-             -             
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Note 2(b). Components of Functions / Activities

Details relating to the Council's functions / activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

GOVERNANCE

ADMINISTRATIVE & STATUTORY SERVICES

REGULATORY CONTROL

DEVELOPMENT & ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

STRATEGIC PLANNING

COMMUNITY SERVICES

CEMETERIES

WASTE MANAGEMENT

WATER SUPPLIES
SEWERAGE SERVICES

LIBRARIES

CORPORATE & COMMUNITY BUILDINGS

SWIMMING POOLS

PARKS & RESERVES

ROADS & BRIDGES

Elected members expenses and support

Corporate support, engineering and works services, operations support, fire control, emergency services

Animal and pest control, noxious weeds control, parking control

Town planning, environmental protection, food control, building control

Public swimming pools

Strategic planning

Community services administration, family day care, child care, youth services, aged & disabled, community
housing, other community services

Public libraries

Public halls, community centres, museums, corporate buildings

Public cemeteries

Domestic waste management, landfill and transfer station operation, recycling, other waste management

Passive parks, sporting grounds, public conveniences

Local rural and urban roads, regional roads, state roads
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Note 2(b). Components of Functions / Activities (continued)

Details relating to the Council's functions / activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

CARPARKING, CYCLEWAYS, STREETSCAPING & FOOTPATHS

MUDGEE AIRPORT

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM

Mudgee airport operations and development

Caravan parks, tourism and area promotion, industrial development promotion, saleyards and markets, real
estate development, other business undertakings

footpaths and cycleways, carparks, streetlighting, streetscaping, bus shelters
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations

$ '000

(a). Rates & Annual Charges

Ordinary Rates
Residential
Farmland
Mining
Business
Total Ordinary Rates

Special Rates
Sewerage Services
Other
Total Special Rates

Annual Charges   (pursuant to s.496 & s.501)
Domestic Waste Management Services
Rural Waste Management
Water Supply Services
Sewerage Services
Waste Management Services (non-domestic)
Total Annual Charges

TOTAL RATES & ANNUAL CHARGES

Council has used 2007 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

6,421            

814               

11                 

2,732            

18,717     

4,473            

19,018     

1,018            

1,857            

11                 

-                    
829               

-                    
2,026            

1,001            

1,064            
11,569          

2,969            

Actual

6,071            

Actual

2,976            
7                   

617               

657               

Notes 2009 2008

6,480            
4,084            4,077            

939               
12,285          

-                    

482               
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(b). User Charges & Fees

Specific User Charges   (per s.502 - Specific "actual use" charges)

Water Supply Services
Total User Charges

Other User Charges & Fees
(i) Fees & Charges - Statutory & Regulatory Functions   (per s608, 610A & 611)
Planning & Building Regulation
Private Works - Section 67
Total Fees & Charges - Statutory/Regulatory

(ii) Fees & Charges - Other (incl. General User Charges   (per s.610C))
Aerodrome
Aged & Disabled Care
Cemeteries
Childrens Services
Leaseback Fees - Council Vehicles
RTA Charges (State Roads not controlled by Council)
Saleyards
Swimming Centre
Waste Depot
Waste Water Services
Water Services
Other
Total Fees & Charges - Other

TOTAL USER CHARGES & FEES

94                 

34                 
9,352            

12,138     

94                 

128               
310               

3,411            

591               

Actual
Notes 2009

2,620            
2,620            

417               
179               
359               

220               

2,195            

101               

190               

94                 

227               
113               

888               
249               
639               

1,898            

Actual
2008

1,558            
637               

1,898            

97                 

268               
7,091            

136               

97                 83                 

520               

10,357     

40                 
5,542            
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(c). Interest & Investment Revenue (incl. losses)

Interest & Dividends
- Interest on Overdue Rates & Annual Charges
- Interest earned on Investments (interest & coupon payment income)

Fair Value Adjustments
- Fair Valuation Movements in Investments (unrealised capital gains/(losses)

Impairment Losses
- Impairment (Losses)/Prior Period Reversals attributable to Investment
TOTAL INTEREST & INVESTMENT REVENUE

Interest Revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted Investments/Financial Assets:
Overdue Rates & Annual Charges
General Council Cash & Investments
Restricted Investments/Funds - External:
Development Contributions
 - Section 94
 - Section 64
Water Fund Operations
Sewerage Fund Operations
Domestic Waste Management operations
Total Interest & Investment Revenue Recognised

(d). Other Revenues

Rental Income - Other Council Properties
Fines
Legal Fees Recovery - Rates & Charges (Extra Charges)

Commissions & Agency Fees
Diesel Rebate
Insurance Claim Recoveries
Recycling Income (non domestic)
Sales - General
Sales - Ironed Out
Other
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

78                 

1,353       
57                 

306               

2,055       

163               
156               

81                 

-                    

2,455            

Actual
2008

40                 

1,985       

130               

262               

11                 

321               

85                 
315               

72                 

2,055            

54                 

345               
189               289               

13                 
127               

1,029            

169               

1,985            

20                 

236               

102               

158               

284               

43                 

(551)              

280               

-                    

197               

67                 

76                 
1,365       

956               

Actual

1,957            
98                 

2009

-                    

Notes

28                 
100               
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(e). Grants

General Purpose (Untied)
Financial Assistance - General Component

Financial Assistance - Local Roads Component

Pensioners' Rates Subsidies - General Component

Total General Purpose

Specific Purpose
Pensioners' Rates Subsidies:
  - Water
  - Sewerage
  - Domestic Waste Management
Water Supplies
Aged & Disabled Services
Bushfire & Emergency Services
Childrens Services
Employment & Training Programs
Environmental Programs
Heritage & Cultural
Library
Noxious Weeds
Recreation & Culture
Transport (Roads to Recovery)

Transport (Other Roads & Bridges Funding)

Youth Services
Other
Total Specific Purpose
Total Grants

Grant Revenue is attributable to:
- Commonwealth Funding
- State Funding
- Other Funding

2,958         

234            

-                 

31              

66              

1,729         

4,921         

52              

433            
905            

62              

Operating
2009

100            

857            

18              
84              

6                
115            

Operating

3,999         

886            
521            

2,294         

63              
78              

-                 

-                 

110            
-                 

-                 
-                 

5,165         

-                 

5,753         

1,860         

1,997         

-                 

-                 

-                 -                 

857            

5,753         

-                 

5,753         

588            
-                 

137            

1,997         

-                 
-                 

-                 
1,000         

1,997         

3                

Capital

137            
-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

2008

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

7,434         

7,434         

1,729         

2,513         

1,275         

5                

694            

-                 

-                 

10              
85              
85              

85              

-                 

-                 

-                 

2,858         

335            

-                 

2009

251            

Capital
2008

-                 

-                 

1,034         

-                 

-                 -                 

2,116         

-                 

7,185         5,705         

-                 

215            

61              

6,508         

106            
9,407         

9,407         
2,899         
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(f). Contributions

Developer Contributions:
(s93 & s94 - EP&A Act, s64 of the NSW LG Act):
S 93F  - Contributions using Planning Agreements
S 94 - Contributions towards amenities/services
S 94A - Fixed Development Consent Levies
S 64 - Water Supply Contributions
S 64 - Sewerage Service Contributions
Total Developer Contributions

Other Contributions:
Mudgee Recycling & Ironed Out
Occupational Health & Safety
Other Councils - Joint Works/Services
Recreation & Culture
Roads & Bridges
RTA Contributions (Regional/Local, Block Grant)
Sewerage (excl. Section 64 contributions)

Environment Programs
Other
Total Other Contributions
Total Contributions

TOTAL GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS

2,222         

10,033  

2,599       
2,599         

463            

995            

-                 98              

-                 

-                 

59              

151            186            

-                 

38              34              

-                 
549            

30              

-                 

-                 

49              
7                
-                 

43              

2,248         

-                 

17 -                 -                 

87              
317            

198            

154            

Capital
20082009

211            
1,134         1,118         

90              446            

668            

-                 
152            

-                 
10              

-                 

-                 
-                 

3,961    

1,964       
830            

429            

-                 

-                 

Capital

225            
95              

Operating
2008

525            

2,113       

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

7,866      

-                 
-                 

12,515  

3,108       
3,108         

-                 

-                 

2009
Operating

-                 
-                 

-                 
-                 
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Note 3. Income from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(g). Restrictions relating to Grants and Contributions

Certain grants & contributions are obtained by Council on condition
that they be spent in a specified manner:

Unexpended at the Close of the Previous Reporting Period

add: Grants and contributions recognised in the current period which have
not been spent:

less: Grants and contributions recognised in a previous reporting period
which have been spent in the current reporting period:

Net Increase (Decrease) in
Restricted Assets during the Current Reporting Period

Unexpended at the Close of this
Reporting Period and held as Restricted Assets

Comprising:
  - Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants
  - Developer Contributions
  - Other Contributions

12,209       

8,128         
4,081         

8,204         
-                 -                 

Actual

1,698         

8,204       

371            
7,833         

2008
Actual

(1,499)        

8,005         

199            

5,019         

4,005         

(1,014)        

2009

8,204         

12,209     
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations

$ '000

(a) Employee Benefits & On-Costs

Salaries and Wages
Travelling
Employee Leave Entitlements (ELE)
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plans

Superannuation - Defined Benefit Plans

Workers' Compensation Insurance
Fringe Benefit Tax (FBT)
Payroll Tax
Training Costs (other than Salaries & Wages)

Protective Clothing
Recruitment Costs
Other
Total Employee Costs
less: Capitalised Costs
TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED

Number of "Equivalent Full Time" Employees at year end
Number of "Equivalent Full Time" Employees at year end (incl. vacancies)

(b) Borrowing Costs

(i) Interest Bearing Liability Costs
Interest on Loans
Interest on Advances
Charges relating to Finance Leases
Total Interest Bearing Liability Costs
less: Capitalised Costs
Total Interest Bearing Liability Costs Expensed

(ii) Other Borrowing Costs
Discount adjustments relating to movements in Provisions (other than ELE)

 - Remediation Liabilities
Total Other Borrowing Costs
TOTAL BORROWING COSTS EXPENSED

494               

33                 

584          
54                 

539               
71                 

17,609          

111               

530               

Notes
Actual

2009

13,527          

2,994            

10                 

241               
1,001            

59                 
228               

2008

2,290            

12,871          

Actual

47                 

257                

3                   

671               

60                 

20                 

(1,940)           

-                    -                    
530               

268                

471               
-                    

498               

15,669     

498               

32                 26

244               

16,801     
(2,227)           

17                 
68                 

19,028          
11                 

371               

42                 

1,080            

54                 

530          

266                

27                 

32                 

254                

64                 
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(c) Materials & Contracts

Raw Materials & Consumables
Contractor & Consultancy Costs
- Spray Seal Contract
- Asphalt Contract
- Other Contractor & Consultancy Costs
Auditors Remuneration
   i.   Audit Services - Council's Auditor
   ii.  Other Services - Council's Auditor (provide details)

   iv. Audit Services - Auditors of other Consolidated Entities
Legal Expenses:
- Legal Expenses - Planning & Development
- Legal Expenses - Other
- Legal Expenses - Debt Recovery
Operating Leases:
Operating Lease Rentals - Minimum Lease Payments (1)

Operating Lease Rentals - Contingent Rentals (1)

Total Materials & Contracts
less: Capitalised Costs
TOTAL MATERIALS & CONTRACTS

1. Operating Lease Payments are attributable to:
- Computers
- Motor Vehicles
- Other

11,602     

-                    
276               

-                    

33                 

296               

572               

241               

13,989     

261               
-                    

11,602          

-                    

35                 

Actual

5,146            

6,484            

Notes

41                 
12                 

138               131               

11                 

56                 

502               561               

23                 
172               

12                 

4,356            

4,238            

1,404            
752               

2009
Actual

-                    

-                    

502               

2008

1,473            

11                 

-                    
13,989          
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(d) Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment

Plant and Equipment
Office Equipment
Furniture & Fittings
Property, Plant & Equipment - Leased
Land Improvements (depreciable)
Buildings - Non Specialised
Buildings - Specialised
Other Structures
Infrastructure:
  - Roads, Bridges & Footpaths
  - Stormwater Drainage
  - Water Supply Network
  - Sewerage Network
Other Assets
  - Library Books
  - Other
Asset Reinstatement Costs
Intangible Assets
Total Depreciation & Impairment Costs
less: Capitalised Costs
TOTAL DEPRECIATION &
IMPAIRMENT COSTS EXPENSED

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

Actual
Impairment Costs    

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 

9 & 26

25

1                1                
18              

-                 

3,770         

27              

1,141         

39              
83              

637            

84              

350            

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

2009 2008

-                 

-                 

Actual

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
257            
259            

-                 

3,672         
142            

-                 

8,545         

80              

-                 -                 

-                 

-                 

9,670         

9,670         

-                 
8,545         

1,183         

-                 
79              

1,076         

230            

303            

2008
Actual

Depreciation/Amortisation 

67              

Actual

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

87              

459            

51              

2009

1,413         

147            

-                 

1,367         
1,192         
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Note 4. Expenses from Continuing Operations (continued)

$ '000

(e) Other Expenses

Other Expenses for the year include the following:

Bad & Doubtful Debts
Contributions to Other Levels of Government
- NSW Fire Brigade Levy
- NSW Rural Fire Service Levy
- Department of Planning Levy
- Other Contributions
Contributions to Tourism Centre
Councillor Expenses - Mayoral Fee
Councillor Expenses - Councillors' Fees
Councillors' Expenses (incl. Mayor) - Other (excluding fees above)
Donations, Contributions & Assistance to other organisations (Section 356)

Election Expenses
Electricity & Heating
Family Day Care Benefit
Insurance
Property Rental
Street Lighting
Telephone & Communications
Other
Total Other Expenses
less: Capitalised Costs
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES

320               

Actual

495               

124               
606               

68                 

774               

67                 

2009

259               

20                 

46                 
79                 

263               

43                 

219               

399               
46                 

27                 
453               

Notes

4,155            
6                   

226               
328               

-                    

29                 

4,155       

78                 

345               
19                 

2008

16                 

Actual

-                    

3,809       

3,809            
8                   

-                    

34                 
713               

50                 

523               

290               

494               

270               
227               

page 38



Financial Report 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Note 5. Gains or Losses on Disposal of Assets

$ '000

Property   (excl. Investment Property)
Proceeds from Disposal
less: Carrying Amount of Property Assets Sold
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Plant & Equipment
Proceeds from Disposal
less: Carrying Amount of P&E Assets Sold
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Infrastructure
Proceeds from Disposal
less: Carrying Amount of Infrastructure Assets Sold
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

Non Current Assets Classified as "Held for Sale"
Proceeds from Disposal
less: Carrying Amount of "Held for Sale" Assets Sold
Net Gain/(Loss) on Disposal

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

-                    

(242)         

-                    

Notes

(15)                
20                 -                    

Actual

361               

(629)              
230               

807               

2009

(399)              

(33)           

(446)              

-                    

5                   

-                    

-                    

(14)                

927               

(628)              
(628)              

-                    

190               

Actual
2008

196               

210               

(737)              
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Note 6a. - Cash Assets and Note 6b. - Investment Securities

$ '000

Cash & Cash Equivalents (Note 6a)
Cash on Hand and at Bank
Cash-Equivalent Assets1

- Deposits at Call
- Managed Funds
- Short Term Deposits

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents

Investment Securities (Note 6b)
- Term Deposits
- Equity Linked Notes
- NCD's, FRN's (with Maturities > 3 months)

Total Investment Securities
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH
EQUIVALENTS & INVESTMENTS

1 Those Investments where time to maturity (from date of purchase) is < 3 mths.

Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments were
classified at year end in accordance with
AASB 139 as follows:

Cash & Cash Equivalents
a. "At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"

Investments
a. "At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"
- "Held for Trading"
- "Designated At Fair Value on Initial Recognition"
b. "Held to Maturity"
c. "Loans & Receivables"
d. "Available for Sale"
Investments

1,000         

Actual
Non Current

-                 

2008

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

2,195    

2009

-                 

-                 
-                 

Non Current
Actual

2,020         

439            

30,800       

Actual
Current

2,195         

2,195         

-               

36,209  

33,259     

6(b-iv)
2,950         

2,950         

-                 
-                 

-                 

6(b-i)

6(b-iii)

6(b-ii)

6(b-i)

-                 

2,950         
-                 

33,259       

2,950         

244            

10,500       
26,934       

3,036         

7,250         

2008

Current

-                 

-                 

Actual

13,154       

-                 

34,184    

-                 

2,133         

-                 
-                 

-                 

7,250         

26,934       

-                 

-               

7,250         

7,250         
-                 

1,195         1,133         

1,000         

1,133         

-                 

-                 
-                 

1,000         
1,195         

-                 

1,000         
-                 

2009

-                 

-                 

2,133    

2,133         

-                 

-                 
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Note 6b. Investments (continued)

$ '000

Note 6(b-i)
Reconciliation of Investments classified as
"At Fair Value through the Profit & Loss"
Nil

Note 6(b-ii)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Held to Maturity"
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Additions
Disposals (sales & redemptions)
Balance at End of Year

Comprising:
- Term Deposits
- NCD's, FRN's (with Maturities > 3 months)

Total

Note 6(b-iii)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Loans & Receivables"
Nil

Note 6(b-iv)
Reconciliation of Investments
classified as "Available for Sale"
Balance at the Beginning of the Year
Revaluation (transferred to equity)
Additions
Balance at End of Year

Comprising:
- Equity Linked Notes

Total

Actual

1,000         

1,500         

-                 

1,000         
1,000         2,950         

-                 -                 

-                 

-                 

1,000         

7,250         

-                 
1,000         

-                 

Actual
2008 2008

Non Current

2009

Current Non Current
Actual

-                 

7,250         

-                 

(313)           
946            -                 

1,133         
1,133         

1,133         -                 
-                 

1,133         

-                 

2,950         

(7,250)        

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

2,950         

2,950         

-                 

Current

7,250         

Actual
2009

1,195         

62              

1,195         

-                 
1,000         

1,195         

7,250         

1,000         
1,000         

-                 

500            -                 
-                 

5,750         
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Note 6c. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments

$ '000

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and
Investment Securities

attributable to:
External Restrictions (refer below)

Internal Restrictions (refer below)

Unrestricted

$ '000

Details of Restrictions

External Restrictions - Included in Liabilities
Specific Purpose Unexpended Loans-General (A)
Trust Deposits
External Restrictions - Included in Liabilities

External Restrictions - Other
Developer Contributions - General (D)
Developer Contributions - Water Fund (D)
Developer Contributions - Sewer Fund (D)
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants (F)
Specific Purpose Unexpended Grants (F) - Water Fund
Water Supplies (G)
Sewerage Services (G)
Domestic Waste Management (G)
Child Care Centres
Community Services
Community Tenancy Scheme
Family Day Care
Section 355 Committees
External Restrictions - Other
Total External Restrictions

-                 
369            

(65)             

4,224         

48              
3,662         

2                

37              

1,154         

614            

283            1,178         

Actual

Restrictions
Transfers from

34,184       

Transfers to

Non Current

-                 

-                 

762            

Actual

2,195       

-                 

2,195    

2,195         
-                 

-                 

2009

232            

3                

-                 

13,682       

2008

(1,660)        

-                 

Actual

3,863         

82              7                

4,378         

Current
Actual
2009

18,597       

21,549       

3,631         

2,431         

36,209     

65              

5,074         

(24)             
1,183         

37              

(13)             

-                 
(256)           

(91)             
1,945         
4,818         

-                 
50              

3,424         

Restrictions

Current Non Current

Closing

2,133    

-                 

1,461         

4,031         
2,398         

4,269         

586            

34,184    

17,078       
-                 

586            

2008

2,133         

2,133       

Balance

-                 
549            

Balance

10,282       

-                 232            
77              

227            5                
23              

(117)           

23,158       
23,744       

6,156         
6,193         

88              
(1,595)        

-                 

36,209  

(1,109)        

(65)             

(67)             

-                 

-                 
(33)             

-                 

2009

19,211       

194            

20              

Opening
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Note 6c. Restricted Cash, Cash Equivalents & Investments (continued)

$ '000

Internal Restrictions
Plant & Vehicle Replacement
Employees Leave Entitlement
Asset Replacement
Capital Program
Community Services (Rylstone)
Council Elections
Emergency Disaster
Land Development
Saleyards
State Roads Warranty
Airport Development
Total Internal Restrictions

TOTAL RESTRICTIONS

A Loan moneys which must be applied for the purposes for which the loans were raised. 
B Advances by the Roads and Traffic Authority for works on the State's classified roads. 
C Self Insurance liability resulting from reported claims or incurred claims not yet reported.  
D Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance

with contributions plans (refer Note 17). 
E RTA Contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance with

those contributions. 
F Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained.  (refer Note 1) 
G Water, Sewerage, Domestic Waste Management (DWM) & other Special Rates/Levies/Charges are externally

restricted assets and must be applied for the purposes for which they were raised.

-                 

Transfers from

2,885         

19              

(72)             

(123)           

(16)             
-                 

100            
73              

2,337         

-                 

954            
-                 

135            

10,646     

4,453         

30              
-                 

115            

-                 

395            

Balance

156            

43              

2,799         

2,033         1,882         

500            

170            
1,127         4,850         

2,787         

19              
40              

32,893     

73              -                 

827            

Closing
Balance

3,268         

(429)           81              
100            

Restrictions
Transfers to

(3,088)        

Restrictions

500            
119            

34,026     

10,282       

(9,513)      

(7,853)        13,682       

(485)           

-                 

(3,640)        

2009 Opening
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Note 7. Receivables

$ '000

Purpose
Rates & Annual Charges
Interest & Extra Charges
User Charges & Fees
Accrued Revenues
  - Interest on Investments
Government Grants & Subsidies
Net GST Receivable
Other Debtors
Total

less: Provision for Impairment
Rates & Annual Charges
Interest & Extra Charges
User Charges & Fees
Total Provision for Impairment - Receivables

TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES

Externally Restricted Receivables
Water Supply
- Specific Purpose Grants
- Rates & Availability Charges
- Other
Sewerage Services
- Specific Purpose Grants
- Rates & Availability Charges
- Other
Domestic Waste Management
Total External Restrictions
Internally Restricted Receivables
Nil
Unrestricted Receivables
TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES

Notes on Debtors above:
(i)   Rates & Annual Charges Outstanding are secured against the property.

(ii)  Doubtful Rates Debtors are provided for where the value of the property is less than the debt outstanding.
      An allowance for other doubtful debts is made when there is objective evidence that a receivable is impaired.

(iii) Interest is charged on overdue rates & charges at 10.00% (2008 10.00%).
Generally all other receivables are non interest bearing.

(iv) Please refer to Note 15 for issues concerning Credit Risk and Fair Value disclosures.

-                 

2,970         
8                

-                 
193            
468            

186            

-                 -                 

(99)             

-                 
124       -           

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

1,242         
116            

1                

3,189    
1,947         

-                 
-                 

-                 

124       

203            

-                 

-                 

124            

-                 

(22)             

-                 

(26)             

2,823      
1,743         

1,080         

124            

(147)           

2,823      

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

2009

216            
753            

1,386         

Current

94              

55              

35              

(118)           

602            

-                 

3,189    

10              

-           

-                 

129            

-                 

(8)               

966            

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

Non Current

849            

3,307         

102            -                 

84              

-                 

-                 45              

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

2008

-                 
-                 

Non CurrentCurrent

724            

1,168         
206            

-                 

-                 

-                 
124            

(23)             
(87)             
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Note 8. Inventories & Other Assets

$ '000

Inventories
Real Estate for resale (refer below)

Stores & Materials
Other
Total Inventories

Other Assets
Prepayments
Total Other Assets

TOTAL INVENTORIES
& OTHER ASSETS

Details for Real Estate Development
Residential
Total Real Estate for Resale
(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)

Represented by:
Acquisition Costs
Other Properties - Book Value
Total Costs
less: Provision for Under Recovery
Total Real Estate for Resale

Movements:
Real Estate assets at beginning of the year
- Purchases and other costs
- Transfers (in) from Note 9
- Transfer between Current/Non Current
Total Real Estate for Resale

-                 -                 

-                 

525         

26              

-                 
-                 

2008

1,821         

Non Current

499            

2009

-                 

Current

1,821         

-                 

Current

1,460         

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 -                 

-           1,821    

1,821         

63              
615            

2                

1,460         

-                 

-                 

(1,460)        

552            

-                 

525            

-                 

Non Current

-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

1,460         

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 361            

-                 1,821         

1,821         -                 

-                 -                 

1,821         

1,821         

-                 
-                 

2                

617       

-                 

-                 
-                 

361            

-                 
-                 -                 

-                 

-                 -                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 
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Note 8. Inventories & Other Assets (continued)

$ '000

(i) Externally Restricted Assets

Water
Stores & Materials
Total Water

Sewerage
Stores & Materials
Total Sewerage

Total Externally Restricted Assets
Total Internally Restricted Assets
Total Unrestricted Assets
TOTAL INVENTORIES & OTHER ASSETS

(ii) Other Disclosures

(a) Current Assets not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months
The following Inventories & Other Assets, even though classified
as current are not expected to be recovered in the next 12 months;

Nil

(b) Inventories recognised as an expense for the year included:
- Stores & Materials

2008
Current

-                 

-                 

26              
26              

137            

18              

137            

Current

18              
-                 

-                 

-                 

Non Current

-                 

-                 
-                 

361            

138            

-               

20082009

617          

-                 
1,821         

-                 

1,821       

155            

462            
-                 

Non Current

-                 

2009

138            
-                 
-                 

-                 
164            

-                 

525            

2,327         
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Note 9a. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

-                  
-                  

-              -                  

34,243     

-              96,411     

25,375     

11,692     

24,075     

-                  

-              

-              
-              

-              

27            -              

-              
4,906       

2,037       
-              

-              

-              

-              
-              -              

-              

23,338     
154          

29,188     5,055       
-              -              6,786       

11,657     

Financial R
eport 2009

101,764   
24,075     

-              

-              
-                  

1,687          
822             

-                  

-                  

-                  

-                  
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-                  
58,990     
28,862     

6,134       -              

-                  
-              14,413     

84            
27            

238          

-              -              
-              

-              
-              

-              

-                  

-              37,421     
-              40,453     

-              -              

-              5,523       
-              -              

121,311   

-                  

-                  
-                  223,075   

-                  

-                  
-               

(171)         
-                  

-               
-               
-               

Asset Movements during the Reporting Period

Adjustments
& Transfers

Depreciation 
Expense

WDV-Asset 
Disposals

Asset 
Additions

-              4,315       -              6,106       1,010       
(637)        

32            

-               

-               
-               

-               

-                  

16            
-               -                  

-               
-                  
-                  

1,563       

-              756          

-                  

-              

-                  

(12)           

-               
-               

-                  
-                  

-              
-              

(459)        
(1)            

(237)        
(11)          

-              
-              

-              
-              -                  
-              

10,713     
2,619       -              

20,817     10,104     
2,825       206          

-              

-              342          
-              656          

165          
907          

-                  -                  507          

-                  
-                  

-                  
-                  -               

Tfrs from/(to) 
"Real Estate 
Assets for 
Resale"

-               

Carrying

Value
-              

Dep'n Impairment
-              -              

Fair ValueCost

as at 30/6/2009

AtAt

Revaluation 
Increments to 
Equity (ARR) Accumulated

-              

-              

5,503       

8,485       
-              

-              
127          

-              

29,629     207          

10            
-              

1,596       

-              
17            

22,609     
40            

-              

674          -              

-              -              

-              

(381)        30,295     52            
-              

$ '000

 Furniture & Fittings -              
 Office Equipment
 Plant & Equipment -              
 Capital Work in Progress

Cost

 Plant & Equipment (under Finance Lease)

-              2,552       

889          
507          

2,782       
114          

-              

-              

123          

Fair Value
-              

1,563       

18,572     
2,110       

 Buildings - Specialised -              
 Buildings - Non Specialised

   -  Operational Land -              

   -  Land under Roads (purchased post 30/6/08) -              
   -  Land under Roads (purchased pre 1/7/08) -              

 Land Improvements - depreciable

 Land:

   -  Community Land 15,054     
30,295     

-              

4,726       

-              

34,355     
24,769     

-              
-              

-              

-              
2,160       

83            

as at 30/6/2008

CarryingAt AccumulatedAt

-              

-              
-              

-              
-              

-              
-              

-              

-              
Deprec. Impairment

-              724          -              
Value

2,110       

-              

(446)        (1,413)     -              
230          43            -              (67)          

2,834       -                  2,834       
10,087     

-              393          (51)          

4,087       

-              
-              

-              29,393     131             

(18)          

(641)         -              
(1,460)         

-              
29,393     

-              
-              

14,413     15,054     
-              

 Land Improvements - non depreciable 17            -              -              

-              

-              (350)        -                  20             Other Structures

117,534      -  Roads, Bridges, Footpaths 214,434   -              
 Infrastructure:

10,421     

8,602       -              
-              
-              96,900     

-              -              
-              (147)        

   -  Bulk Earthworks (non-depreciable) 24,075     
-                 -  Stormwater Drainage 10,869     -              5,366       

(3,770)     
-              24,075     

66,686     38,083     629          

762          
-              

   -  Water Supply Network -              

 Other Assets:

92,551     
   -  Sewerage Network -              

34,964     57,587     -              1,083       
28,603     -              -              

-              
(1,192)     
(1,367)     

1,249       -                  -                  986          -              

-                  -               -              -              -              -              
   - Quarry Asset 140          -              
   - Other Assets -              

127          

329,128 

-              

PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIP. 279,045   272,080   
TOTAL INFRASTRUCTURE,

221,997 -            

-              -              

(1,460)       290,216 338,777   231,888 -             2,640        280,449 

-              -              -              -              -              -                  

272          

(42)          

(84)          75            -              
-              -              

(45)          

-              -              

(8)            19,195   (1,075)   (9,643)    

13            -              
141          

902             -  Library Books 1,174       -              -              

Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & 
Restoration Assets (refer Note 26:

-              -                 -  Other -              -              

   - Tip Asset 628          -              209          -              419          
47            -              

-              69,315     

-                  -              

-              -                  
-              -                  -              

-              -              -              

55            -              187          
769          507          262          -                  

263          

-               
(8)             

-                  132          
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Note 9b. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
               that is Externally Restricted

Note 9c. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
              Gains/(Losses) arising from the Impairment of Assets

Council has not recognised any impairment losses during the reporting period nor reversed any prior period
losses.

30,189    

-                

40           

2,481      
299         

-             

27           
129         

168,039 73,844    

393           

97,422  

330           

-                299           
-                

6,174      

-                

150           

29,064    38,083      

2,406      

948         

-                

38,135      

4               

21             

969         

41           
59,576    
62,599    

-                
71             

18             

17             

-                

655           638         
8             

-                

96,994      
99,985      

37,418      
37,454      

1               

969           -                

151         

40,453      

-                969           

68,266      31,190    

270           

-                

58             

41           

61,059    
58,018    

969         

58             

-                

31             -                

67,147      

9             
3             

3               

2,336      

17             

-                

-                

652         

2,336        

1               

34,982      
34,961      

-                

92,979      

Actual
2009

Fair Value
At A/Dep &

Impairm'tCost
At

Actual
2008

Fair Value
A/Dep &At

Cost Impairm't
Carrying 

Value
At Carrying 

Value

-                

2,336      -                

-                -             

95,970      

-                

655           

-                

3               

-                

26             

42             

-                

 Water Supply

-                

 Land
2,336        

-                 Buildings
26             

   - Community Land
   - Operational Land -                

42              Other Structures

2,786      

29,728    

2,512      

-                
68             

-                

58             
-                

-                

-                

-                
-                

116         
-                

8               

16           

32             26           

40,524      

737         

467         
70,181      

1,007        

-                

1,278        

2,481        
-                
-                

58             

506           

-                

-                

-                

39             

71,656      

6,318      3,098        3,803        

-                

542           2,799        

44             

820           727           

78,798  100,107175,284  3,621      TOTAL RESTRICTED I,PP&E

2,512        

124           

3,227    

151           
-                

3,643        
-                

3,495        
3,328        

16             

-                

-                
-                

 Total Sewerage Services
 Infrastructure

   - Operational Land

 Domestic Waste Management
 Plant & Equipment
 Land

 Land

 Buildings

   - Operational Land
   - Improvements - depreciable

   - Improvements - depreciable

 Infrastructure
 Total Water Supply

 Sewerage Services

$ '000

 Class of Asset

   - Improvements - depreciable
 Buildings
 Other Assets

   - Community Land

 Total DWM
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Note 10a. Payables, Borrowings & Provisions

$ '000

Payables
Goods & Services - operating expenditure
Goods & Services - capital expenditure
Payments Received In Advance
Accrued Expenses;
 - Borrowings
 - Other Expenditure Accruals
Security Bonds, Deposits & Retentions
Other
Total Payables

Borrowings
Loans - Secured 1

Finance Lease Liabilities
Total Borrowings

Provisions
Employee Benefits;
Annual Leave
Sick Leave
Long Service Leave
Sub Total - Aggregate Employee Benefits
Asset Remediation/Restoration (Future Works)

Total Provisions

Total Payables,
Borrowings & Provisions

1. Loans are secured over the General Rating Income of Council
   Disclosures on Liability Interest Rate Risk Exposures, Fair Value Disclosures & Security can be found in Note 15.

681            

1,180         

135            

1,017         

Non Current

-                 

1,487         

2009

-                 

-                 

1,178         -                 

78              

-                 
-                 

Notes

75              
7,068         

-                 
32              

957            -                 

4,033               163                  

156            
6,832         

32              

Current

-                 
-                 

Current
2008

Non Current

-                 
284            

1,278         
1,243         

83              

-                 

-                 
4                

-                 

3,473         

368            

-                 

-                 
549            -                 

72              

8,192    8,187      

1,049         4,033         
870            

107            
179                  

-                 974            
992            

2,067         

-                 

586            

1,028         
1,202         

4,318         

117            
392            

313            
6,676         

26

4,715         
64              

9,542    

509            

4,651               

2,421         

8,012    

7,143         

-                 
28              
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Note 10a. Payables, Borrowings & Provisions (continued)

$ '000

(i) Liabilities relating to Restricted Assets

Externally Restricted Assets
Domestic Waste Management
Water
Sewer
Trust Deposits
Liabilities relating to externally restricted assets

Internally Restricted Assets
Employee Leave Entitlements
Liabilities relating to internally restricted assets

Total Liabilities relating to restricted assets

(ii) Current Liabilities not anticipated to be settled within the next 12 months

The following Liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected
to be settled in the next 12 months.

Provisions - Employees Benefits

Note 10b. Description of and movements in Provisions

a. Employees Leave Entitlements & On-Costs represents those benefits accrued and payable and an estimate of those
   that will become payable in the future as a result of past service.

b. Self Insurance Provisions represent both (i) Claims Incurred but Not reported and (ii) Claims Reported & Estimated
   as a result of Council's being a self insurer up to certain levels of Excess.

c. Asset Remediation, Reinstatement & Restoration Provisions represent the Present Value estimate of future costs Council
   will incur in order to remove, restore & remediate assets &/or activities as a result of past operations.

1,081            

4,519         

2                   
-                    

Unused 
amounts 
reversed

-                    

5,119         

70                 

2,969         

-                    

Remeasurement 
effects due to 

Discounting

-                 

2,969         

1,732         

2,787         

2009 2008

2,556            

5,388         

Closing
Balance

as at 30/6/09

1,028            

2008

7,708         

142               

Decrease due to 
Payments

1,230            

5,895            

475            

-                 
786            

1,507         
586            

Class of Provision
Opening
Balance

as at 1/7/08

2008

2009

150            

181            

254               

Additional 
Provisions

2009

2,276         

-                 

7,465         

870               
(175)              

1,077            

4,392         

(158)              

2,885         
2,885         

2,174            415               

Annual Leave 974               
Sick Leave

167               

1,064            
Long Service Leave
Asset Remediation

5,082            TOTAL 1,913            (1,466)           -                    
152               -                    
366               

(1,025)           

(108)              

Non Current

728            

1,618         

-                 

7,465         

Current

590            

-                 

7,708         

-                 2,787         

Non Current

225            
549            

1,534         
483            

Current

2,276         
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Note 11. Cash Flow Statement - Additional Information

$ '000

(a) Reconciliation of Cash Assets
Total Cash & Cash Equivalent Assets
Less Bank Overdraft
BALANCES as per the CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(b) Reconciliation of Net Operating Result
     to Cash provided from Operating Activities

Net Operating Result from Income Statement
Adjust for non cash items:
Depreciation & Amortisation
Net Losses/(Gains) on Disposal of Assets
Losses/(Gains) recognised on Fair Value Re-measurements through the P&L:
  - Investments classified as "@ Fair Value" or "Held for Trading"
  - Write Offs relating to the Fair Valuation of I,PP&E
Unwinding of Discount Rates on Reinstatement Provisions
Net Loss/(Gain) on Council Restructure/Amalgamations (excl. Cash)

+/- Movement in Operating Assets and Liabilities & Other Cash Items:
Decrease/(Increase) in Receivables
Increase/(Decrease) in Provision for Doubtful Debts
Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets
Increase/(Decrease) in Payables
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued Interest Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in other accrued Expenses Payable
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Leave Entitlements
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Provisions
NET CASH PROVIDED FROM/(USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES from CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2008

242               

(65)                

551               
551               

(175)              

105               

-                    

(90)                

(5)                  

(2)                  

152               

(4)                  

182               

(153)              

-                    
33,259          

9,670            

33,259          

33                 

1,240            (309)              
4                   

5,650            

8,545            

26,934          

4                   

2009

15,716         

358               
10                 

79                 

(4)                  

59                 
602               

21,425         

76                 

26,934          

ActualActual

6a

10

(213)              

-                    

-                    

10,084          

(29)                

-                    

Notes
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Note 11. Cash Flow Statement - Additional Information (continued)

$ '000

(c) Non-Cash Investing & Financing Activities

Nil

(d) Financing Arrangements

(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the
     following lines of credit:

Bank Overdraft Facilities (1)

Standby Credit Facilities
Operating Lease Facility
Credit Cards / Purchase Cards
Total Financing Arrangements

Amounts utilised as at Balance Date:
- Bank Overdraft Facilities
Standby Credit Facilities
Operating Lease Facility
Credit Cards / Purchase Cards
Total Financing Arrangements Utilised

1. The Bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

   Interest rates on overdrafts are Interest Rates on Loans & Other Payables are disclosed in Note 15.

(ii) Secured Loan Liabilities

Loans are secured by a mortgage over future years Rate Revenue only.

(e) Net Cash Flows Attributable to Discontinued Operations

Please refer to Note 24 for details of Cash Flows that relate to Discontinued Operations

499               

700               
310               

743               

200               

-                    

143               

1,810            

2009
Actual

493               

700               
310               
600               

50                 
1,660            

600               

-                    
600               

6                   

Actual
2008

-                    
-                    

Notes
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Note 12. Commitments for Expenditure

$ '000

(a) Capital Commitments (exclusive of GST)

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, Plant & Equipment
Buildings
Other Structures
Roads & Transport
Water Supply Network
Drainage
Sewerage Network
Other Assets
Total Commitments

These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year
Total Payable

Sources for Funding of Capital Commitments:
Unrestricted General Funds
Sect 64 & 94 Funds/Reserves
Unexpended Grants
Externally Restricted Reserves
Internally Restricted Reserves
Total Sources of Funding

(b) Other Expenditure Commitments (exclusive of GST)

Other Non Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting
date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Cleaning Services
Audit Services
Courier Services
Software
Tourism Support Contract
Other
Total Commitments

These expenditures are payable as follows:
Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Total Payable

172               

658               

2008

62                 

518               

26                 
11                 

103               

1,183            

152               
133               

2009Notes

658               

658               

Actual

114               

64                 
193               

136               

-                    

68                 

59                 

391               
120               

38                 
266               

300               

518               

-                    
71                 

487               

658               

108               

518               

765               
418               

107               

44                 

Actual

-                    
74                 

74                 

161               

1,183            

620               
36                 

525               
1,012            

1,012            

20                 

518               

21                 

161               
123               

151               

368               
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Note 12. Commitments for Expenditure (continued)

$ '000

(c) Finance Lease Commitments

(i) Commitments under Finance Leases at the Reporting Date
    are payable as follows:

Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total Minimum Lease Payments
less: Future Finance Charges
Amount Recognised as a Liability

(ii) Finance Lease Liability Recognised represent;

Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Total Finance Lease Liabilities Disclosed

(iii) General Details

Council Leases the following Property, Plant & Equipment under
Finance Leases:

Purchase
Heavy Plant - Carrying Value
Other Equipment/Assets
Total Carrying Value at Year End

(d) Operating Lease Commitments (Non Cancellable)

 a. Commitments under Non Cancellable Operating Leases at the
     Reporting date, but not recognised as Liabilities are payable:

Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total Non Cancellable Operating Lease Commitments

 b. Non Cancellable Operating Leases include the following assets:
Motor vehicles, Computers & Other Office Equipment.
Contingent Rentals may be payable depending on the condition of items or usage during the lease term.

388               

331               
84                 

415               
(27)                

313               

-                    
299               

Notes
Actual

136               

Y

156               

388               

353               

-                    

(Years)
Contingent

Rent Clauses
Option to

5 YY

Y

Term

3-8

75                 

651               

275               

388               

-                    

2009

163               

35                 

Actual

1,025            

273               

376               

-                    

26                 

117               

273               
(26)                

247               

273               

511               
514               

2008
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Note 12. Commitments for Expenditure (continued)

$ '000

Conditions relating to Finance & Operating Leases:

- All Finance & Operating Lease Agreement are secured only against the Leased Asset.

- No Lease Agreements impose any financial restrictions on Council regarding future debt etc.

(e) Investment Property Commitments 

Not Applicable

(f) Remuneration Commitments

Commitments for the payment of salaries & other remuneration
under long-term employment contracts in existence at reporting
date but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year
Later than one year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years
Total Payable

(g) Investment in Associates / Joint Ventures - Commitments

For Capital Commitments and Other Commitments relating to 
Investments in Associates & Joint Ventures, refer to Note 19 (b)

2009

1,796            

Notes

6,017            
-                    

4,464            

2,769            4,221            
-                    

1,695            

2008
ActualActual
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$ '000

1. Unrestricted Current Ratio
Current Assets less all External Restrictions (1)

Current Liabilities less Specific Purpose Liabilities (2,3)

2. Debt Service Ratio
Debt Service Cost
Revenue from Continuing Operations
excluding Capital Items & Specific
Purpose Grants/Contributions

3. Rates & Annual Charges
    Coverage Ratio
Rates & Annual Charges
Revenue from Continuing Operations

4. Rates, Annual Charges, Interest &
    Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage
Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Outstanding
Rates, Annual & Extra Charges Collectible

5. Building & Infrastructure
    Renewals Ratio
Asset Renewals(4)  [Buildings & Infrastructure]
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment
(Building & Infrastructure Assets)

Notes

(1) Refer Notes 6-8 inclusive.
   Also excludes any Real Estate & Land for resale not expected to be sold in the next 12 months

(2) Refer to Note 10(a).

(3) Refer to Note 10(c) - excludes all ELE not expected to be paid in the next 12 months.

(4) Asset Renewals represent the replacement &/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity or performance
    

 as opposed to the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.

2008 2007
Prior Periods

4.16%

n/a

4.02%

8,026        

3.38 : 1

35.40%

19,747      
4.35%

39.22%

859           

981           

Amounts

17,119      

2009 2009
Indicator

3.16%

5,066        

52,875      

39,002      

18,717      

2.52%

7,572        

4.61

118.48%

2.53%

37.79%

5.34

106.00%
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Note 13a. Statement of Performance Measurement - Graphs

$ '000

Purpose of Debt 
Service Ratio

To assess the impact 
of loan principal & 

interest repayments 
on the discretionary 
revenue of council.

Commentary on 2008/09 Result

Council did not draw down any additional
borrowings during 2008/09.

Purpose of Rates & 
Annual Charges 

Outstanding Ratio

Purpose of Rates & 
Annual Charges 
Coverage Ratio

Council experienced a slight deterioration in its
Rates Outstanding Percentage compared to
2008/09, which reflects the general economic
downturn and the increased pressures on
household income.

Commentary on 2008/09 Result

To assess the degree 
of Council's 

dependence upon 
revenue from rates 
and annual charges 
and to assess the 

security of Council's 
income.

Commentary on 2008/09 Result

2008/09 Ratio      4.35%

Commentary on 2008/09 Result

2008/09 Ratio      3.38 : 1

2008/09 Ratio      2.52%

Council undertook a several large planned
capital projects during 2008/09, reducing levels
of internally restricted cash.

To assess the 
adequacy of working 
capital and its ability 
to satisfy obligations 
in the short term for 

the unrestricted 
activities of Council.

Purpose of 
Unrestricted Current 

Ratio

2008/09 Ratio      35.40%

To assess the impact 
of uncollected rates 
and annual charges 
on Council's liquidity 
and the adequacy of 

recovery efforts.

The increase in the volume of grants received
during 2008/09 has caused this ratio to decline
from 2007/08 levels. This is largely attributable
to the early payment of instalment one of the
2009/10 Financial Assistance Grant; and
receipt of stimulus funding from the Federal
Government.

1. Unrestricted Current Ratio

4.05

5.34
4.61

3.38

0.0

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

2006 2007 2008 2009
Year

R
at

io
 :

 1

2. Debt Service Ratio

14.96%

3.16% 2.53% 2.52%

0%

5%

10%

15%

2006 2007 2008 2009
Year

R
at

io

3. Rates & Annual Charges Coverage 
Ratio

40.13%

37.79%

39.22%

35.40%

32%

34%

36%

38%

40%

42%

2006 2007 2008 2009
Year

R
at

io

4. Rates, Annual Charges, Interest & 
Extra Charges Outstanding Percentage

4.23% 4.16% 4.02%
4.35%

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

2006 2007 2008 2009
Year

R
at

io
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$ '000

Council has not classified any Land or Buildings as "Investment Properties"

Actual
20082009

Actual
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management

$ '000

Risk Management

Council's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (i) price risk, (ii) credit risk, (iii) liquidity risk and
(iv) interest rate risk.

The Council's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign
currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council's Finance Section under policies approved by the Council.

A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Council's Financial Assets & Financial Liabilities
recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
- "Held to Maturity"
- "Available for Sale"
Receivables
Total Financial Assets

Financial Liabilities
Payables
Loans / Advances
Lease Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Fair Value is determined as follows:

- Cash & Cash Equivalents, Receivables, Payables - are estimated to be the carrying value which approximates mkt value.

- Borrowings & Held to Maturity Investments - are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current
  market interest rates applicable to assets & liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.

- Financial Assets classified (i) "at far value through profit & loss" or (ii) Available for Sale - are based upon quoted
  market prices at the reporting date or independent valuation.

2009

3,950       

33,259     

7,436         
2,831       

3,189       2,947         3,189       

10,172     
273          388            

7,068       

41,593     

1,195       

2008

26,934       

39,264     

2,831       

1,133         

6,347       
3,189         

180          
11,013     

6,499         

10,024     

39,223     

3,140         

8,213         

385            

26,934       

2009

33,259     

2008

1,133         
2,943         

Fair Value      

1,195       
3,371       8,250         

Carrying Value   

41,014     

9,358       
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)

$ '000

(a) Cash & Cash Equivalents, Financial assets "at fair value through the profit & Loss",
     "Available-for-sale" financial assets & "Held-to-maturity" Investments

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash & investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of
liquidity and preserving capital.

Council's Financial Section manages it's Cash & Investments portfolio.

Council has an Investment Policy which complies with the Local Government Act & Minister's Investment Order.
This Policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an Investment Report is tabled before Council on
a monthly basis setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance.

The major risk associated with Investments is price risk - the risk that the capital value of Investments may
fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether there changes are caused by factors specific to individual
financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

Cash & Investments are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could affect
returns and income.

A further risk associated with Cash & Investments is credit risk - the risk that the counterparty (to an investment)
will not complete their obligations particular to a financial instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council - be
it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing
investments with high credit ratings or capital guarantees.

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's Income Statement and Accumulated Surplus
(during the reporting period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period. 

2009
Possible impact of a 10% movement in Market Values
Possible impact of a 1% movement in Interest Rates

2008
Possible impact of a 10% movement in Market Values
Possible impact of a 1% movement in Interest Rates

Profit
-                 

Increase of Values/Rates

384            

353            

(384)           

466            
(363)           

Equity
120            -                 

(353)           

(384)           

Profit

363            

Decrease of Values/Rates

(466)           
363            

(120)           
384            

(363)           

Equity
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)

$ '000

(b) Receivables

Council's major receivables comprise (i) Rates & Annual charges and (ii) User Charges & Fees.

The major risk associated with these receivables is credit risk - the risk that debts due and payable to Council
may not be repaid in full.

Council manages this risk by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent debt recovery procedures.
It also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land
relating to the debts - that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest
on overdue rates & annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for
acceptable collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most
non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

A profile of Council's receivables credit risk at balance date follows:

(i)  Ageing of Receivables
Current (not yet overdue)
Past due by up to 30 days
Past due between 31 and 180 days
Past due between 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year

(ii) Movement in Provision for Impairment
     of Receivables
Balance at the beginning of the year
+ new provisions recognised during the year
- amounts already provided for & written off this year
- amounts provided for but recovered during the year
Balance at the end of the year

Charges

7                -                 

Annual

51              

131            

118            
(59)             

2,554         

32              
147            

2009

724            

(2)               

25              

2008

-                 
224            

318            

Annual

-                 

Rates &
Other

154            
103            

251            
Charges

Rates &
20092009

2,208         
Receivables

182            

753            
245            

139            

Other

2,089         
Receivables

147            

(18)             

137            

2,370         

(5)               

33              

2008

145            
83              

2008

46              
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Note 15. Financial Risk Management (continued)

$ '000

(c) Payables & Borrowings

Payables & Borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk - the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to meet
payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an
adequate cash buffer.

As well, payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) be extended & overdraft facilities can be drawn 
down.

The contractual undiscounted cash outflows (ie. principal and interest) of Council's Payables & Borrowings are
set out in the Liquidity Table below:

$ '000

Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances
Lease Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances
Lease Liabilities
Total Financial Liabilities

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk - the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect
funding costs & debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through the diversification of borrowing
types, maturities & interest rate structures.

The following interest rates were applicable
to Council's Borrowings at balance date:

Trade/Other Payables
Loans & Advances - Fixed Interest Rate
Lease Liabilities

-             

2,812     

298        

10,172  

6.5%

11,013  

7,436         
0.0%

14,975   

Value

7,151     

3,189         

10,172       11,013       
388            6.5%

Carrying
2008

388       -             

Average
Interest Rate

415        

Value
Carrying

Interest Rate

18          

-             

13,637   

3,189     

844        

-             

7,151     7,436    
3,189    

6,307     

273       

2,831    
7,068    10,527   6,307     

Outflows

ActualTotal
Cash

Values
Carrying

2008

2009

to no
maturity

586        3,206     

Subject
payable in:

844        

-             

4-5 Yrs

-             

> 5 Yrs

-             136        144        

1-2 Yrs

-             

≤ 1 Year

988        

-             

844        844        

36          

844        

844        

2,226     -             586        

844        844        

-             

-             

7,068         6.5%

2,831         0.0%

875        

31          

273            7.1%

-             549        

Average

880        

2009

844        862        

2,640     -             

549        

844        

330        

2-3 Yrs

11,371   

844        

-             

-             

-             

-             

3-4 Yrs

3,814     

18          

862        844        

844        

-             
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Note 16. Material Budget Variations

$ '000

Council's Original Financial Budget for 08/09 was incorporated as part of its Management Plan and was adopted
by the Council on 18 June 2008.

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Report must disclose the Original
Budget adopted by Council, the Local Government Act requires Council to review its Financial Budget on a
Quarterly Basis, so that it is able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that invariably
occur throughout the year.

This Note sets out the details of MATERIAL VARIATIONS between Council's Original Budget and its Actual 
results for the year as per the Income Statement - even though such variations may have been adjusted for 
during each Quarterly Budget Review.

Material Variations represent those variances that amount to 10% or more of the original budgeted figure.

Note that for Variations: F = Favourable Budget Variation, U = Unfavourable Budget Variation

$ '000

REVENUES
Rates & Annual Charges

User Charges & Fees

Interest & Investment Revenue

Other Revenues

Operating Grants & Contributions

Capital Grants & Contributions

Net Gains from Disposal of Assets

2009 20092009
---------- Variance* ----------

(0%)18,717          

2%

2,055            834          

redevelopment of the  Cudgegong Southbank site; and the Lions Drive subdivision.

$500,000 as a result of decreased demand for the product.

Council generally adopts a conservative approach when budgeting for interest on investments. However, also 

During the year, Council experienced a substantial decline in revenue from the sales of recyclable materials of

F

than anticipated portfolio balance as a result of a change in timing of a number of major projects such as the

1,221            

U

contributing to the favourable result is that across the course of the year, Council held a significantly higher

10,357          197          

18,748          

Budget Actual

(31)          

2,462       24%

- Council obtained additional contributions for roads maintenance and repairs $550,000 (F)

7,635            F3%

12,515          

7,866            

-                    U

land sales contributed to a zero net gain from the disposal of assets ($2,150,000). Council also scrapped a 
Whilst Council's plant replacement program results outperformed Original Budget, the delays in settlements of 

2,431            (100%)

number of past or historical land parcels and buildings from its asset register ($420,000).

10,160          

- Council received a $100,000 grant for the introduction of a Youth Program in the Mid-Western Region

Redbank Dam upgrade; Rylstone area security of water supply; Glenwillow Sports Complex upgrade;

(34%)(691)        1,365            2,056            

F

F

68%

10,053          
- Receipt of instalment one of the 2009/10 Financial Assistance Grants $1,280,000 (F)

231          

(2,431)     

U
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Note 16. Material Budget Variations (continued)

$ '000

EXPENSES
Employee Benefits & On-Costs

Borrowing Costs

Materials & Contracts

Depreciation & Amortisation

Other Expenses

Net Losses from Disposal of Assets

Actual

(13%)

1%

Due to delays in the timing of the associated project, those loan funds were not required, resulting in lower

530               

2009

13%80            610               

243          16,801          

U

Council provided in its Original Budget an estimate for drawing down an additional $1.5m of loan borrowings.

478          11,602          F4%

than estimated borrowing costs.

8,546            

F

12,080          

17,044          

20092009

to fair value as at 30 June 2008. Estimates included in the Original Budget for 2009 depreciation were based

U(10%)(386)        4,155            
- General revaluation resulted in a write-off of Farmland rating income of $58k as a result of legislation 

F

---------- Variance* ----------Budget

Depreciation costs were substantially higher than estimated as a result of the revaluation of Council buildings
9,670            

including Roads, Bridges and Footpaths; Other Structures; and the Water Supply Network.

-                    (33)          U33                 

(1,124)     

on historical costs. Depreciation was also higher than anticipated across some other asset categories,

3,769            

- Increased cost of water licences payable to State Government $33k (U)

0%

  prohibiting increases in farmland rates of more than 20% per annum

- Increased telecommunications expenditure $99k (U)
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Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions

$ '000

Council recovers contributions, raises levies & enters into planning agreements on development works that are subject to a development consent issued by Council.
All contributions must be spent/utilised for the specific purpose they were levied and any interest applicable to unspent funds must be attributed to remaining funds.

The following tables detail the receipt, interest and use of the above contributions & levies and the value of all remaining funds which are "restricted" in their future use.

SUMMARY OF CONTRIBUTIONS & LEVIES

Borrowings
due/(payable)

-                   

-                   

-               

-                   

(7,561)          

Internal

-                   

-                   

-                   

-                   

-                   

Projections Cumulative

-                   

-                   

-                   

-                   

-                   
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-                   

(7,561)     (12,705)   

1,690       -               
Administration

1,118       

-               

446          

20            

198          S94 Contributions - under a Plan

Civic Improvements (69)          
Car Parking

-               

S93F Planning Agreements

Total Contributions

3,609       

Other

S64 Contributions

38            15            -               
-               

-               

95            

-               7,833       

-               

-               

280          

8,128       

-               

3,989       

-               

-               -                -               

-               

3,859       

-               -                   -                

Interest

49            

1              

5              -               

-               

Over orExpenditure

114              

(to)/from
during Borrowing Future

-               

Exp

-               

S94A Levies - under a Plan

S94 not under Plans

107          

339          

293          

-               

379          

-               

Total S94 Revenue Under Plans

-               3,778       

3,885       

-               

(12,705)        

-                

1,362       

still

-               (512)          

-               

-               

(1,444)        

-               

186            
-                

Internal Held as

16            
-               

-               
(10)          

96              
-                -               

626          
in Year incomeAssetYear

3,782       
-               

-               
-               

1,362           

-                

207          

(292)        

-               -               

-               
137          

(331)        142          

14            (519)        

163          

earned Restricted

(1,789)        
21            

(140)        588            378          
492            

(331)        

(under)

(1,308)          

(4,168)          (4,100)        
(2,728)        

Funding

(1,014)          (2,132)        
(823)             

outstandingNon Cash

(362)             

-               
-               

1,558       

1,234       
(68)          

54            

PURPOSE

Transport Management

Opening
CashBalance

550          

received during the Year
Contributions

-               

1              
-               

Open Space 394          108          -               

-               
Community Facilities 1,175       

55            

-               
-               

49            (181)        

(1,142)     319          
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Note 17. Statement of Developer Contributions (continued)

$ '000

S94 CONTRIBUTIONS - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN: MID-WESTERN REGIONAL 2005 - 2021

S94A LEVIES - UNDER A PLAN

CONTRIBUTION PLAN: MID-WESTERN REGIONAL 2005 - 2021
Exp

duringearned
in Year

-                -                
3,782         

-                

927            

-                

-                

108            

15              
-                

-                
-                

Cash Non Cash

-                

InterestContributions
received during the Year

-                
198            

55              

-                

Opening received during the Year
Contributions

-                -                Total 5                

Non CashCash
Transport Management

PURPOSE
Balance

-                

Projections

Over or

-                

(to)/from

Expenditure

Year

(10)            
(140)          

-                

Internal

-                

49              
1                

137            

1                

-                
(181)          

-                

49              
16              
21              

Asset

-                
-                

-                

-                

-                

income

626            492            

Held as
RestrictedBorrowing

1,558         

378            
186            
588            

-                
1,234         

(68)            

Future

96              54              

(331)          -                

-                

394            

Balance

550            

-                
1,690         

Community Facilities

Total

Civic Improvements

Other

Car Parking
Administration

1,175         
Open Space

PURPOSE

Transport Management

38              

(69)            

Opening

20              
-                

-                
3,778         

114            (1,444)        

(12,705)        
-                -                

(512)          

(1,014)        
(823)          (1,789)        

(2,728)        (1,308)        

(2,132)        

(4,100)        

-                

Funding
still (under)

Exp

outstanding

(4,168)        

(362)          

(7,561)          1,362           

-                

Borrowing
Internal

Projections

Over or

207            107            95              -                   927              720              

Asset
still (under)

outstanding Funding
during

in Year
5                

Year (to)/from

Held as
Restricted

-                

Future
income

107            95              -                

Expenditure

720            

Interest
earned

-                

-                

Internal

-                   

Cumulative

-                

-                

Borrowings
due/(payable)

-                

-                

-                

-                

-                

due/(payable)

Cumulative
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Notes to the Financial Statements
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Note 18. Contingencies & Other Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised

$ '000

accordance with those Plans.

through the required Contributions Plans.

for all claims through its Insurance Coverage and
does not expect any material liabilities to eventuate.

Council levies Section 94/94A Contributions upon
various development across the Council area

(ii) S94 Plans
scheme to rectify the net deficit position will be
Future contributions made to the defined benefit

The Schemes most recent full actuarial review
indicated that the Net Assets of the Scheme were

however is unable to provide Council with an

As part of these Plans, Council has received funds

from it's Defined Benefit Scheme obligations in

that member Councils will need to make significantly

claims incidental to the ordinary course of business

Council believes that it is appropriately covered

including claims for damages relating to its services.

The Council is involved from time to time in various

(i). Third Party Claims

payable - similar to the accounting for Defined

for which it will be required to expend the monies in

Member Councils bear responsibility of ensuring
there are sufficient funds available to pay out the

accordingly Council has not recorded any net liability

accordance with AASB 119.

higher contributions from 2009/10 & beyond.

The Local Government Superannuation Scheme

not sufficient to meet the accrued benefits of the
Schemes Defined Benefit member category and

Defined Benefit Superannuation Scheme, and

Contributions Plans.

recognised as an expense when they become

accurate estimate of its share of the net deficit &

(iii) Other Guarantees

Council has a contingent liability to contribute further

capital base as a result of the company's past

to maintain the company’s minimum level of Net

equity in the event of the erosion of the Company's

1. Guarantees

Council participates in an employer sponsored

2. Other Liabilities

than those listed above.

of any increased prudential requirements of APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required

Assets in accordance with its Licence Requirements.

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for
recognition in the Balance Sheet, but their
knowledge & disclosure is considered relevant to

(ii) StateCover Limited

Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited

Council has provided no other Guarantees other

     Contribution Plans
(i) Defined Benefit Superannuation

required benefits as they fall due.

makes contributions as determined by the
Superannuation Scheme's Trustees.

performance and/or claims experience or as a

the users of Council's Financial Report. and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

compensation insurance cover to the NSW Local
Government Industry and specifically Council.

StateCover is a company providing workers
LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:
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Note 18. Contingencies & Other Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised (continued)

$ '000

conditions of consent have been satisfied.

value and duration of outstanding Notices, Council is
Due to the limited information available on the status,

Infringement Notices. 

not to bring to account Land Under Roads that it

provided by various developers across the

(iii) Bank Guarantees
owned or controlled up to & including 30/6/08.

Council holds a number bank guarantees to the

income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.
The guarantees will be returned once the associated

due to Council representing issued but updated

Councils Revenue Recognition policy for such

Accordingly, at Year End, there is a potential asset

(ii) Infringement Notices/Fines

subject land at a price of $1.2M plus GST subject

conditions of consent in relation to approved
Fines & Penalty Income, the result of Council issuing
Infringement Notices is followed up and collected by

(i) Land Under Roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected

Mid-Western Region to secure performance of

secure the  performance of the purchaser, Council
These future expenses do not yet qualify as liabilities entered into a Deed of Option to purchase the

known as the Mortimer Street Carpark for the sum of

future years. Covenant with the purchaser for the provision of

expenditure to be undertaken by Council, which will
executed, Council also executed a Deed of
At the same time as the sale of land contract was 

The Option lapses once the purchaser constructs

likely that the developer will fail to achieve this

set out in those Plans.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED:

to a number of conditions.

unable to determine the value of outstanding income.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED:

2. Other Liabilities (continued)

value of $466,412.84. These guarantees are

(iii) Deed of Option

(ii) S94 Plans (continued)

be funded by making levies and receipting funds in

as of the Reporting Date, but represent Councils
intention to spend funds in the manner and timing

the Infringement Processing Bureau.

As well, these Plans indicate proposed future

more than 25% of the gross lettable floor area of the 

$1.5M plus GST.

to exercise the Option.

On 20 September 2006 Council executed a contract
for the sale of various parcels of land collectively

Development Applications.

approved Development. It is becoming increasingly

carparking spaces on the subject land. In order to

requirement, thus giving the Council the potential
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Note 19. Controlled Entities, Associated Entities & Interests in Joint Ventures

$ '000

Council has no interest in any Controlled Entities, Associated Entities or Joint Ventures.
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Note 20. Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves

$ '000

a. Retained Earnings

Movements in Retained Earnings were as follows:
Balance at beginning of Year (from previous years audited accounts)

a. Correction of Prior Period Errors
b. Changes in Accounting Policies (Prior Period Effects)
c. Current Year Income & Expenses Recognised direct to Equity
    excluding direct to Reserves transactions
d. Net Operating Result for the Year
e.  Distributions to/(Contributions from) Minority Interests
f. Transfers between Equity
g. Other Changes (disclosure required)
Balance at End of the Reporting Period

b. Reserves

(i) Reserves are represented by:

- Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
- "Available for Sale" Financial Investments Revaluation Reserve
- Other Reserves (Specify)
Total

(ii). Reconciliation of movements in Reserves:

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
- Opening Balance
- Revaluations for the year
- Impairment of revalued assets (incl. impairment reversals)
- Transfer to Retained Earnings for Assets Disposed of
- Balance at End of Year

"Available for Sale" Financial Investments Revaluation Reserve
- Opening Balance
- Gains/(Losses) in Value for the year
- Balance at End of Year

TOTAL VALUE OF RESERVES

9(a)

90,967          

67,320          
-                    9(a)

90,662      

88,120      

-                    

90,662      

(367)              (305)              

(160)              

2,640            

(312)              
(55)                

88,487          

62                 
(367)              

-                    

90,967          

274,863   

(305)              

-                    

20 (d)

-                    

Notes
Actual

20 (c)

264,619        

-                    

-                    
-                    

(367)              

-                    

264,619   
-                    

88,487          

-                    

-                    

-                    

2009

-                    

-                    

Actual
2008

258,969        

-                    
160               

88,120      

10,084          

88,487          

5,650            

21,167          
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Note 20. Equity - Retained Earnings and Revaluation Reserves

$ '000

b. Reserves (continued)

(iii). Nature & Purpose of Reserves

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Reserve
- The Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation
   Reserve is used to record increments/decrements of Non
  Current Asset values due to their revaluation.

"Available for Sale" Financial Investments Revaluation Reserve
- The "Available for Sale" Financial Investments Revaluation
  Reserve is used to account for the Fair Value movements in all
  financial assets so classified that remain on hand at year end.

  Upon sale, amounts in Reserves are recognised in the Income
  Statement (in full) by way of transfer from the Reserve.

c. Correction of Error/s relating to a Previous Reporting Period

     Council made no correction of errors during the current reporting period.

d. Voluntary Changes in Accounting Policies

     Council made no voluntary changes in any accounting policies during the year.

2008
ActualActual

Notes 2009
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Note 21. Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund

Income Statement by Fund
$ '000

Continuing Operations
Income from Continuing Operations
Rates & Annual Charges
User Charges & Fees
Interest & Investment Revenue
Other Revenues
Grants & Contributions provided for Operating Purposes
Grants & Contributions provided for Capital Purposes
Other Income
Net Gains from Disposal of Assets
Share of interests in Joint Ventures & Associates
using the Equity Method
Total Income from Continuing Operations

Expenses from Continuing Operations
Employee Benefits & on-costs
Borrowing Costs
Materials & Contracts
Depreciation & Amortisation
Impairment
Other Expenses
Interest & Investment Losses
Net Losses from the Disposal of Assets
Share of interests in Joint Ventures & Associates
using the Equity Method
Total Expenses from Continuing Operations
Operating Result from Continuing Operations

Discontinued Operations

Net Profit/(Loss) from Discontinued Operations
Net Operating Result for the Year

Net Operating Result attributable to each Council Fund
Net Operating Result attributable to Minority Interests

Net Operating Result for the year before Grants
and Contributions provided for Capital Purposes

(311)        

9,911       

15,108     

Water

2009

1,018       

-               

-               

7,086       

-               

546          
1,203       

3,450       

357          

4,621       

ActualActual ActualActual

7,510       

12,156     
7,461       

1,376       
1,335       

2009

Sewer

-               
44,804     

2009

2,733       

14            

14,966     

General

94            

2009

Other

-               
2,753       

385          

70            
251          

294          
16            

120          

-               

852          
-               

-               

780          
53            

1,136       

1,145       
1,381       

289          

-               

-               

-               

-               

154          

913          

-               

-               
-               

2,167       

33            
-               

16         

16         10,379

-               -               

-                

4,932       

(562)          

(311)   

-               

34,425     

-               
16            

2,918         

-                

-               
10,379  

3,434       

-               
(311)     

10,379     

(138)          

-               
-               
-               
-               
-               

-               

-               
-               

-           

-               

-                

-               
-               

-               

-               
-               

-               
-               

-               

-               
-               

-               
-         

-                
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Note 21. Financial Result & Financial Position by Fund

Balance Sheet by Fund
$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as "held for sale"
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Investments Accounted for using the equity method
Investment Property
Intangible Assets
Other
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Borrowings
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
Net Assets

EQUITY
Retained Earnings
Revaluation Reserves
Total Equity

8,771       

-               

-               

62,599     

-               
5,374       

6,542       

221          

985          

168          

-               

-               
-               

-               

1,031       

4,715       

249,225   
275,419   

3,888       

-               -               

50            

2,195       

Water

Actual
2009

Actual
2009

137          

62,599     

-               

31,190     
-               

-               
-               

-               

-               

2,165       

264,483 

10,936     
264,483 

204,525   
59,958     

20,669     

-               

244,988   

2,950       
2,063       

2              
460          

26,194     

-               

-               

-               

38,519     

728          

58            

-               

69,141     

307          

5,709       

1,180       

-               

5,119       

63,432   

590          

-               
5,119       

45,805     
17,627     

63,432   

283          

-               

-               
-               

-               
-               

-               
18            

-               

123          

-               

-               
-               

31,190     
-               

-               
-               

7,329       

General

95            

-               

Sewer

-               

-               

1,821       

Actual

-               
181          

-               

7,216       

2009

37,610   

728          
909          

37,610   

24,533     
13,077     

-               

Actual
2009

-               
-               

-               

-               

-               

-               
-               

Other

-             

-               
-               

-               
-               
-             

-               

-               

-               
-               

-               

-               

-               
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Note 22. Non Current Assets/Liabilities classified as "Held for Sale"

$ '000

(i) Non Current Assets & Disposal Group Assets

Non Current Assets "Held for Sale"
Land
Total Non Current Assets "Held for Sale"

Disposal Group Assets "Held for Sale"
None

TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS
CLASSIFIED AS "HELD FOR SALE"

(ii)  Details of Assets & Disposal Groups
Residential land parcels surplus to requirement.

$ '000

(iii) Reconciliation of Non Current Assets
      "Held for Sale" & Disposal Groups
      - i.e. Discontinued Operations

Opening Balance
less: Carrying Value of Assets/Operations Sold

Balance still unsold after 12 months:
less: Assets no longer classified as "Held for Sale"
plus New Transfer in:
Assets "Held for Sale"
Discontinued Operations
less Impairment Losses:
Assets "Held for Sale" - Losses on Reclassification
Discontinued Operation - Losses on Reclassification
less: Carrying Value of Assets/Operations Sold
        that were re-classified this reporting period

Closing Balance of "Held for Sale"
Non Current Assets & Operations 65         

-                 

-                 

-                 

50              
-                 -                 

65              

-                 

65           -           

Current Non Current

65              -                 

-                 -                 -                 

-           

-                 

-                 -                 
-                 

Non Current

-                 

50         

-                 

-                 

65              

-                 

50         

Disposal Groups 

-           

50              
-                 50              -                 65              

2009 2008
Assets "Held for Sale"

-                 
-                 

Current

-                 

-                 

2009

-                 

-                 

-             

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

2009 2008

-                 

-                 

-                 
(15)             

-                 

2008
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Note 23. Events occurring after Balance Sheet Date

$ '000

Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2009, up to and including the date when the financial
report is "authorised for issue" have been taken into account in preparing this financial report.

Council has adopted the date of receipt of the Auditors' Report as the appropriate "authorised for issue" date
relating to this General Purpose Financial Report.

Accordingly, the "authorised for issue" date is 25/09/09.

Events that occur after the Reporting Date represent one of two types:

(i) Events that have provided evidence of conditions that existed at the Reporting Date

These financial reports (and the figures therein) incorporate all "adjusting events" that provided
evidence of conditions that existed at 30 June 2009.

(ii) Events that have provided evidence of conditions that arose after the Reporting Date

These financial reports (and figures therein) do not incorporate any "non adjusting events" that have
occurred after 30 June 2009 and which are only indicative of conditions that arose after 30 June 2009.

Council is unaware of any material or significant "non adjusting events" that should be disclosed.

Note 24. Discontinued Operations

Council did not classify any of its Operations as "Discontinued".
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Note 25. Intangible Assets

$ '000

Intangible Assets represent identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance.

Intangible Assets are as follows;

Opening Values:
Gross Book Value (1/7)
Accumulated Amortisation & Impairment
Net Book Value - Opening Balance

Movements for the year
- Purchases

- Amortisation charges

Closing Values:
Gross Book Value (30/6)
Accumulated Amortisation & Impairment

TOTAL INTANGIBLE ASSETS - NET BOOK VALUE 1

1. The Net Book Value of Intangible Assets represent:

- Software
- Easements

136            

Amount

136            218            

221         

-                 

136            

Actual

Carrying

-                 

Actual

-                 

2009

(27)             

2008

Amount
Carrying

221            

(27)             

136       

248            136            

136            
3                -               

-                 -                 
-                 

112            136            
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Note 26. Reinstatement, Rehabilitation & Restoration Liabilities

$ '000

Council has legal/public obligations to make restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the following assets/operations;

Asset/Operation

Waste Transfer Stations & Tips - Region Wide
Quarries & Gravel Pits - Region Wide
Balance at End of the Reporting Period

Under AASB 116 - Property, Plant & Equipment, where the use of an asset results in the obligation to dismantle
or remove the asset and restore the site on which the asset stands, an estimate of such costs is required to be
included in the cost of the asset.

An equivalent liability must be recognised under AASB 137 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets.

The provision has been calculated by determining the present value of the future expenditures expected to be
incurred. The discount rate used is the risk free borrowing rate applicable to Council.

Specific uncertainties relating to the final costs and the assumptions made in determining the amounts of
provisions include:

- the actual future costs (compared to the estimates used),
- the timing of the actual expenditure, &
- the applicable discount rates utilised.

Reconciliation of movement in Provision for year:

Balance at beginning of year
Amounts capitalised to new or existing assets:
- Waste Transfer Stations & Tips (region wide)
- Quarries & Gravel Pits (region wide)
Effect of a change in discount rates used in PV calculations
Effect of a change in other calculation estimates used
Amortisation of discount (expensed to borrowing costs)

Expenditure incurred attributable to Provisions
Total - Reinstatement, rehabilitation and restoration provision

Amount of Expected Reimbursements
Of the above Provisions for Reinstatement, Rehabilitation and Restoration works, those applicable to Garbage
Services & Waste Management are able to be funded through future charges incorporated within Council's
Annual Domestic Waste Management Charge.

870               

150               

715               

1,081        870           

32                 

202               
10

(108)              -                    

1,081       870          

163               -                    

(13)                
120               38                 

54                 
-                    

2009 - 2019 879               720               
2038

76                 

Estimated
year of NPV of Provision   

restoration 2009 2008

4                   
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Note 27. Additional Council Disclosures - Council Information

Principal Place of Business:
86 Market Street
Mudgee  NSW  2850

Contact Details Opening Hours
Mailing Address: Mudgee, Gulgong & Rylstone Adminsitration Centres
PO Box 156 8:00am to 4:30pm

Mudgee  NSW  2850 Monday to Friday

Telephone: 02 6378 2850 Internet: www.midwestern.nsw.gov.au
Facsimile: 02 6378 2815 Email: council@midwestern.nsw.gov.au

Officers Elected Members
GENERAL MANAGER MAYOR
Mr Warwick Bennett Clr Percy Thompson

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER COUNCILLORS
Mrs Clare Phelan Clr Max Walker

Clr Russell Holden
PUBLIC OFFICER Clr Des Kennedy
Mr Ian Roberts Clr Elwyn Lang

Clr James Loneragan
AUDITORS Clr Esme Martens
Morse Group Clr Peter Shelley

Clr John Webb

Other Information
ABN: 96 149 391 332
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
ON THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OFON THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OFON THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OFON THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OF    

MIDMIDMIDMID----WESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCIL    
 
Report on the Financial ReportReport on the Financial ReportReport on the Financial ReportReport on the Financial Report    
 
We have audited the accompanying financial report of Mid-Western Regional Council for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2009. The financial report comprises the Statement by Council, Income Statement, Balance 
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and accompanying Notes to the Financial 
Statements.  Our audit responsibility does not extend to the original budget figures included in the Income 
Statement and Cash Flow Statement, the original budget disclosures in Notes 2(a) and 16, nor the projected 
revenue and expenditure of developer contributions reported in Note 17 and accordingly, we express no opinion 
on them. 
    
Councils’ Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncils’ Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncils’ Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncils’ Responsibility for the Financial Report    
 
The Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance with 
the Local Government Act 1993. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal controls 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
AuditAuditAuditAuditors Responsibilityors Responsibilityors Responsibilityors Responsibility    
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant 
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
 
IndepeIndepeIndepeIndependencendencendencendence    
 
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical 
pronouncements. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDIINDEPENDENT AUDIINDEPENDENT AUDIINDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORTTOR'S REPORTTOR'S REPORTTOR'S REPORT    ON THE CONDUCT OF THE AUDIT OFON THE CONDUCT OF THE AUDIT OFON THE CONDUCT OF THE AUDIT OFON THE CONDUCT OF THE AUDIT OF    
MIDMIDMIDMID----WESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCIL    

    
    

We have audited the financial reports of Mid-Western Regional Council for the financial year ended 30 June 
2009.  The financial reports include the general purpose consolidated accounts of the economic entity 
comprising the Council and its controlled entities and the special purpose financial report, detailing the 
income and expenditure of Council’s business units and their financial position at balance date.  The 
contents of both of these reports include the Council’s Certificate as required by section 413(2)(c) of the 
Local Government Act 1993.  The Council is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the 
financial reports and the information they contain.  We have conducted an independent audit of these 
financial reports in order to express an opinion on them to the Council. 
 
In accordance with Section 417 of the Local Government Act 1993 we submit our report on the conduct of 
the audit of Mid-Western Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2009.  Our audit reports on the 
general purpose financial statements of Council and the special purpose financial statements on Council’s 
business units outline the legislative framework of our audit and should be referred to in order to establish 
the context in which our comments are made. 
    
Council’s Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncil’s Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncil’s Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncil’s Responsibility for the Financial Report    
 
The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 1993.  This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal 
controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and 
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
Auditor’s ResponsibilityAuditor’s ResponsibilityAuditor’s ResponsibilityAuditor’s Responsibility    
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit.  We conducted our 
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.  These Auditing Standards require that we comply 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the financial report. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
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Review of FinanciaReview of FinanciaReview of FinanciaReview of Financial Resultsl Resultsl Resultsl Results    
    
(a)(a)(a)(a)        Operating Operating Operating Operating ResultResultResultResult     
    
As disclosed in Council's Income Statement the year's operations resulted in a net operating result of 
$10,084,000 (2008 - $5,650,000). Selected items of note in the operating statement include: 
 
RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue    
 
o The operating result from ordinary activities before capital amounts was $2,218,000 (2008 – 

$1,689,000). 
o User charges and fees decreased $1,781,000 (14.7%) to $10,357,000 (2008 - $12,138,000) primarily due 

to a $3,680,000 reduction in RTA works on State Roads following major work in the 2008 year. This was 
partially offset by a $1,309,000 increase in private works income. 

o Operating grants and contributions were $2,482,000 up on the prior year, primarily due to the early 
payment of the first instalment of the 2010 Financial Assistance Grant from the federal government. 
This is expected to result in a drop in operating grant income next year. 

o Capital grants and contributions were $3,905,000 higher than last year. This is largely as a result of 
federal funding for the Willow Bend sporting complex under the RLCIP program. 

 
ExpenditureExpenditureExpenditureExpenditure    
 
o Materials and contracts expenditure decreased by $2,387,000 (17%) to $11,602,000 (2008 - 

$13,989,000), primarily due to additional State roads contract works in the 2008 financial year. This is 
consistent with the reduction in revenue noted above.   

o Depreciation expense grew by $1,125,000 to $9,670,000 (2008 - $8,545,000) following revaluation of 
Council’s water and sewer infrastructure in 2007 and buildings in 2008. 

 
 
Council’s other major items of income and expenditure were relatively consistent with the prior period. 
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(b)(b)(b)(b)        Financial PositionFinancial PositionFinancial PositionFinancial Position    
    
The Balance Sheet discloses that for the year ended 30 June 2009 Council’s net assets stood at 
$365,525,000 (2008 - $352,739,000), which represents an increase of $12,786,000 being the net operating 
surplus after capital amounts of $10,084,000 combined with the net asset revaluation increment of 
$2,702,000 relating to the indexed revaluation of Council’s water and sewer infrastructure and the write-
back of the asset revaluation reserve relating to assets disposed. 
 
To assess the health of Council’s net current asset position (available working capital) it is necessary to 
review the level of restrictions placed against the use of Council’s assets. The notes to the financial 
statements indicate clearly where restrictions exist, and the effect of the restrictions is summarised as 
follows: -  
   2009200920092009    2008200820082008    
            $’000  $’000  $’000  $’000      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000     
    
Net current assets  30,523 29,410 
 
Less: Amounts externally restricted for  
 special purposes refer Notes 6; 7; & 8 
 of financial statements  (22,946) (18,322) 
 
Less: Council internally imposed restrictions  
 (refer Note 6 of financial statements) (10,282) (13,682) 
 
Add: Applicable current liabilities refer Note 10 
  - Water  590 483 
  - Sewerage  181 225 
  - Domestic Waste Management  150 475 
  - Other  586 549 
 
Add:  Employee Leave Entitlements 
 to be paid > 12 months  2,969 2,276 
   
Unrestricted net current asset surplus/(deficit) 1,771 2,894 

 
Unrestricted net current assets comprise: - 
       
Assets 
 Cash   4,378 3,424 
 Receivables  1,947 1,743 
 Inventories  462 361 
 Non current assets held for sale  50 65 

 
   6,837 5,593 

 
Less:  General Purpose Liabilities  (8,035) (6,455) 
 
Plus:  Employee Leave Entitlements 
 to be paid > 12 months  2,969 2,276 
  
Unrestricted net current asset surplus/(deficit) 1,771 2,894 

    
 
Council’s continues to enjoy a surplus of net current assets to cover the restrictions placed on those assets 
however the extent of surplus has declined.  
 
The following table shows the impact of these funding decisions on Council’s calculated unrestricted net 
current asset position: 
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 Net Current Asset Position Net Current Asset Position Net Current Asset Position Net Current Asset Position
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LiquidityLiquidityLiquidityLiquidity    
 
Note 6 to the accounts discloses total cash and investments of $38,404,000 (2008 - $36,317,000), of this 
amount $23,744,000 (2008 - $19,211,000) is subject to external restrictions requiring Council to commit 
those funds to the purposes for which they were provided and $10,282,000 (2008 - $13,682,000) is subject to 
internal restrictions agreed upon by Council for designated purposes. These internal restrictions may be 
altered at the discretion of Council, consistent with its management plan. 
 
The unrestricted balance of $4,378,000 (2008 - $3,424,000) represents liquid assets available to cover non-
budgeted discretionary expenditure and short-term cash flow requirements and reflects Council’s strong 
financial position. 
 
Whilst the consolidated financial report displays healthy levels of cash and investments, we remind the 
reader that the consolidated data is not necessarily reflective of the position of the individual funds 
(General, Water & Sewer) and this is equally applicable when reviewing the performance indicators 
considered below. 
 
    
(c)(c)(c)(c)    Performance IndicatorsPerformance IndicatorsPerformance IndicatorsPerformance Indicators    
 
Note 13 to the Financial Statements provides a measure of Council’s performance using a number of 
selected ratios as follows: 

 
Unrestricted Current RatioUnrestricted Current RatioUnrestricted Current RatioUnrestricted Current Ratio    

 
The Unrestricted Current Ratio is a measure of Council's liquidity that demonstrates its ability to satisfy 
obligations out of short-term and immediate asset balances. Council's ratio of 3.38:1 indicates that it is 
comfortably able to satisfy its debts as and when they fall due. 
 
Debt Service RatioDebt Service RatioDebt Service RatioDebt Service Ratio    
 
The cost of repaying debt is reflected in the debt service ratio, which expresses that cost as a percentage of 
revenue from continuing operations, excluding capital items and specific purpose grants and contributions. 
 
Whilst there is no definitive guide on what constitutes an acceptable ratio it is generally accepted that a 
ratio of up to 20% depending on the level of long-term development (infrastructure) plans, is considered 
manageable. At 2.52% (2008 – 2.53%) Mid-Western Regional Council’s ratio is well below these industry 
benchmarks and represents manageable debt.   
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Rates & Annual Charges CoverageRates & Annual Charges CoverageRates & Annual Charges CoverageRates & Annual Charges Coverage Ratio Ratio Ratio Ratio    
 
The ability of Council to meet community expectations for the delivery of services and provision of facilities 
is directly influenced by the discretion it can exercise in the allocation of resources.  
 
This ratio indicates the proportion of revenue generated by Council’s through rates and annual charges. 
 
Mid-Western Regional Council's ratio of 35.40% (2008 – 39.22%) is slightly lower than the prior period, 
primarily due to increased capital grants and the early instalment of the Financial Assistance Grant.  
 
Rates & Annual Charges Outstanding RatioRates & Annual Charges Outstanding RatioRates & Annual Charges Outstanding RatioRates & Annual Charges Outstanding Ratio    
 
The rates and annual charges outstanding percentage is a measure of management efficiency.  Whilst 
prevailing economic conditions may influence Council's ability to collect revenue, the efficiency and 
application of collection procedures are still the largest determinant of this ratio.  
 
Mid-Western Regional Council's rates and annual charges outstanding percentage of 4.35% (2008 - 4.02%) 
continues to indicate effective debtor management. 
    
Building & InfrBuilding & InfrBuilding & InfrBuilding & Infrastructure Renewalastructure Renewalastructure Renewalastructure Renewalssss Ratio Ratio Ratio Ratio    
    
The purpose of this ratio is to assess the rate at which infrastructure assets are being renewed against the 
rate at which they are depreciating.  
 
While the distinction between replacements, renewals and repairs is not well defined, the fact that this 
ratio has been in excess of 100% for the past two years suggests that Council is effectively maintaining it’s 
infrastructure assets. 
  
 
(d)(d)(d)(d) Cash Flow StatementCash Flow StatementCash Flow StatementCash Flow Statement    
    
The Statement of Cash Flows reports a net increase in cash assets held of $6,325,000 (2008 – decrease of 
$6,492,000) as follows: 
 

 2009200920092009 
$’000$’000$’000$’000    

 

2008200820082008 
$’000$’000$’000$’000    

 

MovementMovementMovementMovement 
$’000  $’000  $’000  $’000   

Cash flow provided by / (used in)Cash flow provided by / (used in)Cash flow provided by / (used in)Cash flow provided by / (used in) 
 

   

Operating activities 21,425 15,716 5,709 

Investing activities (14,617) (21,739) 7,122 

Financing activities (483) (469) (14) 

 
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held 

 
6,325 

 
(6,492) 

 
12,817 

 
Cash flows from operating activitiesCash flows from operating activitiesCash flows from operating activitiesCash flows from operating activities    
 
The cashflows from operating activities have increased due to the substantial increase in grants and 
contributions. 
 
Cash flows from investing aCash flows from investing aCash flows from investing aCash flows from investing activitiesctivitiesctivitiesctivities    
 
The major cash outflows related to acquisitions property, plant and equipment. 
  
Cash flows from financing activitiesCash flows from financing activitiesCash flows from financing activitiesCash flows from financing activities    
 
The net cash flow used in financing activities was for loan repayments. No new borrowings were drawn in 
the current financial year. 
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(e)(e)(e)(e)    Comparison of Actual and Budgeted Performance Comparison of Actual and Budgeted Performance Comparison of Actual and Budgeted Performance Comparison of Actual and Budgeted Performance     
    
Council’s surplus from ordinary activities after capital amounts of $10,084,000 was $171,000 less than 
Council’s original estimates.  
 
The nature of this report does not lend itself to detailed analysis of individual budget variations, though it 
appears that the main variance was in relation to the budgeted amount for income from Grants and 
Contributions, investment revenues and gains on disposal of assets. Note 16 of Council’s financial 
statements addresses the contributing factors to this variation in detail.  

(f)(f)(f)(f)    Other MattersOther MattersOther MattersOther Matters    

 
National Competition PolicyNational Competition PolicyNational Competition PolicyNational Competition Policy    

 
In accordance with the requirements of National Competition Policy guidelines, Mid-Western Regional 
Council has prepared a special purpose financial report on its business units for the year ended 30 June 
2009. Council has determined that it has five business units within its operations: Water Supply, Waste 
Water Supply, Private Works, Sale Yards and Child Care Centre. 
 
The Department of Local Government’s July 1997 guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses: A 
Guide to Competitive Neutrality’ outlines the process for identifying and allocating costs of activities and 
provide a standard of disclosure requirements. These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and/or 
financial reporting systems and include taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, rate of return on 
investments in business units and dividends paid. 
 
An unqualified audit report on the special purpose reports for the year ended 30 June 2009 has been 
issued. 

Management LettersManagement LettersManagement LettersManagement Letters    

 
Our most recent management letter was issued on 2 March 2009. Matters raised via management letters 
have been satisfactorily addressed. 
        
(g)(g)(g)(g) Progress of Asset Revaluation ProgramProgress of Asset Revaluation ProgramProgress of Asset Revaluation ProgramProgress of Asset Revaluation Program        
    

 
In Circular 09/09, the Department of Local Government advised the industry that revaluations of roads, 
drainage and related infrastructure was to be deferred until 30 June 2010. 
 
Mid-Western Regional Council has continued to progress this valuation process in order to ensure that 
they are able to recognise these revaluations at that time. 
 
Council has the following in place: 
 

� a project committee with senior representatives from the relevant departments 

� a detailed project plan which establishes key deadlines and responsibilities 

� regular reporting on the achievement of milestone in the project plan 

� documentation which supports 
• the methodology for identifying all assets under council’s control 
• capitalisation thresholds for each asset type for accounting and asset management 

purposes 
• the methodology used to value each asset type 
• a condition assessment model which allows for the identification of each assets’ remaining 

useful life, annual depreciation and on going assessment of its performance 
 

It is expected that Council will complete it’s revaluation of roads, bridges and footpaths in the required 
timeframe and of a suitably professional nature. 
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Purpose Financial Reports
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Contents

1. Statement by Councillors & Management

2. Special Purpose Financial Reports:

- Income Statement of Water Supply Business Activity
- Income Statement of Sewerage Business Activity
- Income Statement of Other Business Activities

- Balance Sheet of Water Supply Business Activity
- Balance Sheet of Sewerage Business Activity
- Balance Sheet of Other Business Activities

3. Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Reports

4. Auditor's Report

Background

These Special Purpose Financial Reports have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Department of
Local Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a "level playing field" between persons/entities
competing in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, State or Local, should operate
without net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality & public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being
water supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation and (b) those activities with a turnover
of over $2 million that Council has formally declared as a Business Activity (defined as Category 1 activities).

In preparing these financial reports for Council's self classified Category 1 businesses and ABS defined activities,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including  tax equivalent regime
payments & debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from councils borrowing position by comparison with
commercial rates).
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Water purchase charges
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from Discontinued Operations
Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
less:
- Tax Equivalent Dividend paid
- Surplus dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax
less: Capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes
Potential Dividend calculated from surplus

2009

1,018         

Actual

2,191         
2,026         1,962         

Actual
2007

Actual
2008

2,679         2,046         
74              94              185            

-                 -                 -                 

310            287            
289            74              

16              16              6                

-                   

294            

4,370         4,558         4,705         

66              

913            

990            

360            

1,273         
-                 

1,207         

-                 

-                 
15              12              

903            

-                 
-                 -                 

1,145         981            
1,381         

(577)           (238)           183            

948            
357            374            388            

4,947         

12              

1,136         
-                 -                 

4,796         4,522         
959            911            

251            257            740            

-                 

(326)           

-                 

-                   

15                 

-                 

-0.4%

-                   

-                   

19              923            

2,999           

868               

923            
-                 

3,680            

(55)             

-                 

12                 

45,150          

-                   55                 

-                   

(326)           

-                   

19              868            

0.2%

-                   

-                   
12                 

(326)           19              
-                 

46,116          46,085          

-                 10                 

-                   -                   

19                 

46,116          
-                   

45,805        

3,688          

-                   

-                   

(299)             

1.0%

46,085         

(326)             
(251)             

569              
285              

-                   
19                 
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Liquid Trade Waste Charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
less:
- Tax Equivalent Dividend paid
- Surplus dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

Calculation of dividend payable:
Surplus (deficit) after tax
less: Capital grants and contributions (excluding developer contributions)
Surplus for dividend calculation purposes
Potential Dividend calculated from surplus

-                   

-                 

-                 

797            

134            

849            

-                   

-                 
62              

-                 

3,442         3,482         

546            

2009

287            
94              

385            

Actual

-                 

Actual Actual

3,533         
14              

94              
-                 

13              

2,733         
-                 

852            696            

268            

-                 -                 
11              

780            
53              

8                

1,144         
-                 

1,203         

57              
509            

2                
3,288         

394            

2,970         

-                 
-                 

2008 2007

2,803         

(146)           51              627            

154            198            317            
8                249            944            

-                 -                 -                 
8                249            944            
-                 (15)             (188)           

-                   

8                234            756            

23,301          24,517          24,257          

8                   11                 12                 
-                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   

-                   15                 188               

(154)             (2)                 

739            

1,123           

234               756               

24,533        

1,821          1,779            

-                   

60              

2,661         

2.4%

-                 

441            

12              

-                   

560            

-                 

24,517          24,257        

70              62              

-                   

-                   -                   

3,296         

-0.3% 0.4%

8                   

-                 234               754              
-                 117               377              

page 4



SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
add:
- Subsidy Paid/Contribution To Operations
less:
- TER dividend paid
- Dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

11         (45)        1           

16         

-             

-             
80       

ActualActual

-            

Actual

Private Works Saleyards

-            
310       

20082009

-            
268       236       

Actual

328       236       

93         

-            
-            -            

-            

-            
-            18         

-            

288       
89         

2           

437     

391       
-0.6%

437         

-             

-            

-            
16         

5           

16         

-            

-            
16         

(45)        

65         

220       

-            
-            

-            
-            

373       

-            
85         

-             

392       

0.1%

-             

-             

-             

-             -             

-             

1             

2           
-            

-            
2           

(1)          

-            

3           
132       

69         

-            

2008

-            

2009

-            
1,554    

-            
9           

-             

-             

-             

97         

(58)          

-             

-            
371       

-             

-            

(41)        

-             

41           

(74)          

(5)          

-             

60         

-            

-            

(45)        

125       

-            

54         

-            
-            

22         
290       

79         
6           

-            
138       

-            
-            

185       
-            

869       
-            
-            

-            
1,563    

1,425    

-            

-             

-            
-            

138       
-            

-             

138       

(58)       

387         -            
n/an/a

435         
-             

(45)        

-             

-             
-             

-            

-             

-             
5             

-           
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Income Statement of Council's Other Business Activities
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$ '000

Income from continuing operations
Access charges
User charges
Fees
Interest
Grants and contributions provided for non capital purposes
Profit from the sale of assets
Other income
Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs
Borrowing costs
Materials and contracts
Depreciation and impairment
Loss on sale of assets
Calculated taxation equivalents
Debt guarantee fee (if applicable)
Other expenses
Total expenses from continuing operations
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations before capital amounts

Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Surplus (deficit) from Continuing Operations after capital amounts

Surplus (deficit) from discontinued operations
Surplus (deficit) from ALL Operations before tax
less: Corporate Taxation Equivalent (30%) [based on result before capital]

SURPLUS (DEFICIT) AFTER TAX

plus Opening Retained Profits
plus/less: Prior Period Adjustments
plus Adjustments for amounts unpaid:
- Taxation equivalent payments
- Debt guarantee fees
- Corporate taxation equivalent
add:
- Subsidy Paid/Contribution To Operations
less:
- TER dividend paid
- Dividend paid
Closing Retained Profits

Return on Capital %
Subsidy from Council

60         

-            
-            

19           
-             

n/a

-             

-             

67         

42         

(94)        (23)      

71           

(23)          

-            

-             

n/a

-             

-             

-             
-             -             
-             

-            

(71)        (42)        

-            
(71)        (42)        

-            

(71)        (42)        
676       

(71)        (42)        

12         
618       

-            

5           
-            
-            

-            

282       334       

2           

-            

-            

2009 2008
Actual

Childcare Centre

Actual

265       297       

546       
-            -            

547       634       

604       

1           

page 6



SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Balance Sheet of Council's Water Supply Business Activity
 as at 30 June 2009

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Minority equity interest
TOTAL EQUITY

62,599             61,059             

-                       -                       

6,542               

-                       

69,141             66,902             

5,374               4,811               

137                  138                  

-                       -                       
1,031               850                  

Actual
2008

Actual
2009

62,599             61,103             

-                       
-                       

-                       -                       
-                       

-                       -                       

-                       

-                       

5,799               

-                       
-                       44                    

-                       

-                       -                       

5,709               
5,119               5,388               

5,871               

307                  231                  
283                  252                  

-                       -                       

590                  483                  

63,432       61,031       

45,805             46,116             
17,627             14,915             
63,432             61,031             

-                       -                       

5,388               
-                       -                       

63,432       61,031       

5,119               
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Balance Sheet of Council's Sewerage Business Activity
 as at 30 June 2009

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Minority equity interest
TOTAL EQUITY

-                       -                       

Actual Actual
2009

-                       

2008

7,216               7,505               

-                       -                       

95                    84                    
18                    26                    

-                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       
-                       

-                       -                       

31,190             30,189             

-                       
-                       -                       

7,329               7,615               

-                       

-                       

-                       -                       

31,190             30,189             
38,519             37,804             

123                  171                  
58                    

37,610       
1,011               

786                  
-                       -                       

786                  728                  

728                  

36,793       
909                  

54                    

181                  225                  

-                       -                       

37,610       36,793       

24,533             

-                       -                       

13,077             12,276             
37,610             36,793             

24,517             
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SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Balance Sheet of Council's Other Business Activities
 as at 30 June 2009

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Bank Overdraft
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Minority equity interest
TOTAL EQUITY

58              1,091         576            

80              
662            

-                 

-                 

582            

Actual
Category 2

Actual Actual

Private Works Saleyards

Actual
Category 2

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

6                

437            

5,723    

-                 

-                 

80              

6,385         

-                 

6,385         

-                 

-                 

6,385         

-                 

-                 

-                 

(58)        5,723    

80         

80              

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

80              

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 

80              

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
6,260         

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 

74              

-                 

-                 

-                 
58              

1,172         

-                 
6,260         

74              
-                 

1,098         
-                 
7                

-                 

6,260         

5,088      

-                 
80              (58)             

-                 

(58)        

(58)             

-                 

392            
5,286         

5,088      

5,088         5,723         
-                 -                 

4,696         

80         

-                 

-                 

-                 

58              

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 

2009

-                 

2009

80              

2008

-                 
-                 
-                 

-                 

2008

-                 

-                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 
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SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Balance Sheet of Council's Other Business Activities
 as at 30 June 2009

$ '000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Other
Non-current assets classified as held for sale
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Investments
Receivables
Inventories
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Investments accounted for using equity method
Investment property
Other
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Bank Overdraft
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Payables
Interest bearing liabilities
Provisions
Other Liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Retained earnings
Revaluation reserves
Council equity interest
Minority equity interest
TOTAL EQUITY

-                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 
-                 

-                 

-                 
-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 2                

-                 -                 
2                

-                 -                 
-                 

-                 -                 

Actual Actual
2009 2008

Category 2

Childcare Centre

-                 
-                 -                 
-                 

25              

-                 
-                 2                
-                 

94              
-                 -                 

-                 -                 

94              25              
-                 -                 

-                 -                 
-                 -                 

-                 
94              25              

-                 -                 

(94)             (23)             

(94)          (23)        

(94)             (23)             
-                 -                 

(94)          (23)        
-                 -                 
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These financial statements are a Special Purpose 
Financial Report (SPFR) prepared for use by the 
Council and the Department of Local Government. 
 
For the purposes of these statements, the Council’s 
business activities (reported herein) are not reporting 
entities. 
 
This special purpose financial report, unless otherwise 
stated, has been prepared in accordance with; 
 
 applicable Australian Accounting Standards, 

 
 other authoritative pronouncements of the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board, 
 
 Urgent Issues Group Consensus Views, 

 
 the Local Government Act and Regulations, 

 
 the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice 

and Financial Reporting, and 
 
 the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual. 

 
The statements are also prepared on an accruals 
basis. They are based on historic costs and do not 
take into account changing money values nor current 
values of non-current assets (except where 
specifically stated). 
 
Certain taxes and other costs (appropriately 
described) have been imputed for the purposes of the 
National Competition Policy. 
 
 
National Competition Policy 
 
Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive 
neutrality’ to its business activities as part of the 
national competition policy which is being applied 
throughout Australia at all levels of government. 
 
The framework for its application is set out in the June 
1996 Government Policy statement on the 
“Application of National Competition Policy to Local 
Government”. 
 
The “Pricing & Costing for Council Businesses A 
Guide to Competitive Neutrality” issued by the 
Department of Local Government in July 1997 has 
also been adopted. 
 
The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process 
for identifying and allocating costs to activities and 

provide a standard of disclosure requirements. These 
disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and/or 
financial reporting systems and include taxation 
equivalents; council subsidies; return on investments 
(rate of return); and dividends paid. 
 
 
Declared Business Activities 
 
In accordance with Pricing & Costing for Council 
Businesses - A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, 
council has declared that the following are to be 
considered as business activities: 
 
Category 1 
 
(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million) 
 
a. Mid-Western Regional Council Water Supply 

 

Comprising the activities and net assets of the 
water supply operations servicing the towns of 
Mudgee, Gulgong, Rylstone, and Kandos. 

 
b. Mid-Western Regional Council Waste Water 

Services 
 

Comprising the activities and net assets of the 
sewerage reticulation and treatment operations 
servicing the towns of Mudgee, Gulgong, 
Rylstone, and Kandos. 
 

Category 2 
 
(where gross operating turnover is less than $2 million) 
 
a. Mid-Western Regional Council Private Works 

 

Comprising the whole of the activities and net 
assets utilised in providing Private Works to the 
public and other agencies. 

 
b. Mid-Western Regional Council Saleyards 

 

Comprising the whole of the activities and net 
assets utilised in providing a facility for the 
conduct of livestock sales. 

 
c. Mid-Western Regional Council Child Care 

Centre 
 

Comprising the whole of the activities and net 
assets utilised in providing a facility for the 
conduct of long day child care. 
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Monetary Amounts 
 
Amounts shown in the financial statements are in 
Australian currency and rounded to the nearest one 
thousand dollars, with the exception of some figures 
disclosed in Note 2 (Water Supply Best Practice 
Management Disclosures) and Note 3 (Sewerage 
Best Practice Management Disclosures). 
 
As required by the Department of Water & Energy, 
some amounts shown in Notes 2 and Note 3 are 
shown in whole dollars. 
 
 
(i) Taxation Equivalent Charges 
 
Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial 
duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a 
cost of operations (General Purpose Financial Report) 
just like all other costs. 
 
However, where council does not pay some taxes 
which are generally paid by private sector businesses, 
such as income tax, these equivalent tax payments 
have been applied to all council nominated business 
activities and are reflected in the SPFR. 
 
For the purposes of disclosing comparative 
information relevant to the private sector equivalent 
the following taxation equivalents have been applied 
to all council nominated business activities (this does 
not include council’s non-business activities): 
 
Notional Rate Applied % 
 
Corporate Income Tax Rate – 30% 
 
Land Tax – The first $368,000 of combined land 
values attracts 0%. From $368,001 to $2,250,000 the 
rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land 
value that exceeds $2,250,000, a premium marginal 
rate of 2.0% applies. 
 
Payroll Tax – 5.875% on the value of taxable salaries 
and wages in excess of $623,000. 
 
In accordance with the guidelines for Best Practice 
Management of Water Supply and Sewerage, a 
payment for the amount calculated as the annual tax 
equivalent charges (excluding income tax) must be 
paid from Water Supply and Sewerage Business 
activities. 
 

The payment of taxation equivalent charges, referred 
in the Best Practice Management of Water Supply and 
Sewerage Guides to as a “Dividend for Taxation 
equivalent”, may be applied for any purpose allowed 
under the Local Government Act, 1993. 
 
Achievement of substantial compliance against the 
guidelines for Best Practice Management of Water 
Supply and Sewerage is not a prerequisite for the 
payment of the tax equivalent charges, however the 
payment must not exceed $3 per assessment. 
 
 
Income Tax 
 
An income tax equivalent has been applied on the 
profits of the business. 
 
Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for the purpose 
of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into 
account of in terms of assessing the rate of return 
required on capital invested. 
 
Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a 
pre-tax level (gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before 
capital amounts) as would be applied by a private 
sector competitor – that is, it should include a 
provision equivalent to the corporate income tax rate, 
currently 30%. 
 
Income Tax is only applied where a positive 
gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before capital 
amounts has been achieved. 
 
Since the taxation equivalent is notional - that is, it is 
payable to the “Council” as the owner of business 
operations, it represents an internal payment and has 
no effect on the operations of the council. Accordingly, 
there is no need for disclosure of internal charges in 
the GPFR. 
 
The rate applied of 30% is the equivalent company tax 
rate prevalent as at balance date. No adjustments 
have been made for variations that have occurred 
during the year. 
 
 
Local Government Rates & Charges 
 
A calculation of the equivalent rates and charges 
payable on all Category 1 businesses has been 
applied to all land assets owned or exclusively used 
by the business activity. 
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Loan & Debt Guarantee Fees 
 
The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that 
council business activities face “true” commercial 
borrowing costs in line with private sector competitors.  
 
In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, council has 
determined what the differential borrowing rate would 
have been between the commercial rate and the 
council’s borrowing rate for its business activities. 
 
 
(ii) Subsidies 
 
Government policy requires that subsidies provided to 
customers and the funding of those subsidies must be 
explicitly disclosed. 
 
Subsidies occur where council provides services on a 
less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised 
on a range of services in order for council to meet its 
community service obligations. 
 
Accordingly, Subsidies disclosed (in relation to 
National Competition Policy) represents the difference 
between revenue generated from ‘rate of return’ 
pricing and revenue generated from prices set by the 
council in any given financial year. 
 
The overall effect of subsidies is contained within the 
Income Statement of Business Activities. 
 
 
(iii) Return on Investments (Rate of Return) 
 
The Policy statement requires that councils with 
Category 1 businesses “would be expected to 
generate a return on capital funds employed that is 
comparable to rates of return for private businesses 
operating in a similar field”. 
 
Such funds are subsequently available for meeting 
commitments or financing future investment 
strategies. 
 
The Rate of Return on Capital is calculated as follows: 
 
 
Operating Result before Capital Income + Interest Expense 
 

Written Down Value of I,PP&E as at 30 June 
 
 

As a minimum, business activities should generate a 
return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate 
which is 5.54% at 30/6/09. 
 
The actual rate of return achieved by each business 
activity is disclosed at the foot of each respective 
Income Statement. 
 
 
(iv) Dividends 
 
Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself 
as owner of a range of businesses or to any external 
entities. 
 
Local Government Water Supply and Sewerage 
Businesses are permitted to pay an annual dividend 
from its water supply or sewerage business surplus. 
 
The dividend, calculated and approved in accordance 
with the Best Practice Management Guidelines, must 
not exceed either (i) 50% of this surplus in any one 
year, or (ii) the number of water supply or sewerage 
assessments at 30 June 2009 multiplied by $30 (less 
the payment for tax equivalent charges, not exceeding 
$3 per assessment). 
 
In accordance with the guidelines for Best Practice 
Management of Water Supply and Sewerage, a 
Dividend Payment form, Statement of Compliance, 
Unqualified Independent Financial Audit Report and 
Compliance Audit Report are required to be submitted 
to the Department of Water & Energy prior to making 
the dividend and only after the Department has 
approved its payment. 



SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Reports
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Note 2. Water Supply Business
             Best Practice Management disclosure requirements

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
[All Local Government Local Water Utilities must pay this dividend for tax-equivalents]

Calculated Tax Equivalents

No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment

Amounts payable for tax-equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

Amounts actually paid for Tax Equivalents

2. Dividend from Surplus
50% of Surplus before Dividends
[Calculated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

No. of assessments multiplied by $30/assessment, less tax equivalent
charges/assessment

Cumulative surplus before Dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2009, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2008

2009 Surplus 2008 Surplus 2007 Surplus
2008 Dividend 2007 Dividend

Maximum Dividend from Surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above]

Dividend paid from Surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment Criteria]

3. Required outcomes for 6 Criteria
[To be eligible for the payment of a "Dividend from Surplus", ALL the Criteria below need a "YES"]

Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)

Full Cost Recovery, without significant cross subsidies
[Refer Item 2(a) in Table 1 on page 22 of the Best Practice Guidelines]

- Complying charges [Item 2(b) in Table 1]

- DSP with Commercial Developer Charges [Item 2(e) in Table 1]

- If Dual Water Supplies, Complying Charges [Item 2(g) in Table 1]

Sound Water Conservation and Demand Management implemented

Sound Drought Management implemented

Complete Performance Reporting Form (by 15 September each year)

a. Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation

b. Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy

(ii)

(i)

(iv)

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iii)

(iii)

19,000         

-                      

-                   

(v)

-                      

193,890          

588,100          

(iii)

YES

-                   
569,100       

YES

(iv)

-                   

15,000            

20,889            

15,000            

-                      

2009

-                      

YES

YES

YES

NO

YES

YES

YES

(iv)

(vi) NO

(v)
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SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Reports
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Note 2. Water Supply Business
             Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators

Total Revenue (Water)
Total Income (w13) - Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (w11a) - Interest Income (w9)

Revenue from Residential Usage Charges (Water)
Income from Residential Usage Charges (w6b) x 100 divided by the sum of
[Income from Residential Usage Charges (w6a) + Income from Residential
Access Charges (w6b)]

Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Water)
Written down current cost of system assets (w47)

Operating Cost (OMA) (Water)
Management Expenses (w1) + Operational & Maintenance Expenses (w2)

Capital Expenditure (Water)
Acquisition of fixed assets (w16)

Economic Real Rate of Return (Water)
[Total Income (w13) - Interest Income (w9) - Grants for acquisition of assets (w11a) -
Operating Costs (NWI F11) - Current Cost Depreciation (w3)] x 100 divided by
[Written Down Current Cost of System Assets (w47) + Plant & Equipment (w33b)]

Capital Works Grants (Water)
Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (w11a)

Notes: 1. References to w (eg. w12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules No. 3 & 4 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

2. The NWI Performance Indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework
Handbook for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators & Definitions.

2009

4,076              NWI F1

NWI F14

-0.80%

$'000

62,599            

1,235              

72.01%

NWI F9

$'000

$'000

NWI F4

NWI F26 251                 $'000

NWI F17 %

3,193              

%

NWI F11 $'000

page 16



SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Reports
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Note 3. Sewerage Business
             Best Practice Management disclosure requirements

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

1. Calculation and Payment of Tax-Equivalents
[All Local Government Local Water Utilities must pay this dividend for tax-equivalents]

Calculated Tax Equivalents

No of assessments multiplied by $3/assessment

Amounts payable for Tax Equivalents [lesser of (i) and (ii)]

Amounts actually paid for Tax Equivalents

2. Dividend from Surplus

50% of Surplus before Dividends
[Calculated in accordance with Best Practice Management for Water Supply and Sewerage Guidelines]

No. of assessments x ($30 less tax equivalent charges per assessment)

Cumulative surplus before dividends for the 3 years to 30 June 2009, less the
cumulative dividends paid for the 2 years to 30 June 2008

2009 Surplus 2008 Surplus 2007 Surplus
2008 Dividend 2007 Dividend

Maximum dividend from surplus [least of (i), (ii) and (iii) above]

Dividend actually paid from surplus [refer below for required pre-dividend payment Criteria]

3. Required outcomes for 4 Criteria  
[To be eligible for the payment of a "Dividend from Surplus", ALL the Criteria below need a "YES"]

Completion of Strategic Business Plan (including Financial Plan)  

Pricing with full cost-recovery, without significant cross subsidies  
[Refer Item 2(a) in Table 1 on page 22 of the Best Practice Guidelines]

Complying charges Residential [Item 2(c) in Table 1]  
Non Residential [Item 2(c) in Table 1]  
Trade Waste [Item 2(d) in Table 1]  

DSP with Commercial Developer Charges [Item 2(e) in Table 1]  
Liquid Trade Waste Approvals & Policy [Item 2(f) in Table 1]  

Complete Performance Reporting Form (by 15 September each year)  

a. Integrated Water Cycle Management Evaluation  

b. Complete and implement Integrated Water Cycle Management Strategy  

NO

NO

987,600          

-                   -                   
233,700       753,900       

-                      

(ii)

(iv)

NO

-                   

(iii)

(b)

(i)

(iv)

-                      

8,000              

19,395            

(i)

8,000              (iii)

(c)

(a)

(iii) YES

NO

2009

(iv) NO

(v)

(i)

(ii)

(ii) NO

-                      

185,950          

YES

-                      

NO

YES
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SPFR 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Reports
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Note 3. Sewerage Business
             Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators

Total Revenue (Sewerage)
Total Income (s14) - Grants for Acquisition of Assets (s12a) - Interest Income (s10)

Written Down Replacement Cost of Fixed Assets (Sewerage)
Written down current cost of system assets (s48)

Operating Cost (Sewerage)
Management Expenses (s1) + Operational & Maintenance Expenses (s2)

Capital Expenditure (Sewerage)
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (s17)

Economic Real Rate of Return (Sewerage)
[Total Income (s14) - Interest Income (s10) - Grants for acquisition of Assets (s12a)
- Operating cost (NWI F12) - Current cost depreciation (s3)] x 100 divided by
[Written down current cost (ie. WDCC) of System Assets (s48) + Plant & Equipment (s34b)]

Capital Works Grants (Sewerage)
Grants for the Acquisition of Assets (12a)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
Water & Sewer (combined)

Total Income (Water & Sewerage)
Total Income (w13 + s14) + Gain/Loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15)
minus Grants for acquisition of assets (w11a + s12a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)

Revenue from Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)
Community Service Obligations (NWI F25) x 100 divided by Total Income (NWI F3)

Capital Expenditure (Water & Sewerage)
Acquisition of Fixed Assets (w16 + s17)

Economic Real Rate of Return (Water & Sewerage)
[Total Income (w13 + s14) - Interest Income (w9 + s10) - Grants for acquisition of assets
(w11a + s12a) - Operating Cost (NWI F11 + NWI F12) - Current cost depreciation (w3 + s3)] x 100
divided by [Written down replacement cost of fixed assets (NWI F9 + NWI F10)
+ Plant & equipment (w33b + s34b)]

Dividend (Water & Sewerage)
Dividend paid from surplus (2(v) of Note 2 + 2(v) of Note 3)

Dividend Payout Ratio (Water & Sewerage)
Dividend (NWI F20) x 100 divided by Net Profit after tax (NWI F24)

2,178              

NWI F8 %

NWI F21 %

NWI F12

$'000 3,065              

NWI F10 $'000 31,190            

NWI F2

$'000

$'000 1,034              

NWI F18

NWI F3 $'000

$'000 -                      

%

NWI F27

NWI F15

2009

-                      

-0.87%

2,269              

7,141              

0.00%

1.74%

-1.01%

NWI F20 $'000

%

NWI F16 $'000

NWI F19
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to the Special Purpose Financial Reports
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Note 3. Sewerage Business
             Best Practice Management disclosure requirements (continued)

Dollars Amounts shown below are in WHOLE DOLLARS (unless otherwise indicated)

National Water Initiative (NWI) Financial Performance Indicators
Water & Sewer (combined)

Net Debt to Equity (Water & Sewerage)
Overdraft (w36 + s37) + Borrowings (w38 + s39) - Cash & Investments (w30 + s31)
x 100 divided by [Total Assets (w35 + s36) - Total Liabilities (w40 + s41)]

Interest Cover (Water & Sewerage)
Earnings before Interest & Tax (EBIT) divided by Net Interest

Earnings before Interest & Tax (EBIT):
Operating Result (w15a + s16a) + Interest expense (w4a + s4a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)
- Gain/Loss on disposal of assets (w14 + s15) + Miscellaneous Expenses (w4b + w4c + s4b + s4c)

Net Interest:
Interest Expense (w4a + s4a) - Interest Income (w9 + s10)

Net Profit After Tax (Water & Sewerage)
Surplus before dividends (w15a + s16a) - Tax equivalents paid (Note 2-1(iv) + Note 3-1(iv))

Community Service Obligations (Water & Sewerage)
Grants for Pensioner Rebates (w11b + s12b)

Notes: 1. References to w (eg. s12) refer to item numbers within Special Schedules No. 5 & 6 of
Council's Annual Financial Statements.

2. The NWI Performance Indicators are based upon the National Performance Framework Handbook
for Urban Performance Reporting Indicators & Definitions.

NWI F25 $'000 124                 

NWI F22

NWI F24 $'000 (546)               

NWI F23

815-                 

269-                  

2009

% -6.34%

-                 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTINDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT    
ON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OFON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OFON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OFON THE SPECIAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL REPORT OF    

MIDMIDMIDMID----WESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCILWESTERN REGIONAL COUNCIL    
 

Report on the Financial ReportReport on the Financial ReportReport on the Financial ReportReport on the Financial Report    
    
We have audited the special purpose financial report of Mid-Western Regional Council for the year ended 30 
June 2009, comprising the Statement by Council, Income Statement by Business Activities, Balance Sheet by 
Business Activities, and accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements. Our audit responsibility does not 
extend to the best practice management disclosures in Notes 2 and 3 and accordingly we express no opinion on 
them.  
 
Councils’ Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncils’ Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncils’ Responsibility for the Financial ReportCouncils’ Responsibility for the Financial Report    
 
The Council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report and have 
determined that the accounting policies described in Note 1 to the financial statements which form part of the 
financial report are appropriate to meet the financial reporting requirements of the Council and the 
Department of Local Government for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of National Competition Policy 
reporting. The Council's responsibility also includes establishing and maintaining internal controls relevant to 
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates 
that are reasonable in the circumstances. 
 
Auditor’s ResponsibilityAuditor’s ResponsibilityAuditor’s ResponsibilityAuditor’s Responsibility    
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. No opinion is expressed 
as to whether the accounting policies used, as described in Note 1, are appropriate to meet the needs of the 
Council. We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards 
require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement. 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
made by the Council as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report. 
 
The special purpose financial report has been prepared for distribution to the Council and the Department of 
Local Government for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of National Competition Policy reporting. We 
disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report or on the financial report to which it 
relates to any person other than the Council or the Department of Local Government or for any purpose other 
than for which the report was prepared. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion. 
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedules
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Contents

Special Schedules1

Net Cost of Services

Statement of Long Term debt (all purposes)

Statement of Internal Loans (Sect. 410(3) LGA 1993)

Water Supply - Income Statement
Water Supply - Balance Sheet

Sewerage Service - Income Statement
Sewerage Service - Balance Sheet

- Notes to Special Schedules No. 3 & 5

Condition of Public Works

Financial Projections

1 Special Purpose Schedules are not audited.

Background

These Special Schedules have been designed to meet the requirements of special purpose users such as;

the NSW Grants Commission
the Australian Bureau of Statistics (ABS),
the Department of Energy, Utilities & Sustainability (DEUS), and
the Department of Local Government (DLG).

The financial data is collected for various uses including;

the allocation of Financial Assistance Grants,
the incorporation of Local Government financial figures in national statistics,
the monitoring of loan approvals,
the allocation of borrowing rights, and
the monitoring of specific service financial activities.i

i
i
i
i

- Special Schedule No. 6
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16
12

- Special Schedule No. 1

- Special Schedule No. 2(a)
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- Special Schedule No. 8
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i
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 1 - Net Cost of Services
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

Governance

Administration
Corporate Support
Engineering and Works
Other Support Services

Public Order and Safety
Contributions to Fire Service Levy
Fire Protection – Other
Animal Control
Beach Control
Enforcement of Local Govt Regs
Emergency Services
Other

Health
Administration and Inspection
Immunisations
Food Control
Insect/Vermin Control
Noxious Plants
Health Centres
Other

Community Services and Education
Administration
Family Day Care
Child Care
Youth Services
Other Families and Children

Aged and Disabled
Migrant Services
Aboriginal Services
Other Community Services

Education 2,302      -                 2,496         -              -              -                 (194)           

-                 
45              9             -              (36)             

-                 -              -              

873         -              (12)             
-                 -              -              -                 

885            

-                 -              -              -                 
3                102         -              

(3)               696         -              

99              
645            547         -              (98)             
699            

(195)           

219            75           -              (144)           

5                308            -              -              

(189)           108         -              

113         (5)               
-                 -              -                 

297            

2                
3                -              -              (3)               

-                 -              -              -                 

5             -              3                

86              

-                 -              -              -                 

-              54           
73              1,324         65           -              905         (8)               (419)           

(32)             

1,018         

-                 -              -              -                 
-                 -              -              -                 

(92)             
(241)           

101            9             -              
496         281         

5,651      -              -              -                 
1,878         2,481      -              

7,766         (2,115)        

46              -              -              (46)             

-                 

593            593            

5,888         

Net Cost of 
Services

(544)           

Function or Activity continuing operations

Expenses Group Totals

Expenses from
continuing operations

Income from

49           

2,052      

Non Capital 
Revenues

Capital 
Revenues

-              

1,118      

49           

Group 
Totals

(2,718)        

Net Cost

(544)           

Group Totals

603            
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 1 - Net Cost of Services (continued)
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

Housing and Community
Amenities
Housing
Town Planning
Domestic Waste Management
Other Waste Management
Street Cleaning
Other Sanitation and Garbage
Drainage
Stormwater Management
Environmental Protection
Public Cemeteries
Public Conveniences
Other Community Amenities

Water Supplies

Sewerage Services

Recreation and Culture
Public Libraries
Museums
Art Galleries
Community Centres
Public Halls
Other Cultural Services

Swimming Pools
Sporting Grounds
Parks and Gardens (Lakes)
Other Sport and Recreation

Fuel and Energy
Gas Supplies

Mining, Manufacturing and
Construction
Building Control
Abattoirs
Quarries and Pits
Other -              100         -                 (83)             -              

2,800      

-              

-              

-              

2,849      
18           

(592)           

-                 -                 

(852)           
-                 

(83)             100         -              

-              -                 
-                 -              -              

-              

3,441         

-                 
183            

-                 

-                 183            

Function or Activity

Expenses from

Expenses Group Totals

Services

-                 

(229)           

Group Totals

(2)               
(795)           

(229)           

-              

-                 

-              

Income from Net Cost of 

Net Cost

40           

110         -              

-              

-              2             

-              -              

138         

(143)        

-                 -              

905            

2,763         2,763         2,527      

5             7                

-                 

1,982         
(585)           

-              

-                 

834            
733            

16           

-              
(137)        

-                 

-                 

723            

14              
225            

(12)             
(328)           

(576)           

(38)             
4,685      -                 (1,002)        

3,617      (576)           

2,534      

-                 5,687         -              -              

7             

4,193         4,193         3,366      251         

36              (2)            -              
266            175         -              (91)             

(269)           400            131         -              

-                 -              -              

-                 
366            (57)          53           (370)           

-                 
179            -              -              (179)           

(583)           

539            2,832         3,371      -              

543         -              
440            444         -              4                

1,126         

Capital 
Revenues

Group 
Totals

continuing operations
Non Capital 
Revenues

42              27           -              (15)             

continuing operations

-              -              -                 
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 1 - Net Cost of Services (continued)
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

Transport and Communication
Urban Roads (UR) - Local
Urban Roads - Regional
Sealed Rural Roads (SRR) - Local
Sealed Rural Roads - Regional
Unsealed Rural Roads (URR) - Local
Unsealed Rural Roads - Regional
Bridges on UR - Local
Bridges on UR - Regional
Bridges on SRR - Local
Bridges on SRR - Regional
Bridges on URR - Local
Bridges on URR - Regional
Footpaths
Aerodromes
Parking Areas
Bus Shelters and Services
Water Transport
RTA Works (State)
Street Lighting
Other

Economic Affairs
Camping Areas
Caravan Parks
Tourism and Area Promotion
Industrial Development Promotion
Saleyards and Markets
Real Estate Development
Commercial Nurseries
Other Business Undertakings

Totals – Functions

General Purpose Revenues(1)

Share of interests - joint ventures &
associates using the equity method

NET OPERATING
RESULT FOR YEAR
Notes:
(1) Includes: Rates & Annual Charges (incl. Ex Gratia), Untied General Purpose Grants & Interest on Investments (excl. Restricted Assets)

Net Cost Group Totals

254            

8,773      

-                 

-                 

(3,084)        

-                 

(75)             

138            (632)           

(487)           
(39)             

(49)             

Servicescontinuing operations

(2,070)        

(1,346)        
(832)           

(267)           

2,428         

130         -              

-              
-              

-              

(2)               

Net Cost of 

(308)           
66              

(257)           
-                 

(925)           
175            

Function or Activity

Expenses from Income from

Expenses Group Totals Non Capital 
Revenues

Capital 
Revenues

Group 
Totals

continuing operations

-                 
445            (42)          -              

29              
320            

11,857       
257            

-                 

7,866      

1,548      -              

33,126    

-              

7,866      

19,749    

10,084       

-                 

52,875    10,084       

-              -                 

19,749       19,749       

25,260    

-              -              -                 

(9,665)        

1,054         2,180         

42,791       

1,192      

-                 -                 -              

42,791       

45,009    

19,749    

12           

261         
27           

300            -              

-              

-              -              
-              

-              

-                 -              -              

-                 
32              98           

-              -              
3,099      -              2,845         

-                 
-              -              -                 

5                (7)               
-                 -              -              

(2)            -              
187            112         -              

-              
146            -              97           

243            

-              -                 
-                 -              -              

-              -              
(113)           

267            

-              
-                 -              -                 

-                 
77              

221         
580         1,925      

237         

-                 

1,973         
1,804         

1,141      
2,819         61           688         

20              195         -              
1,214         (8)            297         
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 2(a) - Statement of Long Term Debt (all purpose)
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

Notes: Excludes (i) Internal Loans & (ii) Principal Inflows/Outflows relating to Loan Re-Financing.
             This Schedule is prepared using the Face Value of debt obligations, rather than Fair Value (as per the GPFR's).

273          
-               -               

Total Long Term Debt 313          75            388          -               
-               -               

page 5

156          117          115          -               -               27            

498          509          -               

Deferred Payments -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

483          -               -               6,832       7,341       

Finance Leases 313          75            388          

Total Debt 681          7,143       7,824       

273          
-               -               
-               115          -               -               

-               -               -               -               
27            117          

392          6,676       

156          

7,068       

-               -               
Ratepayers Advances -               -               -               
Government Advances -               -               -               

Other Long Term Debt
-               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               

-               
Total Loans 368          7,068       7,436       -               368          -               -               471          

-               
392          6,676       

-               -               
-               

Other -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
-               

-               
-               -               

-               
-               

7,068       471          
-               

-               

-               

-               -               
Public Subscription -               

7,436       368          Financial Institutions 368          7,068       

-               -               
-               

Other State Government
-               -               -               -               -               

-               
-               

-               
-               -               -               -               

-               -               
Treasury Corporation -               -               -               

-               

Transfers 
to Sinking 

Funds

-               -               -               -               -               
-               

From 
Revenue

Sinking 
Funds

-               -               

Classification of Debt
Current Non 

Current Total

Principal outstanding
Interest 

applicable 
for Year Total

-               -               -               

Non 
Current

at the end of the year

Current

-               

S
pecial S

chedules 2009

Principal outstanding New 
Loans 
raised 

during the 
year

at beginning of the year

Loans (by Source)
Commonwealth Government -               

Debt redemption 
during the year



Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 2(b) - Statement of Internal Loans [Section 410(3) LGA 1993]
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

Note: The summary of Internal Loans (above) represents the total of Council's Internal Loans categorised according to the borrower.

page 6

Summary of Internal Loans

Details of Individual Internal Loans

Principal Outstanding
(Principal & Interest) at end of year

Sewer

Borrower (by purpose)

General

S
pecial S

chedules 2009

Total repaid during the yearAmount originally raised

Other
Gas

Water

Domestic Waste Management

Totals -                                                        -                                                        -                                                        

Amount Principal
Outstanding

at end of year

Date of
Borrower Lender Dates of Originally

(Princ. & Int.)

Total repaid
during year

Maturity Interest raised
Rate of

Totals

(by purpose) (by purpose) Approval (years)
Date RaisedMinister's Term

-                   -                   -                



Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

A Expenses and Income
Expenses

1. Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and Supervision

2. Operation and Maintenance
- Dams & Weirs
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

- Mains
c. Operation expenses
d. Maintenance expenses

- Reservoirs
e. Operation expenses
f.  Maintenance expenses

- Pumping Stations
g. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs)
h. Energy costs
i.  Maintenance expenses

- Treatment
j.  Operation expenses (excluding energy costs)
k. Chemical costs
l.  Maintenance expenses

- Other
m. Operation expenses
n.  Maintenance expenses
o.  Purchase of water

3. Depreciation
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses
b. Revaluation Decrements
c. Other expenses
d. Tax Equivalents Dividends (actually paid)

5. Total expenses

Actuals
2009

Actuals
2008

-                       -                       

4,932               4,424               

357                  374                  

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

117                  

175                  

57                    49                    

-                       -                       

1,382               1,207               

-                       -                       

-                       1                      

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

720                  570                  
510                  264                  

756                  745                  

116                  

-                       68                    

142                  

78                    124                  

147                  
693                  699                  

5                      
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

Income

6. Residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

7. Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

8. Extra charges

9. Interest income

10. Other income

11. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets
b. Grants for pensioner rebates
c. Other grants

12. Contributions
a. Developer charges
b. Developer provided assets
c. Other contributions

13. Total income

14. Gain or loss on disposal of assets

15. Operating Result

15a. Operating Result (less grants for acquisition of assets)

-                       (360)                 

(562)                 31                    

(311)                 31                    

3                      -                       

4,621               4,815               

-                       -                       
-                       -                       

225                  257                  

585                  593                  

294                  310                  

204                  281                  

2008

1,745               

Actuals Actuals

61                    66                    

-                       -                       

90                    111                  

251                  -                       

2,094               1,452               

2009

814                  
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures

16. Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. Subsidised scheme
b. Other new system assets
c. Renewals
d. Plant and equipment

17. Repayment of debt
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

18. Transfer to sinking fund

19. Totals

Non-operating funds employed

20. Proceeds from disposal of assets

21. Borrowing utilised
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

22. Transfer from sinking fund

23. Totals

C Rates and charges

24. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied)
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)
c. Non-residential (occupied)
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)

25. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received

26. Total amount (actual dollars) of pensioner rebates

-                       
-                       

50                    

5,845               6,016               
430                  186                  
598                  580                  

-                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

90                    

1,235               1,598               

-                       

238                  236                  

1,473               1,834               

-                       

-                       
-                       

-                       

-                       -                       

-                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

-                       -                       
-                       

2009 2008
Actuals Actuals

119,226$         

32            ET 114          ET

111,542$         
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 3 - Water Supply Cross Subsidies
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

D Best practice annual charges and developer charges*

27. Annual charges
a. Does Council have best-practice water supply annual charges
    and usage charges*?

If Yes, go to 28a.
If No, please report if council has removed land value from access
charges (ie rates)?

NB. Such charges for both residential customers and non-residential
customers comply with section 3.2 of Water Supply, Sewerage and
Trade Waste Pricing Guidelines, Department of Water & Energy,
December, '2002. Such charges do not involved significant cross
subsidies.

b. Cross-subsidy from residential customers using less than
     allowance (page 25 of Guidelines)

c. Cross-subsidy to non-residential customers (page 24 of Guidelines)

d. Cross-subsidy to large connections in unmetered supplies
     (page 26 of Guidelines)

28. Developer charges
a. Has council completed a water supply Development Servicing**
    Plan?

b. Total cross-subsidy in water supply developer charges for
    2008/09 (page 47 of Guidelines)

** In accordance with page 9 of Developer Charges Guidelines for
Water Supply, Sewerage and Stormwater, Department of Water and
Energy, Dec 2002.

29. Disclosure of cross-subsidies
Total of cross-subsidies (27b +27c + 27d + 28b)

*  Councils which have not yet implemented best practice water supply
   pricing should disclose cross-subsidies in items 27b, 27c and 27d above.

However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is not required where a Council
has implemented best practice pricing and is phasing in such pricing over
a period of 3 years.

#VALUE!

Yes

Unknown

Yes

Yes No Amount
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 4 - Water Supply Balance Sheet
 Includes INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 as at 30 June 2009

$'000

ASSETS
30. Cash and investments

a. Developer charges
b. Special purpose grants
c. Accrued leave
d. Unexpended loans
e. Sinking fund
f. Other

31. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants
b. Rates and charges
c. Other

32. Inventories

33. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

34. Other assets

35. Total assets

LIABILITIES
36. Bank overdraft
37. Creditors
38. Borrowings

a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

39. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents
b. Dividend
c. Other

40. Total liabilities

41. NET ASSETS COMMITTED

EQUITY
42. Accumulated surplus
43 Asset revaluation reserve

44. TOTAL EQUITY

Note to system assets:
45. Current replacement cost of system assets
46. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets
47. Written down current cost of system assets

1,461               

5,402               

-                       

-                       

-                       
-                       

-                       

3,863               

966                  

62,599             

-                       

-                       

Actuals
Total

1,461               
50                    50                    -                       

Actuals
Current

10                    

137                  

55                    

-                       
62,599             

55                    

137                  

3,863               -                       

-                       

-                       
966                  -                       

Actuals
Non Current

10                    -                       

-                       

-                       

-                       
-                       -                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

6,542               

5,119               

-                       

-                       -                       

62,599             

-                       

69,141             

-                       

-                       -                       

-                       

-                       
-                       

307                  

283                  
-                       

307                  

-                       

45,805             

-                       
-                       

590                  5,119               

-                       

63,432             

-                       

5,952               

62,599               

100,053              
(37,454)              

17,627             

63,432             

-                       

57,480             

-                       
-                       

-                       

5,709               
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Income Statement
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

A Expenses and Income
Expenses

1. Management expenses
a. Administration
b. Engineering and Supervision

2. Operation and Maintenance
- Mains
a. Operation expenses
b. Maintenance expenses

- Pumping Stations
c. Operation expenses (excluding energy costs)
d. Energy costs
e. Maintenance expenses

- Treatment
f. Operation expenses (excl. chemical, energy, effluent & biosolids management costs)

g. Chemical costs
h. Energy costs
i.  Effluent Management
j.  Biosolids Management
k. Maintenance expenses

- Other
l.    Operation expenses
m. Maintenance expenses

3. Depreciation
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

4. Miscellaneous expenses
a. Interest expenses
b. Revaluation Decrements
c. Other expenses
d. Tax Equivalents Dividends (actually paid)

5. Total expenses

642                  503                  
220                  164                  

57                    

-                       63                    
418                  418                  

118                  -                       

-                       -                       

137                  

2                      

31                    

20                    17                    

687                  

12                    

667                  

28                    

-                       -                       

-                       

-                       -                       
1,203               1,144               

-                       -                       
-                       

-                       

3,434               3,202               

-                       -                       
-                       -                       

53                    

-                       

Actuals
2009

Actuals
2008

1                      2                      
29                    

page 12



Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

Income

6. Residential charges (including rates)

7. Non-residential charges
a. Access (including rates)
b. Usage charges

8. Trade Waste Charges
a. Annual Fees
b. Usage charges
c. Excess mass charges & re-inspection fees

9. Extra charges

10. Interest income

11. Other income

12. Grants
a. Grants for acquisition of assets
b. Grants for pensioner rebates
c. Other grants

13. Contributions
a. Developer charges
b. Developer provided assets
c. Other contributions

14. Total income

15. Gain or loss on disposal of assets

16. Operating Result

16a. Operating Result (less grants for acquisition of assets)

-                       -                       

63                    62                    

-                       -                       

385                  394                  

-                       -                       

-                       -                       

108                  107                  

-                       -                       

16                    260                  

-                       -                       

3,450               3,730               

154                  198                  
7                      -                       
-                       -                       

16                    260                  

-                       (268)                 

2,483               

-                       -                       

2,525               

250                  444                  

Actuals Actuals
2009 2008
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Income Statement (continued)
 Includes ALL INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

B Capital transactions
Non-operating expenditures

17. Acquisition of Fixed Assets
a. Subsidised scheme
b. Other new system assets
c. Renewals
d. Plant and equipment

18. Repayment of debt
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

19. Transfer to sinking fund

20. Totals

Non-operating funds employed

21. Proceeds from disposal of assets

22. Borrowing utilised
a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

23. Transfer from sinking fund

24. Totals

C Rates and charges

25. Number of assessments
a. Residential (occupied)
b. Residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)
c. Non-residential (occupied)
d. Non-residential (unoccupied, ie. vacant lot)

26. Number of ETs for which developer charges were received

27. Total amount (actual dollars) of pensioner rebates

-                       -                       

-                       -                       
-                       

-                       -                       

54                    52                    

Actuals Actuals
2009 2008

-                       -                       

-                       -                       
1,034               803                  

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       -                       
-                       -                       

-                       

1,088               855                  

-                       

562                  

48            ET 104          

49                    

172                  
546                  

112,160$         

5,567               

113,914$         

373                  

ET

82                    

5,464               

-                       -                       

-                       -                       
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 5 - Sewerage Cross Subsidies
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

$'000

D Best practice annual charges and developer charges*

28. Annual charges
a. Does Council have best-practice sewerage annual charges,
    usage charges and trade waste fees & charges*?

If Yes, go to 29a.
If No, please report if council has removed land value from access
charges (ie rates)?

NB. Such charges for both residential customers and non-residential
customers comply with section 4.2 & 4.3 of the Water Supply,
Sewerage and Trade Waste Pricing Guidelines, Department of
Water and Energy, December, 2002. Such charges do not involve
significant cross subsidies.

b. Cross-subsidy to non-residential customers (page 45 of Guidelines)

c. Cross-subsidy to trade waste discharges (page 46 of Guidelines)

29. Developer charges
a. Has council completed a sewerage Development Servicing**
    Plan?

b. Total cross-subsidy in sewerage developer charges for
    2008/09 (page 47 of Guidelines)

** In accordance with page 9 of Developer Charges Guidelines for
Water Supply, Sewerage and Stormwater, Department of Water &
Energy , Dec 2002.

30. Disclosure of cross-subsidies
Total of cross-subsidies (28b + 28c + 29b)

*  Councils which have not yet implemented best practice sewer pricing &
   liquid waste prising should disclose cross-subsidies in items 28b and 28c
   above.

However, disclosure of cross-subsidies is not required where a Council
has implemented best practice sewerage and liquid waste pricing and
is phasing in such pricing over a period of 3 years.

Unknown

Yes

Unknown

Unknown

Yes

Amount

No

Yes No

#VALUE!
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 6 - Sewerage Balance Sheet
 Includes INTERNAL TRANSACTIONS, ie. prepared on a Gross Basis.
 as at 30 June 2009

$'000

ASSETS
31. Cash and investments

a. Developer charges
b. Special purpose grants
c. Accrued leave
d. Unexpended loans
e. Sinking fund
f. Other

32. Receivables
a. Specific purpose grants
b. Rates and charges
c. Other

33. Inventories

34. Property, plant and equipment
a. System assets
b. Plant and equipment

35. Other assets

36. Total Assets

LIABILITIES
37. Bank overdraft
38. Creditors
39. Borrowings

a. Loans
b. Advances
c. Finance leases

40. Provisions
a. Tax equivalents
b. Dividend
c. Other

41. Total Liabilities

42. NET ASSETS COMMITTED

EQUITY
42. Accumulated surplus
44. Asset revaluation reserve

45. TOTAL EQUITY

Note to system assets:
46. Current replacement cost of system assets
47. Accumulated current cost depreciation of system assets
48. Written down current cost of system assets

7,148               

24,533             

-                       

181                  728                  

30,462             37,610             

909                  

-                       -                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       -                       
-                       

-                       

31,190               

71,714                
(40,524)              

13,077             

37,610             

31,190             

-                       
786                  

-                       

38,519             

-                       

123                  
-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       -                       
123                  -                       

58                    728                  

-                       

31,190             

7,329               

18                    

-                       
-                       

-                       

31,190             

-                       

-                       

-                       

-                       

1                      -                       
-                       94                    

4,818               

-                       

Actuals
Current

2,398               -                       

Actuals
Non Current

18                    

Actuals
Total

2,398               

1                      

-                       

-                       
-                       

94                    

4,818               
-                       

-                       -                       -                       
-                       -                       
-                       -                       

-                       -                       
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Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Notes to Special Schedule No.'s 3 & 5
 for the financial year ended 30 June 2009

Administration (1) Engineering and supervision (1)

(item 1a of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following: (item 1b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprises the following:

•  Administration staff: • Engineering staff:
− Salaries and allowance − Salaries and allowance
− Travelling expenses − Travelling expenses
− Accrual of leave entitlements − Accrual of leave entitlements
− Employment overheads. − Employment overheads.

• Meter reading. • Other technical and supervision staff:
− Salaries and allowance

• Bad and doubtful debts. − Travelling expenses
− Accrual of leave entitlements

• Other administrative/corporate support services. − Employment overheads.

Operational expenses   (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day operational expenses
excluding maintenance expenses.

Maintenance expenses   (item 2 of Special Schedules 3 and 5) comprise the day to day repair and maintenance
expenses. (Refer to Section 5 of the Local Government Asset Accounting Manual regarding capitalisation
principles and the distinction between capital and maintenance expenditure).

Other expenses   (item 4c of Special Schedules 3 and 5) includes all expenses not recorded elsewhere.

Revaluation decrements   (item 4b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) is to be used when I,PP&E decreases in FV.

Residential charges   

(2) (items 6a, 6b and item 6 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income
from residential charges. Item 6 of Schedule 3 should be separated into 6a Access Charges (including rates if
applicable) and 6b Usage Charges.

Non-residential charges   

(2) (items 7a, 7b of Special Schedules 3 and 5) include all income from non-residential
charges separated into 7a Access Charges (including rates if applicable) and 7b Usage Charges.

Trade waste charges   (item 8 of Special Schedule 5) include all income from trade waste charges separated
into 8a Annual Fees, 8b Usage Charges and 8c Excess Mass Charges and 8d Re-inspection Fees.

Other income   (items 10 and 11 of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include all income not recorded
elsewhere.

Other contributions   (items 12c and 13c of Special Schedules 3 and 5 respectively) include capital contributions
for water supply or sewerage services received by Council under Section 565 of the Local Government Act.

Notes:
(1) Administration and engineering costs for the development of capital works projects should be reported as part of the capital
    cost of the project and not as part of the recurrent expenditure (ie. in item 16 for water supply and item 17 for sewerage,
    and not in items 1a and 1b).

(2) To enable accurate reporting of residential revenue from usage charges, it is essential for councils to accurately
    separate their residential (item 6) charges and non-residential (item 7) charges.
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 7 - Condition of Public Works
 as at 30 June 2009

$'000

55,870     

121,311   

2,103       

223,075   
12,413     

3,749       

1,685       

99            

46            

14,303     1,938       

standard (1)

12,365     163          

196          

26            

1              
8              

50            
1,494       
2,391       

20            
40            

471          
542          681          
36            

1,662       
1,550       229          

222          2              1,440       
1-2% 19            

61            
1-2% 258          

11,326     1-2% 216          
1-2%

1-2%

2-5%

22            1-2%

30            
220          

2              120          
10,160     

281          

2              382          
656          

7              
33            -               
6              -               

9              

135          

1              
44            

-               
122          

41            

49            
97            

3              -               

1,166       3              

3,159       
903          

2,332       11,846     3              

3              

14,178     
3,597       438          
1,013       110          2              

2              1,321       
11,332     11,989     

1,629       
657          

52,526     7,092       

55,063     
5,862       15,956     

3,043       
2,245       

13,560     
7,500       

250          

52            
-               5              
-               

15            

3              

3              

3              2,845       
29,600     

2              

101,764   

3              

3              2,053       

4,948       

110,933   

11,397     
21,818     

3              

19,922     
6,466       

5,852       680          3              

720          

5,545       
1,847       1,902       

421          

68            1-2%

1.00%

Bridges

2.00%

1-2% 144          
2.00%

Culverts & Causeways

Footpaths 106          

117          

1,096       

1,558       
357          5.00%

& Amount
(WDV)Cost Valuation Impairment M'ntce   

Asset  satisfactory
Condition# condition

Annual    Annual   
Required(2)

M'ntce    

Current(3)Depreciation bring up to a

Estimated
Accumulated cost to

Carrying
Dep'n.

Expense
Dep'n.
Rate

Asset Category

sub total
Amenities/Toilets

Library
Childcare Centre(s)

($)(%)

Council Works Depot
Council Halls

270          

Council Houses

Sealed RoadsPublic Roads

Museum

Unsealed Roads

ASSET CLASS

Buildings Council Offices

1-2%

<<<<<<<<<<<< per Note 9 >>>>>>>>>>>>per Note 4per Note 1

Parking Areas 1-2% 2              

1-2%

1-2%

<<<<<<<< per Section 428(2d) >>>>>>>>

Kerb and Gutter

-               59,618     

3,991       6,044       
520          17            

13            

Cycle ways

3,770       -               33,420     4,779       6,937       

219          
13            

1,265       8,800       

1,731       50            3              

S
pecial S

chedules 2009

766          
3              1,860       40            10            
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1,235       

sub total

RTA Regional Roads
5,947       RTA Bridges 1-2% 166          

49,522     



Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 7 - Condition of Public Works (continued)
 as at 30 June 2009

$'000

1-3%

82            1-4%Pump Stations
Reticulation Mains

1-4% 599          Treatment Plants 31,900     

&
Condition#

Carrying
Asset  Amount

Required(2)bring up to a
Annualsatisfactory

cost to

<<<<<<<<<<<< per Note 9 >>>>>>>>>>>>

Depreciation

6,429       25,471     

Accumulated

Valuation Impairment (WDV)

Water

Sewerage

per Note 4
ASSET CLASS

(%)

Reservoirs
Dams

sub total

Reticulation Mains

($)
Cost

Dep'n. Dep'n.

per Note 1
Asset Category

5              
3              10,892     

4,588       5,273       9,861       3              

131          6,252       

116          

-               
52            
10            

65            

414          
52            
62            

35            

21,218     362          
2,153       

Estimated

336          
<<<<<<<< per Section 428(2d) >>>>>>>>

230          2,225       2              

standard (1)

Annual
Current(3)

Maintenancecondition Maintenance

3              13,058     14,099     27,157     
4,306       

Pump Station 1-4%

Mains Delivery 1-3%

1,935       3              89            2,982       1,047       1,935       
96,411     58,990     37,421     23,671     1,052       820          -               

518          3,390       1,885       2              124          
27,372     15,175     4              

450          
sub total 1,192       69,315     -               40,453     852          28,862     39,414     714          

2-5%

583          

325          1-3%

119          

1,367       

Rising Mains 1-3%

Treatment Works
77            

1-2%

1-2% 104          

Rate Expense

3,623       
5,960       1,232       

13,619     7,367       
4,932       

1,505       

17,804     7,923       9,881       

42,547     
5,574       3,653       1,921       

369          
47            52            

15,525     176          
4              

320          3              
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Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 7 - Condition of Public Works (continued)
 as at 30 June 2009

$'000

Notes:
(1). Satisfactory refers to estimated cost to bring the asset to a satisfactory condition as deemed by Council. It does not include any planned enhancements to the existing asset.
(2). Required Annual Maintenance is what should be spent to maintain assets in a satisfactory standard.
(3). Current Annual Maintenance is what has been spent in the current year to maintain assets.

# Asset Condition "Key" - as per NSW Local Government Asset Accounting Manual:

Near Perfect   - Ranges from New or Good Requires Major Reconstruction   - Ranges from Poor to Critical
Superficial Deterioration   - Ranges from Generally Good to Fair Asset Unserviceable - Critical, Beyond Repair
Deterioration Evident   - Ranges from Fair to Marginal

147          

Dep'n. Dep'n. Accumulated

2
3

1

6,134       

99,109     

975          11,657     

7,432       

207          183          

9,335       

-               

225,344   211,800   

5,523       

248,276   

5,523       Drainage Works Drainage Infrastructure
per Note 1 per Note 4

1-2% 147          

conditionCost (WDV) Condition#

207          
<<<<<<<<<<<< per Note 9 >>>>>>>>>>>> <<<<<<<< per Section 428(2d) >>>>>>>>

975          183          6,134       11,657     3              

ASSET CLASS Asset Category

AnnualAnnual
Maintenance Maintenance

standard (1)

satisfactory
Impairment

Amount
Carrying bring up to a Current(3)

(%) ($)
Depreciation Required(2)

Asset  
Valuation

Expense
&

Estimated
cost to

S
pecial S

chedules 2009

234,732   

4
5

7,572       

Rate

page 20
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sub total



Special Schedules 2009

Mid-Western Regional Council

Special Schedule No. 8 - Financial Projections
 as at 30 June 2009

(1)

$'000

(i) RECURRENT BUDGET
Income from continuing operations
Expenses from continuing operations

Operating Result from Continuing Operations

(ii) CAPITAL BUDGET
New Capital Works (2)

Replacement/Refurbishment of Existing Assets
Total Capital Budget

Funded by:
– Loans
– Asset sales
– Reserves
– Grants/Contributions
– Recurrent revenue
– Other

Notes:
(1) From 08/09 Income Statement.
(2) New Capital Works are major non-recurrent projects, eg new Leisure Centre, new Library, new Swimming pool etc.
(3) If Council has only adopted 3 years of projections then only show 3 years.

10,815  
8,026    14,198  22,037  25,034  10,205  

19,480  20,660  37,970  25,460  

19,480  20,660  37,970  25,460  10,815  

2,068    
2,427    1,471    1,491    1,418    2,146    
6,777    7,443    11,950  4,686    

-            
10,276  9,146    18,179  6,881    6,601    

-            -            -            -            

610       

-            2,600    6,350    12,475  -            

11,454  6,462    15,933  426       

3,269    

42,791  42,515  42,740  44,222  

10,084  6,677    11,283  6,563    

45,442  

ForecastForecast

52,875  49,192  54,023  

Actual
08/09 09/10 10/11

Forecast(3)Forecast(3)

50,785  

11/12   12/13   

48,711  
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